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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERWE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited (the “Company”
and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present to the shareholders of the Company the annual report
and audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”).

Business Review

The Group is an EMS provider offering comprehensive
assembling and production services of Printed Circuit Board
Assembly (the “PCBAS”) in the PRC that integrate research and
design, selection and procurement of raw materials, assembling
of PCBAs, quality control, testing, logistics and aftersales
services. The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) have been
successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 October 2019
(the “Listing Date”) (the “Listing”).

During the Reporting Period, the outbreak and the spread of
the coronavirus disease (COVID-19) (the “Novel Coronavirus
Qutbreak”) throughout the world has imposed different degrees
of impact on various industries. Since the Novel Coronavirus
Qutbreak,a number of provinces and municipalities in the PRC
have taken emergency public health measures and various
actions to prevent the spread of the coronavirus disease
(COVID-19), including imposing restriction on the resumption
of operation of production plants after the statutory holidays
for Chinese New Year. The Group suspended the operation of
the Group’s production plant in Shenzhen after the statutory
holidays for Chinese New Year and gradually resumed its
operation starting from the end of February 2020. After the
Group resume the operation, late delivery of materials and lack of
labor also have adverse effect on the Group’s efficiency to some
extent. With the spread of the coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
throughout the world and lockdown measures imposed by many
countries, business and economic environment in China and
the world became worse, which also has an adverse impact on
the Group’s business during the Reporting Period. Even though
the coronavirus disease (COVID-19) was under controlled in
China in the second half year of 2020, domestic demand in
China continued slowing down. During the Reporting Period,
the revenue of the Group decreased by approximately RMB38.1
million from RMB284.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to RMB246.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, which was attributed to the decreased sales orders from
our major customer for the PCBAs for telecommunication devices
and industrial-use devices caused by the Novel Coronavirus
QOutbreak and fierce competition in the industry.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHRE @)

The Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the Reporting Period decreased by approximately 57.6% to
approximately RMB11.7 million as compared with the Group’s
profit of approximately RMB27.7 million for the corresponding
period in 2019; while excluding the listing expenses of
approximately RMB18.1 million for the corresponding period
in 2019, the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the Reporting Period decreased by approximately
74.4%.

Prospects

Looking forward, the economy environment in China and the
world remains uncertain and challenging. The Group is taking
proactive measures and making active responses in an effort
to sustain the business and actively diversify or expand our
customer base and product base to broaden the sources of
revenue and diversify business risk. Also, the Group will continue
to invest in our development of in-house capabilities and keep
ourselves abreast of the development of latest technology
advancement in our industries to secure more business
opportunities. We will continue to strive a balance among the
interests of shareholders, employees and customers, and pursue
long-term and sustainable development for the Group.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to the management team and our staff for
their tenacious efforts and outstanding contributions to the
development of the Group. | would also like to extend my
heartfelt thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers and
business partners for their continuous trust and support to the
Group.

By order of the Board
Li Hao
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
25 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB RO

Operating Results KREXEE

Revenue by Customers’ Geographical Location REFHMEMNEE S HKE
The Group’s revenue by customers’ geographical location, which  ANEBIZEF BV E (EREFMLEETE)
is determined by the location of customers, is as follows: ElomlEnT

Revenue for the
year ended 31 December

B#Et-A=t—H

IEFE R
2020 2019
—E-EHF —EF-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
The PRC mh 246,036 284,266
The USA = 183 322
Others H A 312 =
Total 4=t 246,531 284,588

Based on the usage of the electronic products which  FERFER#ZEFFIPCBA WS TE M @ H 8
incorporated with our PCBAs, our PCBAs can be broadly applied PCBA A B2 BN = AE BITEMNE T KK
to electronic end products for three principal industries, namely, ZEm @ BIENEE TEAREE R YHAE
telecommunication devices, industrial-use devices and loT fhe FTRMARFEHHEEEZE T —NLF
products. The table below summarises the amount of revenue +_-_A=+—HBIFFEZBERELMN K=
generated and as a percentage of total revenue from each X MHAWRZEA DL :

product category for the Reporting Period and for the year ended

31 December 2019 respectively:

Revenue for the % of total revenue for
year ended 31 December the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLt BEt-A=t-HLt
FEHRE FERAKZADSL
2020 2019 Change 2020 2019 Change
ZE-EF —T-hF $8 —B-BF -—T-hE )
RMB’000  RMB'000 %
AR®TR ARETT %
PCBAs for PR LA T E fm H PCBA
Telecommunication devices ~ BAEE 132,475 159,691 (17.0) 53.7 56.1 (2.4)
Industrial-use devices TXRBEE 14,218 34,338 (58.6) 5.8 12.1 6.3
loT products W A8 2 96,515 89,062 8.4 39.1 31.3 7.8
Others (Note) Hftn (FisE) 3,323 1,497 122.0 1.4 0.5 0.9
Total 4Bar 246,531 284,588 (13.4) 100 100.0 =

Note: Others mainly include (i) PCBAs for automotive related devices; and (i) the ik : Efb E B BIE () AR /SEAARREE B HPCBA : K (i) #
revenue generated from the sale of auxiliary and other materials. E o B R E AR E A i o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN @)

Qur revenue generated from sales of PCBAs for
telecommunication devices decreased by approximately 17.0%
from approximately RMB159.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately RMB132.5 million for the
Reporting Period, primarily due to decrease in orders from our
major customers who was principle engaged in production
and sale of smartphone, cordless phone as a results of the
deteriorated consumer market caused by the spread of the novel
coronavirus disease (COVID-19) and fierce competition in the
industry.

Our revenue generated from sales of PCBAs for industrial-use
devices decreased by approximately 58.6% from approximately
RMB34.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB14.2 million for the Reporting Period,
primarily due to the decreased orders as a result of the lockdown
measures imposed by many countries to prevent the spread of
the novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) throughout the world
as some of the end users of industrial-use devices were oversea
customers.

Our Group recorded an increase in revenue derived from sales of
PCBAs for loT products from approximately RMB89.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB96.5
million for the Reporting Period, which was mainly attributable
to the net effect of: (i) revenue PCBAs for loT products from
existing customers decreased due to the lockdown measures
imposed by many countries as a result of the spread of the novel
coronavirus disease (COVID-19) throughout the world as some of
these end users of loT Products were overseas customers; and (i)
the Group received more orders from new customers that have
lower gross profit margins to enhance the Group’s production
utilisation rate.

8  EmmammARAT £33 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN @)

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the Reporting Period was
approximately RMB50.4 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB43.6 million or approximately 46.4% as
compared with approximately RMB94.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Overall gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 33.0% for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately 20.4% for the Reporting Period.

Gross profit for
the year ended 31 December

EFREF=E
AEBRFEHENENNAEARKS04H
B BEEZZE-—NF+ZA=+T—HIL®HF
EHHAREUMOEELRD O ARKAL36
BEILHA464% BEEFNEHFEE_Z
—hE+ - A=1t—RB It EER433.0%H
EIREHR A 4920.4% °

Gross profit margin for
the year ended 31 December

BZ2+-A=1+—-AL BZ+t-A=1+—-AL
EENER EENERNE
2020 2019 Change 2020 2019 Change
“E-EF —TNF 2% —T-TE —T-NF #
RMB'000  RMB’000 (%) (%) (%) (%)
AR®TR ARETT (%) (%) (%) (%)
PCBAs for FER AT 2 mm #9 PCBA
Telecommunication devices ~ EFEE 29,951 55,394 (45.9) 22.6 34.7 (12.1)
Industrial-use devices TIXR%KE 2,612 10,615 (75.4) 18.4 30.9 (12.5)
loT products MR E R 17,354 27,631 (387.2) 18.0 31.0 (13.0)
Others Hit 491 388 26.5 14.8 25.9 (11.1)
Total &5t 50,408 94,028 (46.4) 20.4 33.0 (12.6)
PCBAs PCBA

The gross profit for PCBAs for telecommunication devices
decreased by approximately 45.9% to approximately
RMB30.0 million for the Reporting Period (2019: approximately
RMB55.4million). The gross profit margin decreased to
approximately 22.6% for the Reporting Period (2019:
approximately 34.7%), which was primarily due to the decreased
price and decreased orders from the Group’s major customers
who was principle engaged in the production and sale of
smartphone, cordless phone while certain of our operating costs
remained fixed.

The gross profit for PCBAs for industrial-use devices decreased
by approximately 75.4% to approximately RMB2.6 million for the
Reporting Period (2019: approximately RMB10.6 million). The
gross profit margin decreased to approximately 18.4% for the
Reporting Period (2019: approximately 30.9%), which was mainly
due to decreased orders from customers who targeted overseas
markets as a result of the spread of the novel coronavirus
disease (COVID-19) in the world.

FAREMEEMNPCBARER T B4 45.9% =
MEHRRNARKE30.0BETT(ZE—NF:
AR AEEIT) - EFER RS BB
LEL22.6%(ZE—NF : 8934.7%)  =E
EHRKEITZEREETEFRANZTAERSE
EAEENEENAEBRFTFEXFEMER TR’
RETBERD - BETEENAEENE -

AR ITXR&EENPCBANEF R 44
75.4% EHREHBHNHOARB26EE T (=
T—hhF - HARKI106EHS L) - EF =R
RBEHERDELN184% (Z T —NEF : 4
30.9%) ' £ EE MR IHEEAME S (COVID-19)
REREL BB INTHEBEENRF
B -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN @)

The gross profit for PCBAs for 10T products decreased by
approximately 37.2% to approximately RMB17.4 million for the
Reporting Period (2019: approximately RMB27.6 million). The
gross profit margin decreased to approximately 18.0% for the
Reporting Period (2019: approximately 31.0%), which primarily
due to that the Group received more orders from customers
that have lower gross profit margins to enhance the Group’s
production utilisation while orders from existing customers with
higher gross profit margins decreased significantly as a result of
the Novel Coronavirus Outbreak.

Other Income

Other income of the Group for the Reporting Period of
approximately RMB4.5 million (2019: approximately RMB3.7
million) mainly represented government grants.

Other Losses, net

Other (losses), net mainly represented (i) net exchange gain
or loss arising and (i) net gain or loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment. For the Reporting Period, other losses
increase from approximately RMB1.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB2.2 million for the
Reporting Period, which was mainly result from the recognition
of disposal loss on the idle and outdated equipment for the
Reporting Period amounting to approximately RMB2.7 million.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly comprised (i) relevant
employee benefit expenses; (ii) transportation costs; (iii)
depreciation; (iv) legal and professional fee; and (v) entertainment
expenses and other expenses. For the Reporting Period, selling
and distribution expenses amounted to approximately RMB2.5
million (2019: approximately RMB2.8 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 11.2% as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2019. Selling and distribution expense ratio
remained stable at approximately 1.0% against revenue for both
the Reporting Period and the year ended 31 December 2019.

10 emegERERAT 45 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN @)

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses mainly represented (i) employment
benefit expenses, (ii) depreciation, (iii) listing expenses and
professional fee, (iv) rental expenses, (v) travelling expenses,
(vi) utilities, (vii) telecommunication and office expenses and
other expenses. For the Reporting Period, administrative
expenses amounted to approximately RMB36.2 million (2019:
approximately RMB56.2million), representing a decrease of
approximately 35.6% as compared to the year ended 31
December 2019. The decrease was mainly due to listing
expenses and professional fees incurred for the Listing of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Net Impairment Losses on Financial Assets and
Contract Assets

Net impairment losses on financial assets mainly represented the
provision of impairment of trade receivables. For the Reporting
Period, impairment loss of approximately RMBO0.2 million (2019:
approximately RMB1.0 million) was made against the trade
receivables for customers who probably have credit risk.

Finance Costs, Net

Our finance costs mainly comprised interest expenses on bank
and other borrowings and leases, while our finance income
mainly represented interest income on our cash and cash
equivalents. For the Reporting Period, the net finance costs of the
Group were approximately RMBO0.1 million (2019: approximately
RMB1.2 million). The decrease in net finance costs was mainly
due to: (i) the decreased finance cost because of the repayment
of existing bank borrowings in the Reporting Period, while the
new loan was borrowed by the end of 2020; and (ii) increased
interest income which was in line with the increased average
bank balance during the Reporting Period.

THEX
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN @)

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decrease by approximately 72.1% from
approximately RMB7.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB2.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, primarily due to the decrease in profit
before income tax of the Group’s major subsidiary, Shenzhen
Confidence by approximately 62.9%. Shenzhen Confidence,
our Group’s subsidiary in the PRC, has qualified for new/high-
tech technology enterprises status and is therefore subject to
a preferential income tax rate of 15%. Our effective tax rate,
which is calculated based on income tax expenses divided
by profit before income tax, was approximately 15.7% for the
reporting period (2019: approximately 21.7%). The decrease in
the effective tax rate mainly resulted from the non-tax deductible
listing expenses and professional fees incurred for the year ended
31 December 2019, which did not happen during the Reporting
Period.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
As a result of the facts discussed above, profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company decreased by approximately
57.6% from approximately RMB27.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB11.7 million for the
Reporting Period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net Current Assets

The Group had net current assets of approximately RMB153.9
million as at 31 December 2020 (2019: approximately
RMB173.4 million). The current ratio of the Group decreased
from approximately 3.9 as at 31 December 2019 to 3.1 as at 31
December 2020.

Borrowing and the Pledge of Assets

The bank and other borrowings of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB13.9 million as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
approximately RMB8.2 million). As at 31 December 2020, the
above bank borrowings were secured by bank deposits of
RMB14,557,000, property, plant and equipment with carrying
amounts of RMB26,130,000 and a corporate guarantee provided
by the Company. As at 31 December 2019, the above bank and
other borrowings were secured by property, plant and equipment
with carrying amounts of RMB21,837,000 and a corporate
guarantee provided by the Company.

12 emegmREaRAT 45 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Gearing Ratio

QOur gearing ratio, which is calculated by total borrowings divided
by total equity, was approximately 4.8% and 2.9% as at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019, respectively. During
the Reporting Period, our bank and other borrowings increased
by approximately RMB5.7 million. The gearing remained low
due to our low level of bank and other borrowings as well as the
increase in our equity contributed by our profitable operations.

Capital Structure

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 18 October
2019. There has been no change in the capital structure of the
Company since then. As at 31 December 2020, the number of
issued shares of the Company was 250,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each.

Foreign Exchange Exposure and Exchange Rate
Risk

The Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”), Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”) and
United Stated Dollar (“USD”). The Group is exposed to foreign
currency risk arising from bank borrowing which is denominated
in USD other than the respective functional currency of the entity.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Capital Expenditure

For the Reporting Period, the Group had capital expenditure of
approximately RMB63.7 million (2019: approximately RMB38.0
million). The capital expenditure was mainly related to the
additions of office equipment, plant and equipment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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The Joint Venture agreement (the “JV Company”)
On 30 September 2020, Shenzhen Confidence and Mr.
Chen Wensheng (FR 3 ) (the “Mr. Chen”) entered into the
JV Agreement, pursuant to which, subject to the terms and
conditions of the JV Agreement, (i) Shenzhen Confidence and
Mr. Chen agreed to form an joint venture company, namely
Chongaing Xinken Technology Company Limited* (& & {=
% L £ A R 2 &) which will be owned as to 70% and 30%
by Shenzhen Confidence and Mr. Chen, respectively; and (i)
Shenzhen Confidence and Mr. Chen will contribute to the JV
Company by way of cash contribution of RMB35 million and
RMB15 million, respectively. The JV Company will become a
subsidiary of the Group upon its formation.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

Employees, Emoluments Policy and Training

The key components of the Group’s remuneration package
include basic salary, and where appropriate, other allowances,
bonuses and the Group’s contribution to mandatory provident
funds or state-managed retirement benefits scheme. Other
benefits include share options to be granted under the
Share Option Schemes. The Group provides comprehensive
training and development opportunities to its employees on a
regular basis. The trainings are arranged according to needs
to employees, which are identified annually by individual
departments.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 676 employees with
a total remuneration of approximately RMB62.8 million during
the Reporting Period (2019: approximately RMB72.8 million).
The salaries of the employees were determined with reference
to individual performance, work experience, qualification and
current industry practices.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Use of Proceeds

Our business objectives and planned use of proceeds as stated
in the Prospectus of the Company date 28 September 2019 (the
“Prospectus”) were based on the best estimation of future market
conditions made by the Group at the time of preparing the
Prospectus. The actual use of proceeds was based on the actual
market development. The net proceeds from the Share Offer
received by the Company, after deducting related underwriting
fees and estimated expenses payable by the Company in
connection with the Share Offer were approximately HK$91.9
million. During the Reporting Period, the net proceeds from the
Share Offer had been applied as follows:

FrERERE
AARBHAE-ZE—NFALA=-TN\HHRA
BRER(BBRER]) MMERBZRAER
HEREABRDUAAEEEREABRERES
RRMRIEHNREGTAER - TE3E
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Amount Remaining
utilised up to balance as at
Actual net 31 December 31 December
Business objectives as stated in the Prospectus proceeds 2020 2020
Bz e
It 23 b 23
ERFE TZA=t-H TZA=t-H
RRERFEEHAR RERE BHANE e
HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEAT BEATL BEATL
Enhance our production capacty and efficiency RAEERANE 49 499 -
Enhance the level of automation in our qualtty REESEHRBEZGN
control and packaging system AELkT 76 76 -
Strengthen our product design and enhancement capablitesin -~ AR FERREALE R
respect of our POBAS applicable to telecommunication 1B 85 2 AIREPCBAR
devices and loT devices EmFiRigEs 59 08 51
Further strengthen our research and development capabliies & —# 1% 5 e 38 3.1 20 11
Strengthen our product testing capabilies for loT products by~ BERUARZHERTA - %
setting up a cloud-based simulation platform AMENERERNER NS 2.1 12 09
Upgrade our MES system and enhance our FHRZPEIMES Rz 5 e
capabilties in information technology RN 3.1 13 18
Upgrade our existing inteligent warehouse ARAMBENEREE 25 15 10
Repayment of bank loan and other borrowings BRROERRAMER 86 8.4 02
Working capital EEES 9.1 6.1 30
91.9 788 13.1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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The unutilised net proceeds are expected to be used during
the year ending 31 December 2021. The expected timeline
for utilising the unutilised net proceeds is based on the best
estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group.
It will be subject to change based on the current and future
development of market conditions. The unutilised net proceeds
have been placed with licensed banks in Hong Kong and PRC as
interest-bearing deposits in accordance with the intention of the
Board as disclosed in the Prospectus.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s capital commitment
amounted to approximately RMB16.7 million (2019:
approximately RMB2.2 million). The capital commitment was
mainly related to the acquisition of machinery and equipment to
expand our production capacity and enhance our production
efficiency.

Material Acquisitions, Disposals of
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
and Significant Investment

During the Reporting Period, saved as disclosed in this report,
there were no other material acquisition, disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures or significant investment by the
Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as of 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Event after Reporting Period

There were no significant events after the Reporting Period up to
the date of this report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Executive Directors

Mr. Li Hao (Z%) (“Mr. Li”), aged 49, is an executive Director,
chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of our Group
and the cousin of Mr. Xu shizhen. Mr. Li joined our Group
in March 2000 and has over 21 years of experience in the
electronic engineering and manufacturing industry. He is primarily
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
development and overseeing the daily operation of our Group.

Mr. Li obtained his diploma in industrial electrical automation
from Wuhan University of Science and Technology (formerly
known as Wuhan Institute of Metallurgy) in July 1993. He
further completed a top-up degree in electronic and information
technology from University of Electronic Science and Technology
of China in January 2019 through online studies. From July 1993
to March 1996, Mr. Li worked as a sales manager in Shenzhen
International Business Data Co., Ltd* (& 3l B BR & 2£ ZUi% A IR
A A]). From April 1996 to July 1998, Mr. Li Hao worked as a
sales manager in Shenzhen Tefa Songli Electronic Industry Co.,
Ltd.* ORISR EFEZEH R A F), an electronic products
manufacturer. He then worked in Shenzhen Bolinshijia Modern
Households Co., Ltd.* (RIITHEMERIBRRERRBRAA)
(formerly known as Shenzhen Xinwei Industry Co., Ltd.* (Z&3IIT
4 EEEGR A F])), a household products trader, as a deputy
general manager from August 1998 to February 2000. He has
been the director and general manager of Shenzhen Confidence
and Xinzhi (Shenzhen) Electronic co., Ltd.* (%4 C&JI) EF A&
fR A 8]) (the “Xinzhi Shenzhen”) since March 2000 and March
2019, respectively. He also been the director of Confidence
Intelligence, Inc, New Trive Limited and New Trive (HK) Limited
(F &R (B#) AR A A since April 2017, January 2019 and
January 2019, respectively.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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Mr. Zhang Bizhong (5& £ #&) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 55, is an
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Zhang joined our Group
in February 2002 and has over 26 years of experience in the
electronic engineering and manufacturing industry. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing sales and operations of our Group.

Mr. Zhang obtained his diploma in physics from Zhejiang Normal
University in July 1988. From February 1990 to August 1992, Mr.
Zhang worked as a production engineer in Lianguang Electronics
and Plastics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd* (Bt B8 B (&) &
fR A A]), an electronic products manufacturer. He then joined
Shenzhen Dinghan Electronics Technology Co., Ltd.* (R III5 %
T TRt AR A Al), an electronic technology service provider,
as a production manager from September 1992 to October 1995.
He then worked in Shenzhen Bao’an Tongbang Electronics Co.,
Ltd.* ORI TH & L2 7 F & F B R 2 aAl), a PCBA manufacturer,
as a factory head from November 1995 to February 2002. He
has been the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Confidence
since February 2002 and has been appointed as a director since
December 2015. He also has been the manager of Chongging
Xinken Technology Company Limited* (EE R AR A
A]), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, since October
2020.

Mr. Xu Shizhen (& tt E) (“Mr. Xu”), aged 47, is an executive
Director and the chief financial officer of our Company and the
cousin of Mr. Li. Mr. Xu joined our Group in March 2000 and
is primarily responsible for the overall financial, accounting,
administration and secretarial affairs of our Group.

Mr. Xu obtained his diploma in finance and accounting from
Wuhan University of Technology (formerly known as Wuhan
Automotive Polytechnic University) in July 1996. From September
1996 to December 1998, Mr. Xu worked as a sales manager in
Shenzhen Tefa Songli Electronic Industry Co., Ltd* (JF 3| T 45 3
MM ETFEZEABR AR, an electronic products manufacturer.
He then joined Shenzhen Suzhu Co., Ltd.* GEIITZB{ERRR A F])
as a purchasing manager from January 1999 to January 2000.
He has been the chief financial officer of Shenzhen Confidence
since March 2000 and has been appointed as a director, financial
controller and secretary of the board since December 2015. He
also been the supervisor of Xinzhi Shenzhen since March 2019.
He also has been the executive director of Chongaging Xinken
Technology Company Limited* (E 2 {5 BREHE B R A 7)), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, since October 2020.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Yuan Shuntang (RJEE) (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 48, is a non-
executive Director of our Group. He is primarily responsible for
providing strategic advice to the business development of our
Group. Mr. Yuan obtained his diploma in industrial electrical
automation from Wuhan University of Science and Technology
(formerly known as Wuhan Institute of Metallurgy) in July 1993.
Mr. Yuan worked as a sales engineer in Shenzhen Tianyuan
Finance Electronics Co., Ltd* (ZII KR TR E T B R A 7)),
an electronic products wholesaler, from September 1993 to
June 1995 and joined Yantian International Container Terminals
Limited* (& M B B &= S 46 5 58 A PR 2 Al), a logistic company,
as an operation manager from August 1995 to October 2002. He
then worked in Shenzhen Haoyang Logistics Co., Ltd.* (FI T
YEEEE AR AR, alogistics company, as a sales manager
from November 2002 to August 2005. Since September 2005,
Mr. Yuan served as the general manager of Shenzhen Highway
Sender International Transport Co., Ltd.* (& JII T /& & JE &=
BEERIE AR A A, alogistics agency, where he was
responsible for strategic planning and overseeing the overall
operation management of the company.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Zhong (BR &) (“Mr. Chen”), aged 56, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of our Group on
20 September 2019. He is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of our Group. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to the Board. Mr. Chen obtained
his Bachelor’s degree in Radio Physics from Xiamen University in
July 1985. He further obtained a Master’s degree in Science and
a Doctorate degree in Science from Xiamen University in August
1988 and February 1993 respectively. Mr. Chen is a professor
and lecturer of the Faculty of Electronic Science in Xiamen
University. From April 1993 to July 1995, Mr. Chen worked as a
postdoctoral researcher in the Fujian Institute of Research on the
Structure of the Chinese Academy of Science. He then joined
Xiamen University in August 1995 as an assistant professor of
the Faculty of Chemistry and was promoted to a professor in
December 2000. From December 2003 to September 2017, Mr.
Chen served as the associate dean of the College of Physical
Science and Technology of Xiamen University. He became
the associate dean of the College of Electronic Science and
Technology of Xiamen University since October 2017.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund (& & &) (“Mr. Wong”), aged
36, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of our Group on 20 September 2019. He is the chairman of the
Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of our Group. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to the Board. Mr. Wong obtained
his Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from Hong Kong Baptist
University in November 2007, Master of Science in Applied
Accounting and Finance from Hong Kong Baptist University in
November 2013, and Master of Business Administration from
The Open University of Hong Kong in October 2016 and Master
of Corporate Governance from The Open University of Hong
Kong in August 2017. Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom, the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators). Mr. Wong has more
than 10 years of experience in accounting, taxation and auditing.
He joined Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as an audit associate in
September 2007 and left as an audit senior in November 2011.
Mr. Wong joined Patrick Wong C.P.A. Limited as an audit
manager in February 2012 and has been its practicing director
since March 2013. Mr. Wong is currently the independent non-
executive director of InvesTech Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1087) which is principally engaged in the provision of network
system integration. Mr. Wong is also the independent non-
executive director of Deyun Holding Ltd., a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1440) which
is principally engaged in lace manufacturing and dyeing service
since December 2020.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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Mr. Wu Tai Cheung (# X #) (“Mr. Wu”), aged 63, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of our
Group on 20 September 2019. He is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee of our Group. He is responsible
for providing independent advice to the Board.

Mr. Wu obtained his Bachelor’s degree in Arts in Accountancy
from the University of Bolton (formerly known as the Bolton
Institute of Higher Education) and his Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of Newcastle, Australia. He
currently holds the following memberships, namely (i) member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(formerly known as the Hong Kong Society of Accountants); (i)
associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong; (iii) fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants; (iv) associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries; and (v)
associate of the Chartered Governance Institute.

Mr. Wu has over 36 years of experience in accounting and
corporate finance. Mr. Wu has saved various public-listed
companies in Hong Kong holding positions such as financial
controller, company secretary and chief financial officer. Mr.
Wu served as an independent non-executive director of New
Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (formerly known as BEP
International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 2326) from January
2006 to October 2007 and Bay Area Gold Group Limited (formerly
known as Munsun Capital Group Limited) (stock code: 1194)
from October 2016 to February 2019. Mr. Wu has been the
independent non-executive director of Yun Lee Marine Group
Holdings Limited since March 2019 (stock code: 2682).
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Company Secretary

Ms. Jian Xuegen (f§Z R) (“Ms. Jian”), aged 35, was
appointed as the company secretary of our Group on 21
February 2019. Since February 2019, Ms. Jian has joined
Wisdom Professional Limited, a professional services provider
specialising in corporate and investor services, with her position
as a consultant and is responsible for providing professional
corporate secretarial services to companies listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Ms. Jian obtained her Bachelor’s degree in Accounting from
the South China University of Technology in July 2008. She has
been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since January 2019. She has also been a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
December 2010.

Ms. Jian joined Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP Guangzhou Branch
in November 2008 and left with her last position as manager in
the assurance department in December 2016. Since December
2016, she has worked as financial controller in the group of
Eternity Technology Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1725), and also the company
secretary of Eternity Technology Holdings Limited since January
2020. Since September 2019, she has been the company
secretary of Sprocomm Intelligence Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange in November 2019 (stock code: 1401).
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Senior Management

Mr. Yang Zougao (#% & &) (“Mr. Yang”), aged 44, is the
general manager of production of our Group and is responsible
for overseeing productions and quality control of our Group. He
has over 21 years of experience in the electronic engineering and
manufacturing industry.

Mr. Yang obtained his diploma in electrical engineering from
Hunan Industry Polytechnic in July 1998. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Yang worked as a technician in Dongguan Jinzheng
Digital Technology Co., Ltd.* (BRZETH & IE BB AR A &)
from February 1998 to August 2000. He worked in Dongguan
Jinzhong Electronics Co., Ltd.* (REEm & R EFTER A
Al) as an equipment officer from August 2000 to December
2000. He then worked as a production line engineer in BBK
Educational Electronics Co., Ltd* (¥ T 5 #%EEFER A
A]), a company principally engaged in the sales and supply of
electronic products, from January 2001 to July 2001. In August
2001, he joined Shenzhen Confidence as the general manager of
production and became a director since December 2015.

Mr. Chen Qin (B &), aged 37, is the general manager of
marketing and product affairs of our Group and is responsible
for overseeing sales and operations, business development
and project management of our Group. He has over 11 years
of experience in the electronic engineering and manufacturing
industry.

Mr. Chen Qin obtained his degree in telecommunication
engineering from Guilin University of Electronic Technology in
July 2006. He further obtained a master’s degree in software
engineering from University of Electronic Science and Technology
of China in December 2012. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Chen Qin worked as a senior engineer and project manager in
Shenzhen Jiuzhou Electric Co., Ltd.* GE I T fL I E 25 A R
A 7)) from July 2006 to July 2009. He then worked as a head
of production line in Jiuzhou Jena Co., Ltd., a digital video
network provider located in the U.S., from August 2009 to May
2013 where he was responsible for expanding the market and
managing the production lines of the company in Northern U.S..
He returned to Shenzhen Jiuzhou Electric Co., Ltd* (&I T /L
M E 25 G R A Al) and served as the head of technical support
department from June 2013 to September 2014. In March 2015,
he joined Shenzhen Confidence as the general manager of
marketing and product affairs and was promoted as a director in
December 2015.

*  For identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving
high corporate governance standards to enhance corporate
performance, transparency and accountability, earning the trust
of shareholders and the public. The Board strives to adhere
to the principles of corporate governance and adopt sound
corporate governance codes to meet the legal and commercial
standards by focusing on areas such as internal control,
adequate disclosure and accountability to all shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
during the Reporting Period except the following deviation:

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
of the Board and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Li is the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of our
Group, which was deviated from the CG Code. However, having
considered the nature and extent of our Group’s operations,
Mr. Li's extensive experience in the industry, familiarity with the
operations of our Group since its business operation, that all
major decisions are made in consultation with members of our
Board and relevant Board committees, and that there are three
independent non-executive Directors on our Board offering
independent perspectives, our Board is therefore of the view
that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure sufficient
balance of powers and authorities between our Board and the
management of our Company and that it is in the best interest
of our Group to have Mr. Li taking up both roles. As such, the
roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of our Group
are not being separated pursuant to the requirement under code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board will also continue to
review and monitor the practices of the Company for the purpose
of complying with the CG Code and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices of the Company.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions
of Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed
that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code. During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and
was satisfied with the effectiveness of the corporate governance
policy of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

CG Code provisions A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
segregate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer and
Mr. Li currently holds both of the chairman and chief executive
officer positions, as explained in the paragraph headed “Corporate
Governance Practices” above in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience
in the fields of accounting, finance and business. Their
skills, expertise and number in the Board ensure that strong
independent views and judgement are brought in the Board’s
deliberations and that such views and judgement carry weight
in the Board’s decision-making process. Their presence and
participation also enable the Board to maintain high standards
of compliance in financial and other mandatory reporting
requirements and provide adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company and the
Company.

The Company annually assesses the independence of each
independent non-executive Director during their terms of
appointment. During the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this report, the Company received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors a written confirmation of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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The Board

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, namely
Mr. Li Hao (chairman and chief executive officer), Mr. Zhang
Bizhong and Mr. Xu Shizhen; one non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Yuan Shuntang; and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund, Mr. Chen Zhong
and Mr. Wu Tai Cheung. The number of independent non-
executive Directors represents more than one third of the Board.
The biographical details of and relationships among the members
of the Board are disclosed under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 17 to 23
of this annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business development of the Group and
for effective leadership as all the Executive Directors possess
extensive experience in management and professional knowledge
in business, while the three independent non-executive Directors
possess professional knowledge and broad experience in
finance and business. The Directors are of the opinion that the
present structure of the Board can ensure the independence
and objectivity of the Board and provide a system of checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and the Company.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The statement of the independent auditor of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
page 90 to 103. The Board is responsible for leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s business,
strategic decisions and performance and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board shall
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees. Board meetings are structured so as to
encourage open discussion, frank debate and active participation
by Directors in meetings. The Company provides the Board
with information and explanations that are necessary to enable
Directors to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board.
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Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of
Directors

All Directors are appointed for a specific term. Each of the
Directors of the Company is under a service contract or a letter
of appointment with the Company for a period of one to three
years.

According to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. The Directors to retire by rotation
shall include any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer
himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last re-election
or appointment but as between persons who became or were
last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire will
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined
by lot.

At any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an additional Director to the existing Board
subject to any maximum number of Directors, if any, as may be
determined by the members in general meeting. Any Director
so appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director so
appointed as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and be eligible for re-election at such meeting.
Any Director so appointed by the Board shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

Pursuant to the Articles, Mr. Xu, Mr. Yuan and Mr. Wong will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (‘“AGM”).
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of a diverse Board with
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives to
enhance the quality of its performance. All Board appointments
will be considered against selection criteria.

The Company seeks to achieve the diversity of the Board through
the consideration of a number of factors in the Board members’
selection process, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background of the Board, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry experience, ethnicity
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy and contribution that the selected candidate will
bring to the Board, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the board diversity
policy and discusses any revisions that may be required and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration
and approval.

The Company has also taken, and will continue to take steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including
but not limited to the Board and senior management levels.
While we recognise that gender diversity at the Board level can
be improved given its current composition of all-male Directors,
the Company will continue to apply the principle of appointments
based on merits with reference to the board diversity policy as a
whole.
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Proceedings of Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings

The Board may meet for the dispatch of business, adjourn and
otherwise regulate its meeting and proceedings as it thinks fit
and may determine the quorum necessary for the transaction of
business. An AGM and an extraordinary general meeting called
for the passing of a special resolution shall be called by at least
21 days’ notice in writing, and a meeting of the Company other
than an AGM or an extraordinary general meeting for the passing
of a special resolution shall be called by at least 14 days’ notice
in writing. A meeting of the Board or any committee of the Board
may be held by means of such telephone, electronic or other
communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the
meeting.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a
Board meeting have connected relations, such Director shall not
exercise his/her voting rights on such proposal, nor shall he/she
exercise any voting rights on behalf of other Directors.

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each
Director at the Board, committee and general meetings of the
Company during the Reporting Period:
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BEFK  ARESTESHAMRSTERRE
MR ERKREMEBSITEEAIRRRE

BAT 83114 B B 4 4R AR R 4T 0 A A
AEFEEH ZEEEHRBRRAGHH
442 85

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

LR/ ERETRY
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Ezg ERZEE RE#ZESE #Hzee
Name of Directors EEfR -F =F - g3 BRRAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Li Hao EEEE 6/6" - - - 17
Mr. Zhang Bizhong RUBEE 6/6 - - - 1
Mr. Xu Shizhen AR A 6/6 - - - 17
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Yuan Shuntang RIBELE 6/6 - - - 17
Independent Non-Executive Directors  BYFH1TES
Mr. Chen Zhong BRBLE 6/6 2/2 11 2/2 1
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund BRELE 6/6 2/2° 1/1 22 11
Mr. Wu Tai Cheung AR A 6/6 2/2 1 2/2 11

*

representing chairman of the board, the committees or the general meeting
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The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”), for overseeing aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All committees have been established with
defined written terms of reference, which were posted on the
Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk) and the Company website
(www.szxinken.com). All committees should report to the Board
on their decisions or recommendations made.

All committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 20 September 2019
with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code for
the purpose of making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of the external auditor, to review the
financial statements and related materials and provide advice
in respect of the financial reporting process, and to oversee the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Audit Committee comprises three members, all being
independent non- executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chun
Sek Edmund (Chairman), Mr. Chen Zhong and Mr. Wu Tai
Cheung. The Group’s accounting principles and policies, financial
statements and related materials for the year had been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee
has held two meetings for discussion on the audit and financial
reporting related matters. At the meetings, the Audit Committee
had reviewed the final results for the year ended 31 December
2019, the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2020 and the Group’s internal controls and risk management
for the year ended 31 December 2019. Full minutes of the
Audit Committee meetings are kept by the company secretary.
Draft and final versions of the minutes of the Audit Committee
meetings are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee
for comments and approval and all decisions of the Audit
Committee are reported to the Board subject to applicable
restriction.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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The external auditor was invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings to discuss with the Audit Committee members on the
audit and financial reporting related matters. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee provided the Board with a briefing on the
significant issues after each Audit Committee meeting.

The Group’s final results for the Reporting Period had been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the Board
for approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual
report, and confirmed that this annual report is completed and
accurate, and has complied with the Listing Rules. There is no
disagreement between the Directors and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection and appointment of the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 September
2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code
for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board on
the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to the
Directors and senior management of the Group, to review and
evaluate their performance in order to make recommendations
on the remuneration package of each of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Remuneration Committee
comprises three members, all being independent non- executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Wu Tai Cheung (Chairman), Mr. Chen
Zhong and Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
has held two meeting. Full minutes of the Remuneration
Committee meetings are kept by the company secretary. At the
meeting, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policies of the
Directors and the senior management as well as the remuneration
packages for the year ended 2019 and the year ending 2020 and
the performance of the Directors. Draft and final versions of the
minutes of the Remuneration Committee meetings are circulated
to all members of the Remuneration Committee for comments
and approval and all decisions of the Remuneration Committee
are reported to the Board subject to applicable restriction. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Group has paid and accrued the amounts of approximately
RMBO0.8 million, BMB1.2 million, RMBO0.9 million, RMBO.1 million,
RMBO.1 million, RMBO.1 million and RMBO0.1 million to Mr. Li,
Mr. Zhang, Mr. Xu, Mr. Yuan, Mr. Wong, Mr. Wu and Mr. Chen,
respectively, as Directors’ remuneration, for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Directors’ remuneration is determined based on a variety of
factors such as market conditions and responsibilities assumed
by each Director. As at 31 December 2020, there was no
arrangement in which the Directors waived their remuneration.

Senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 falls within the following bands:
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2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NF
Nil to RMB1,000,000 =T AR¥ 1,000,000 7T 2 2

Nomination Committee

The Board would follow a set of formal, considered and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new directors
to the Board. The appointment of a new director has been
a collective decision of the Board, taking into consideration
the candidate’s qualification, expertise, experience, integrity
and commitment to his/her responsibilities within the Group.
In addition, all candidates to be selected and appointed as a
director must be able to meet the standards set out in Rules 3.08
and 3.09 of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee was established on 20 September
2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code
for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors and the management of the
Board succession. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, all being independent non- executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chen Zhong (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund and
Mr. Wu Tai Cheung.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has
held one meeting. At the meeting, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, reviewed the board diversity policy and other matters
of the Company. Full minutes of the Nomination Committee
meetings are kept by the company secretary. Draft and final
versions of the minutes of the Nomination Committee meetings
are circulated to all members of the Nomination Committee for
comments and approval and all decisions of the Nomination
Committee are reported to the Board subject to applicable
restriction. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the website of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for the
Nomination Committee to consider and make recommendations
to shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or
appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

—
—

) reputation for integrity;

(2) accomplishment and experience in the business in which
the Group is engaged in;

(8) commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest;

(4) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and educational
background and length of service;

(6) qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

(6) the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;
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(7) requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidates would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in
Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for
achieving diversity on the Board; and

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need
for an additional Director or a member of senior management,
the following procedure will be followed:

(1)  The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify
potential candidates based on the criteria as set out in the
selection criteria, possibly with assistance from external
agencies and/or advisors;

(2) The Nomination Committee and/or the Company
Secretary of the Company will then provide the Board
with the biographical details and details of the relationship
between the candidate and the Company and/or Directors,
directorships held, skills and experience, other positions
which involve significant time commitment and any other
particulars required by the Listing Rules, the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and other regulatory requirements for
any candidate for appointment to the Board;

8 The Nomination Committee would then make
recommendation to the Board on the proposed candidate(s)
and the terms and conditions of the appointment;

(4) The Nomination Committee should ensure that the

proposed candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the
Board, being particularly mindful of gender balance;
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In the case of the appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board should obtain all information in relation to the
proposed Director to allow the Board to adequately assess
the independence of the Director in accordance with the
factors set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time; and

The Board will then deliberate and decide on the
appointment based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the Nomination Policy and report to the Board annually.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

1.

to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis
on the Board’s quality, effective internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
the Group’s operations with applicable laws and regulations.

Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.6.5, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Company had arranged to provide trainings
to all the Directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors participated
in the following continuous professional development:
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Training on corporate governance,
director’s duties, environment,
social and governance,

and/or regulatory update
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Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund =EEEA 4
Mr. Wu Tai Cheung RS A& v

EREERBRAF FR 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
TEERRE @)

External Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers, as its external
auditor for the year ended 31 December 2020. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditor. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
fee payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of its audit
services provided to the Company was approximately RMB1.8
million.

Internal Control

The Company does not have an internal audit department and
is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit department within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business and structure. The
Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system and risk management to safeguard the investments
of the shareholders and Group’s assets and reviewing the
effectiveness of such through Audit Committee on an annual
basis. The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system
and risk management of the Group, reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations. An annual review
of the effectiveness of the system of internal controls and risk
management of the Group will be conducted.

During the Reporting Period, the Company also engaged an
independent internal control adviser to carry out review on the
internal control system and risk management system of the
Group. The review involves all material monitoring aspects,
including but not limited to finance, operation, compliance and
risk management. The adviser has conducted analysis and
independent assessment on the adequacy and the effectiveness
of the internal control system and risk management of the Group,
and has submitted the findings and recommmendations to the
Audit Committee and the Board. The Board is of the view that
the internal control measures and risk management in place are
adequate and effective to safeguard the interest of shareholders
and the Group’s assets.

Delegation by the Board

In general, the Board oversees the Company’s strategic
development and determines the objectives, strategies and
policies of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls
operating and financial performance and sets appropriate
policies for risk management in pursuit of the Group’s strategic
objectives. The Board delegates the implementation of strategies
and day-to-day operation of the Group to the management.
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Company Secretary

Ms. Jian has been appointed as the company secretary of
the Company since 21 February 2019 and is responsible for
overseeing all the company secretarial matters of the Group.
In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Jian possesses the necessary
qualification and experience, and is capable of performing the
functions of the company secretary. During the year ended 31
December 2020, Ms. Jian confirmed that she has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training. The Company
will provide fund for Ms. Jian to take no less than 15 hours of
appropriate professional training in each financial year as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an AGM, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting Enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the company secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ Meetings
Shareholders of the Company are requested to follow article
72 of the Articles for including a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set
out above in the paragraph headed “Proceedings at general
meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at
any general meeting unless a notice signed by that person (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office of the
Company provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven days and
that (if then notices are submitted after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director is posted on the website of the
Company. Shareholders or the Company may refer to the above
procedures for putting forward any other proposals at general
meetings.
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Investors Relations

The Company believes that effective communication with the
investors is essential for enhancing investors’ knowledge and
understanding of the Company. Information of the Company is
disseminated to the shareholders in the following manner:

° Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

e  Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the website of the Company and Stock
Exchange, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

e  The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principle place
of business in Hong Kong.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy that aims to provide
the guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends
are to be declared and paid to the Shareholders and the level
of dividend to be paid. Under the Dividend Policy, in deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board shall take into account, among others,

(1) the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

(2) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(8) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

EREERBRAF FR 2020

REEBRE

ARBRA BREEFRFARNBRERN
HRREEHARANRBEL THEBREE -
ARRPEB TG ARBREEER -

)
Hp

BRREX2FERPHRARRSE

s RELITRAINFEREST NALQ
AR MEUETIEFERTPBHEER
FoARTIEREMAERRERER &

s ARAFRBERARETAEFTSHERRMNEA
BB BB

ARABFEREREERE MR ERA R
REBEEREENBR RARBLORURE
EF NaBEERARNES WHEFSH
ARABEEAAR AIBFEARAREE
MERERME -

IR 2R

ARBERM—EAREBRR BEERESS
EERSRBRREIRRIKMERE AR T IR
OB B FRREES - RERBEREK - R
EEEEBRNBRERBERSSHE &
EZeREE(EPEEBE)ATRE:

(1) ARENERNMFEMMHERR

@ AEENEHLEESFFR BEAZH
FRER KBRS

@) ARFURAEEEXEABNRE R
A R AT TR 4



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

ﬁ% ésﬁ ')F& == II\E

(4) the Group’s liquidity position;

(5) interest of shareholder;

(6) taxation consideration;

(7) potential effect on creditworthiness;

(8) the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and

(9) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
is also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong
and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association
and any other applicable laws and regulations. The Company
does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The
Company’s dividend distribution record in the past may not be
used as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends
that may be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and
the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

Constitutional Documents

On 20 September 2019, the Company has adopted an amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association which
had been uploaded to the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed above, there had been
no significant changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Scope and Reporting Period

The Board is pleased to present its first Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) report, which highlights its ESG
performance from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the
“Reporting Period”).

This ESG report was prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as described in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules and Guidance set out by the Stock Exchange.

The Group is engaged in provision of electronic manufacturing
service and over 90% of its revenue derived from the PRC
market. The scope of this ESG report covers the Group’s
business in the PRC, where the Group’s principal operations and
manufacturing plant are located (the “Factory”), and its major
revenue is derived. The Group’s operations outside the PRC
are not included in the scope as they do not have significant
environmental and social impacts.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group fully understands that balancing the expectations
and needs of different stakeholders is the focus of corporate
sustainable development. Through listening to the interests of our
stakeholders, we understand the sustainable development risks
and opportunities confronting the Group from different aspects,
and develop corresponding policies and implement various
environmental, social and governance measures. The Group
maintains an open and transparent dialogue with its stakeholders
through various channels including meetings, trade exhibitions,
surveys, seminars and workshops and reflect their opinions
in the report. The data and information in this ESG report are
sourced from the relevant documents, reports, statistical data,
management and operation information collected by the Group.
The Board has reviewed the contents of this ESG report.
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The following table summarises the main expectations and | 7= 4 it 7N £= & Ffr 55 Bl 49 = E 5 25 M0 B & &Y
concerns of the key stakeholders identified by the Group, andthe F EHIEFMATE T ZBE A REEN S

corresponding management responses.

B f& -

Stakeholders Communication Channel Management responses/Key Concerns
MzEEE BERE ERELE TERE
Governments and e Compliance with laws and regulations e Tax compliance
regulatory bodies RSN E Drrgs) MIBEEH
BT R EEE WS e Corresponding government policies ~ ® Regulatory compliance
AR R BT IR SR EEAR
e Business ethics
EES- N
Shareholders e Financial results e Financial performance
e B E i BRI
e Corporate report and announcement e  Corporate governance
PRBBERRE PERER
e General meeting e Risk management and internal control
BREAE B Bge B B % 1A B BE %
Employees e Career development platform e Promotion mechanism
(== BEERTA EPAR: 1
e Salary and benefits e Competitive salary and employee
e mEf benefits
o Safe working environment BEHF NN RIEERET
Z2TERIR e To provide trainings for employees and
strengthen their safety awareness
RESRHBIINEAZZEH
Customers e Customer compliant mechanism e Product liability
B B R A e EmaE
e Customer rights and interests e Customer privacy protection
protection HERBALIRE
BEEERRE
Suppliers e Integrity cooperation e To build a responsible supply chain
HER HEHAE ByaEEaHtEsE
e Business ethics and credibility e To perform the contract according to
EEIESWEEES law
BEBITEH

Community and the public

Environmental protection
RER#E
Public donation

DIETAM

e Community investment

HEREA
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

With reference to the scopes as required under the ESG
Reporting Guide and taking into consideration of the Group’s
business operations, the Group identified the following
environmental, social and operating issues that are material
and relevant to the Group’s business operations during the year
ended 31 December 2020. If the Group does not implement
effective strategies to monitor and solve these issues, these
issues may affect the Group’s financial condition or operating
performance. Further, the Group made a materiality assessment
on these environmental, social and operating issues by
conducting interviews with its stakeholders.

Environmental issues Social issues

BEEMTM

KB2ERE HEREARESIESIMEEN
HE UNEEBEAEEXEBEEER HE2=
T_TFFT_A=ZF+—HLEFE AKEE
BRIATHEAEEBEKSERBHERNRE -
MtEREERE - WASEREES SRR
EEE R RRIEFARRE BB E Y
EREBHT AR A E LS - I - A&
EEEEFSEEEETHRERERSE -
(e kEEMBEETEEEFNMG -

Operating issues

RIGRE HERE EIERE
1.  Greenhouse gas emissions 8. Local community engagement  15. Economic value generated
2. Energy consumption 9.  Community investment 16. Corporate governance
3.  Water consumption 10. Occupational health and safety 17. Anti-corruption
4. Waste 11. Labour standards in supply 18. Supply chain management
5. Saving energy measures chain 19. Customer satisfaction
6. Use of raw materials and 12. Training and development 20. Customer privacy
packaging materials 13. Employee welfare
7. Compliance with laws 14. Inclusion and equal
and regulations relating to opportunities
environmental protection
1. REREHEN 8. EiitELH 15. FIEEKEEE
2. BEIREFE 9. HEEKE 16. REER
3. #&K 10. BEREREZS 17. RES
4. EEEY 11, HEESTIRE 18. ftrEsEE IR
5. ENREIEHE 12. BIIRERE 19. BEFmEE
6. EARMEREEDE 13. EEEA 20. BFMLE
7. BITRBREEEEEER 14, H@ERTERS

The Group prioritised the above-mentioned environmental, social
and operating issues in terms of their importance to the Group’s
stakeholders and business operations.

Importance to the Group’s stakeholders
and business operations

HEKEANFZEBEERXBELENEEM

AEECELEEB LARE HEREER
BHAEEFmEREMEBELENERE

ESG risks
RiE - HERERER

High = 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,14, 15,16, 17, 18, 19, 20
Medium s 10, 11,12, 13
Low 1§ 8,9

Based on the results of the Group’s materiality assessment, the
Group would formulate and implement appropriate strategies to
monitor and solve the identified issues and to achieve sustainable
business development.

44  EmmemERAEARAF 5382020

BREASENEZUEFGHER AREKH
E R E I E S RS AR R R E IR ]
BY BRAIFEEBER -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RIE - tERERHE @)

A. Environment A BiE

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to protect
the environment and it has implemented policies to
reduce emissions and improve the efficiency in the use of
resources. In addition, we regularly hold training activities to
raise employees’ awareness of environmental protection.
The contents of training include environmental pollution and
management conditions of the company, environmental
policies and guidelines, environmental laws and regulations
and other requirements, the company’s environmental
factors and management systems, and energy conservation
and emission reduction.

The Group’s operations are subject to certain environmental
requirements pursuant to the laws in the PRC, such as the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (9 2E A & A
IRIBIRFEX), the Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact
Assessment (FF#E A R X MR IRE R Z B X), the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
(2 A R FEABE KRS P78 7%), the Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (9 2
ARHEFBE KRS HEPE%), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Pollution From Environmental
Noise (2 A R HF1BIRIR LR 2 )52 07)67%) and the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste (F % A & 50 B [& 88 RE ¥1)5 23R
BEHIRE).

These laws and regulations govern a broad range of
environmental matters, including air pollution, noise
emissions and water and waste discharge. The Group’s
business operations in the PRC should comply with laws
and regulations concerning the environment protection.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
did not record any non-compliance with applicable
environmental requirements that resulted in prosecution,
penalty, administrative fine or sanction being imposed
against the Group.
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A.1 Emissions

In order to comply with the applicable environmental
protection laws, the Group has implemented
environmental protection policies, reducing air and
water pollution, paper consumption, and electricity
consumption. During the year ended 31 December
2020, sources of the Group’s emissions mainly

A1 BERR
HBETERABREE A£EEE
MEEBRBE R DR RAKFL -
REEREUAREEE - BHE T

included consumption of petrol and electricity
consumption.

U)

46 =

Air pollutant emissions

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
air pollutant emissions were mainly related to
petrol consumption for the use of the Group’s
self-owned vehicles, which contributed to the
emission of 240.50 kg (2019: 252.36 kg) of
nitrogen oxides (NOx), 0.32 kg (2019: 0.34 kg) of
sulphur oxides (SOx) and 23.06 kg (2019: 24.20
kg) of respiratory suspended particles (PM).

Greenhouse gas emissions

TEL-AS+—BIEER A%
45 5 10 SEOR 2 B 9 L
BB MR -

7= RS Y HE

HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—
HIEFE Z=R52UWHHER
REZHFERAAEEGHERE
FrBfER A MBI - EEHEW
REAIL P (NOx) 24050 F 52 (=
T— ALF: 252.36TF %) W
1E¥(SOx) 0.32 F % (ZZF— A,
F:084F %) KA A BT HE
HI(PM)23.06 F 572 (ZF— N4F -
2420F5%) °

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=1+t—HBLFE

2020 2019
— 7 — ﬂi 7 j—L E'E
Emission (in tCO_e)
Scope of greenhouse gas B E
emissions BERBHEREE (H-—FthEE
Scope 1 Direct emission HE1EEFER
Combustion of petrol for mobile
vehicles FTE UM PR 52.6 53.5
Scope 2 Indirect emission EIE 2 EEHEN
Purchased electricity SNEEE 431.8 454.8
Total Mt 484.4 508.3
Note: Bz -
1) Emission factors were made by reference to Appendix 1) MRIERSBEIEHRE  BRIEBREHSA

27 of the Main Board Listing Rules and their referred

documentation as set out by the Stock Exchange, unless

stated otherwise.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group’s activities contributed to 484.4 tonnes
(2019: 508.3 tonnes) (0.01 tCO,/m?) of carbon
dioxide equivalent (carbon dioxide, methane,
nitrous oxide and hydrofluorocarbons) emission.
Details of the Group’s measures to reduce
the consumption of resources and the related
emissions are set out below. As a result of these
measures, the employees’ awareness of reducing
the consumption of resources and the related
emissions has been increased.

Petrol consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group’s motor vehicles travelled approximately
136,344 km (2019: 129,909 km), which
consumed 22,775 litres (2019: 23,177 litres) of
petrol and contributed to 52.6 tonnes (2019:
53.5 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions. To reduce the emissions arising from
petrol consumption, the Group encourages its
employees to use public transport when they
attend business activities. For business activities
that take place within walking distance, the Group
encourages its employees to walk or cycle to the
destination.

Electricity consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group consumed 536,889 kWh (2019: 565,151
kWh) of electricity (795 kWh (2019: 684 kWh) per
employee) in connection with its daily business
operations, which contributed to 431.9 tonnes
(2019: 454.8 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions. To reduce the emissions arising from
electricity consumption, the Group encourages
its employees to switch off the lights and other
electricity appliances when they leave the office
and production premises.
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ERE

(i)

Hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group generated nil hazardous waste. The Group
has engaged a qualified waste collector to control
the generation of hazardous waste. The Group
will strive to maintain generation of hazardous
waste through upgrading technologies whenever
possible.

Non-hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group generated a total of 9.6 tonnes (2019;
10.2 tonnes) of non-hazardous waste (0.01
tonnes (2019: 0.01 tonnes) per employee). The
major non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group were packaging materials, metal scraps,
paper waste, and sawdust, will be collected
and weighed before being recycled or sold to
recycling company. The Group regularly reminds
its employees to use resources efficiently and try
to avoid the generation of waste. As a result, the
employees’ awareness of waste management
has been increased.

Water consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group consumed 42,400 m® (2019: 42,838 m?®) of
water (62.8 m® (2019: 51.9 m?®) per employee) in
connection with its daily business operations. To
reduce the emissions arising from water usage,
the Group encourages its employees to conserve
water and remember to turn off the water tap after
use. As a result, the employees has increased
their awareness to consume water usage. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
did not encounter any problems in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose. Further, the Group did not
consume a significant amount of water that was
and disproportional to the scale of its business
operations.

BEFEIRB R AR ik 2020
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A2 EREH

A.2 Use of resources

In order to reduce use of resources in our daily
operations, the Factory maintains its operations in
accordance with the guidelines set forth under the
“Environment Management Policy and Objectives” and
“Administrative Measures for Energy Consumption”.
In addition, the “2017 Working Plan for Energy
Conservation and Emission Reduction” was formulated
and publicity and education activities were carried out
for the purposes of enhancing the awareness of energy
conservation and emission reduction among our
employees. At the same time, the Factory streamlined
energy-saving and emission reduction measures and
strived to reduce energy consumption and costs. To
improve work efficiency, the Factory established an
energy saving and emission reduction working group
to monitor the use of resources in the Factory and
implemented the policies of appropriate incentives and
penalties.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group’s business activities did not cause significant
adverse impact on the environment and natural
resources. The Group’s total consumption of electricity,
water and packaging materials during the year
ended 31 December 2019 together with the relevant
conservation measures adopted by the Group are
detailed in the section headed “A.1 Emissions” above.
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To further improve the use of resources, the Group RE—TSHREERER ~5EE
takes the following actions on an ongoing basis: FEEHEUATITE -

Item Measures

HAH #iE

Electricity saving

Water saving

Vehicle management

Office supplies management

1) Minimize use of air conditioners by maintaining a minimum air
conditioning temperature of 26°C in the office area
BARAEEBRHRFRIEZEARE26 EUKAEERDEREH

2)  Reduce the lighting time by turning off all lighting equipment before
leaving office
BEFA S N ERIRABI PTG R R - DUR D REAR

3) Turn off the power of all devices before leaving office to reduce the
standby time of such devices
BRI N ERIBIPI A REHEIR - AR 3% 5 3248 1) 15 B

1) Turn off the faucet immediately after washing hands
BEF 1 BVRERA K BESE

2)  Improve daily maintenance of water and heating pipelines to prevent
leakage of water
HEFKMEREENHBHEE - AR IERK

3) Use recycled water for the spray-work painting booth located within
the Factory
TR H R 5 A B A K

1)  Turn off air-conditioning and engine of vehicles when parked for a
long period to reduce oil consumption
= R ] 15 B B (2 BT B2 0 0 22 SR R 38 B DARL D i

2)  Formulate maintenance plans and regularly inspect vehicles
i E S 5T 813 F B =W

1)  Use recycled paper
{5 A8 [B] Y A o=

2)  Use double-sided paper
PR T ED

3) Promote paperless office by using electronic communications to
reduce paper
BAETHRERIAKRERAE  RESKLEHAD

4)  Encourage personal use of drinking cups for less use of disposable
cups
SR A ELA KR - Ol — IR K MR B 5 R

5) Improve the purchase and distribution policies of office supplies by
prioritizing use of energy-saving and environmental products
RABEEATERREGNEN L ARNEE RO BER

As a result, the Group’s employees are more aware of It AEEESE T BB B A
the importance of using resources efficiently. BRMNEZENE -
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B. Social B. &
1. Employment and labour practices 1. ERERFIER
() Employment 0 ==
Total employees and turnover 1ESBER K E
The Group had a total number of 675 (2019: RZZEZEF+HA=+—8 "
826) full-time employees as at 31 December AEBAEXE G5 (ZE—N
2020. During the year ended 31 December 2020, F:826) ZEWEE -HEZ
the Group closely monitored the number of E-TFEF_A=T—HIHF
employees that were required to run its business B AEEEYERLEEXD
operations. s BiE B AL -
Set forth below are the distribution of the Group’s AEEEER-_Z=_ZF+=
employees as at 31 December 2020 by gender A=+—HAiZMth R FiEREl
and age group: SR HEREHINEAT

Distribution of employees by gender

EMRB S NES S MR

Female
7%
34%

® Female Zf @ Male 3%

Distribution of employees by age group
BERREADNEED HIER
31-40
31-405%
27%

41-50
41-507%
12%

Above 50
5057 A _E
2%

30 or below
30BREIA T
59%

.
@® 30 or below ® 31-40 ® 41-50 Above 50
30BR AT 31-405% 41-505% 505% bA
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According to the “Anti-Discrimination Policy”
of the Factory, the expertise of job applicants
will determine their employment status. The
remuneration, bonus, allowances and other
forms of subsidies payable by the Factory to our
employees are subject to their work performance,
expertise, and competence, regardless of their
sex, race, religious beliefs, age, disability, sexual
orientation, nationality, political views, social
status, social and racial backgrounds, and
other factors. The “Anti-Discrimination Policy”
also protects the rights and interests of female
employees, under which, marriage or pregnancy
discrimination is not permitted for employment
of women, and therefore no pregnancy test
shall be performed on any female job applicant.
The Factory shall make proper arrangements
to prevent the well-being of pregnant women
from being affected by work. In case that the
management or external service providers
are in violation of the “Anti-Discrimination
Policy”, they shall be subject to penalties. Our
employees may lodge complaints with our
administrative department via a complaint hotline
or the suggestion box, and the administrative
department will conduct a regular review each
week, launch investigation, and address any
violation if identified. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not identify any complaint case
from our employees. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not identify any complaint case
from our employees.

RAR TREA [ 2R RAR BUR ]
fERREMBRIREHERMMR -
TR TREZHM 1B
R R A M 3 RO R B BUR
REEBWTIERR - KB
HomAwER B RH
B0 F8 - B&R - EIE -
B BUAEE e
HeNBRESSEMBRAR-
[ZE1F R BUR | IR E R
EfEa METBELESMELE
BEACHEXERRE  T7H
ERREETZR - ITHERZ
FIFRELH  BELHRR
REXERENI(E- 5B
ABSIMNBRBABERIEELE
KRR FERIED - EE
TRA] 35 B IR AR AR B RAR A
1T BR AR B & - 17 AR & 1B E
B - RFFEE I A EREM
ERIENRERIR o RIRE HfE -
AREE I FEAT]E B RFFEM -

Year 2020 2019
F 45 i —E-NF
Employee turnover rate EEmAX 126% 115%
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During the Reporting Period, the Group
understood that the turnover rate remained high.
In the future, we will step up the implementation
of measures to lower the employee turnover rate,
including reviewing the remuneration packages
within the industry, improving the respective
treatment and talent development mechanism,
and providing more training and assisting our
employees in preparing their career plan. In
addition, we will commit ourselves to improving
the management mechanism of the Group, while
cultivating the teamwork culture.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
identify any non-compliance case related to
employment.

Employee benefits and welfare

The Group enters into employment contracts
with its employees and the employment contract
terms were stipulated under the principles of
fairness, voluntarism, mutual consent, integrity
and credibility. The remuneration package offered
to employees includes salary, bonuses and other
subsidies. In general, the remuneration package
is based on each employee’s qualifications,
position, seniority and work performance. The
Group carries out an annual review system to
assess the performance of its employees, which
forms the basis of decisions with respect to salary
raises, bonuses and promotions.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group maintains social insurance for its
employees pursuant to the applicable PRC laws
and regulations by making contributions to the
mandatory social insurance and housing provident
funds which provide basic retirement, medical,
work-related injury, maternity and unemployment
benefits.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group complies with the Labour Law of the PRC
and did not experience any significant disputes
with its employees or any disruption to business
operations due to labour disputes. In addition,
the Group did not experience any difficulties in
the recruitment and retention of experienced core
staff or skilled personnel.

Labour standards

Given that protection of human rights represents
fundamental conditions for sustainability, the
Group is committed to safeguarding human rights
and adopts the zero-tolerance approach towards
child labour or forced labour. In compliance
with the relevant national laws and regulations
governing child labour, the Factory formulates
the “Ban on Employment of Child Labour and
Minors”, according to which, the Factory will carry
out stringent inspection over the backgrounds
and identification documents of the job applicants
during recruitment to ensure that they meet
the statutory age for employment and prevent
use of child labour. The Factory also sets up
internal whistle-blowing channels and remedial
measures with respect to use of child labour. In
case that any case related to use of child labour
is identified, the Factory will immediately settle
the due remuneration and contact their guardians
before escorting them back their home. All
expenses and travel costs will be covered by the
Factory.
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As forced labour is in violation with the basic
human rights and international conventions
on labour, the Factory has formulated the
“Prohibition of Forced Labour” policy, pursuant
to which, the Factory makes clear its stance
to all employees that unfair restriction of the
employment relationship between our employees
and the Factory in any form will not be imposed
and that no remuneration, payment in kind or
identification documents will be withheld. The
legislations safeguard the rights and freedom of
any employee to terminate a labour contract. In
case of any suspected case related to forced
labour, any employee may report to the Factory
via the complaint hotline or the suggestion box so
that the Factory may timely resolve such issues.

To enhance the understanding of the labour
standards among our employees, the Factory
incorporated control of juvenile workers,
identification of child labor and remedial
measures, and elimination of forced labour into
our human resources and expertise training.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
identify any non-compliance case related to child
labour or forced labour.

Equal opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, job
advancement, training and development, etc.
Employees are not discriminated against or
deprived of such opportunities on the basis of
race, nationality, religion, physical condition,
disability, gender, pregnancy, sexual orientation,
political status, age and any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable law. Employees shall
not act in discriminatory manner or they can be
subject to disciplinary actions.
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(i)

(i)

Employee relations

The Directors consider that it is important to
maintain good relationship with employees.
The Group maintains regular communications
with its employees by arranging gatherings,
celebration activities and trainings. Through these
activities, the Group would collect feedback
from its employees on job satisfactions and
their expectations on the Group and would
implement appropriate strategies to improve the
work environment and its relationship with the
employees.

Employee health and safety

The Group places emphasis on occupational
health and work safety. It provides a safe
working environment and training sessions for its
employees to ensure that they can work safely. It
has also implemented a system of recording and
handling accidents. Further, the Group also has
dedicated personnel responsible for administering
the internal worker safety policies, providing
relevant training and education, and conducting
regular inspections. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group had not experienced
any material safety accidents or been penalised
for any non-compliance relating to work safety
laws and regulations.

Occupational health and safety data

(i)
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(iv) Development and Training

The Group’s various types of employee training
not only help employees improve their skills
sets and operational efficiency, but also provide
an opportunity for their personal development.
According to the “Human Resources
Management Procedure” for the Factory, the
administrative department shall formulate
training programs, under which, each employee
is required to receive position-related training,
including in-house and external training. Training
effectiveness will be assessed by written or oral
tests, hand-on operations, spot check and other
measures. Employees whose specific work has
significant impacts on the environmental and
occupational safety and health will be assessed
by the administrative department for their
qualifications, and the assessment scope will
cover their academic background, competence,
training, and/or qualifications. Such employees,
only if determined as eligible, will be permitted to
take up the position.

During the Reporting Period, the Factory focused
on training related to production safety, hygienic
practices and personal health, medical treatment
and first aid, and environmental protection. During
the Reporting Period, the Factory arranged more
employee training, as a result of which, training
hours per employee increased by approximately
two hours as compared to that last year. In
the future, the Factory will improve its training
programs and the percentage of employee
training.
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Training Focuses During the Reporting Period

& A 615 5| E

Trainees Training Program Description

FIH R BFIRE

Entry-level employees Various systems related to working hours, remuneration calculation, and
FiEE T remuneration package and fringe benefits

All-level employees

F2EET

First-line managers
EEEEET

Employees who have access to
chemicals and warehousing staff
EREERNEIRAEEER

Employees who have access dangerous
equipment

ERERRENET

Security personnel and emergency staff
REZEREZE

Manufacturing department
B3t

58 mmammaRAT £ 2020
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Employee Manual, and factory-wide rules and regulations
BT FM - BRmA

Occupational health and safety, and environmental awareness
BERERZE BREH

Knowledge related to fire safety and counter-terrorism
HEEE - RBE 23

Hygienic practices and personal health, and medical treatment and

first aid
HEBEMEARERBESK

Pre-employment skills, on-the-job operations, product quality control
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Workplace hygienic practices and personal health and safety
EEREET

Fire safety knowledge and emergency escape drills
B2 A R A FE =B AR

Counter-terrorism knowledge

R R 2 mH

Medical treatment and first aid

BEESN

ISO9001 certification knowledge and product quality control
ISO 9001 AN &8 & E in '& = ¥ )

Know-how on quality control

an 1% R0

On-site management practices and 5S management system
RS ERBERSSEEER

Standards for Safe Access to Chemicals and Personal Protective

Equipment
LEm BAARERELEERIRERS

Safe Use of Dangerous Equipment
ERRELEER
Emergency Know-how for Firefighters and Emergency Staff
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On-site management practices and 5S management system
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2. Operating practices

U)

Supply chain management

The Group values its collaboration with suppliers,
and believes that an established partnership
with suppliers can help the Group continuously
optimize its operation process and improve
its operation quality. The major materials as
purchased by the Factory include wood, steel,
electronic components and packaging materials.
Production of relevant materials will involve
matters that affect the environment, such as
emissions of wastewater and waste, while use
of chemicals will also affect the health and safety
of our employees. To improve and control the
environment and social risks of our suppliers,
the Factory has formulated the “Supplier
Social Responsibility Management Measures”,
which provides guidelines as to the review and
management of the performance of our suppliers,
as well as requiring the suppliers to comply with
the requirements under the “Business Social
Compliance Initiative” (hereinafter referred to as
the “BSCI”).
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The BSCI comprises a set of universally accepted
management tools and factory audit standards
designed for corporate social responsibility.
Suppliers shall be required to comply with the
code of conduct under the BSCI, which includes:

e Freedom of association and right of
collective bargaining agreement;

e  Anti-discrimination;

° Fair remuneration policy;

e Lawful labour hours;

e  Occupational health and safety;

e  Prohibition of child labour;

e  Protection of minor workers;

° Lawful labour employment contracts;
e  Prohibition of forced labour;

° Environmental protection;

° Business ethics practices.

The Factory requires that the human resources
and administrative department shall perform
factory audit over suppliers under the BSCI
and submit a results report on their social
responsibility. Subject to the rating standards of
the BSCI, where any supplier is found using child
labour or practicing forced labour, such supplier
will immediately be rated as “unacceptable”.
The Factory will request such “unacceptable”
supplier to make rectifications, during which, all
outstanding production orders will be suspended.
Meanwhile, any supplier is required to enter into
the “Social Responsibility Undertaking”, whereby
undertaking to comply with and fulfil the social
responsibility requirements.
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(i)

How the BSCI factory audit rating is implemented:
the BSCI factory audit certification standard no
longer adopts the point-based rating system but
a five-letter (namely, A, B, C, D, and E) rating
system.

(1) For any factory is rated as A (outstanding),
its compliance rate ranges from 86% to
100%;

(2) For any factory is rated as B (good), its
compliance rate ranges from 75% to 85%;

(8) For any factory is rated as C (acceptable), its
compliance rate ranges from 51% to 70%;

(4) For any factory is rated as D (insufficient), its
compliance rate ranges from 30% to 50%;

(6) For any factory is rated as E (unacceptable),
its compliance rate ranges from 0% to 29%.

Product responsibility

Attaching great importance to product quality and
safety, the Group continues to monitor quality
and implement safety standards. The Group
strictly monitors the entire production process
from receipt of materials, production to product
shipment.

(i)
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Materials required by the Factory for production
purposes include wood, accessories, steel,
etc., 95% of which are raw materials that have
received the ISO 9001 quality management
system certification. To manage materials, the
Factory has formulated the “Materials Inspection
Instruction” to regulate the quality inspection
standards for materials so as to ensure that no
non-compliant materials will enter the production
processes. According to purchase contracts, the
inspectors will verify whether the orders, subject
matters, specifications, quality compliance,
and others as set forth in purchase contracts
are consistent. If identified as compliant, such
materials may be warehoused. Any material
identified as non-compliant is required to
be separated with a label, which will not be
warehoused or used for production processes.

Upon completion of products, the manufacturing
department is required to carry out inspection
work in accordance with the “PQC Operation
Instruction” and “Inspection and Test
Management Procedures”. The inspection scope
shall cover parts pending production, semi-
finished products, finished products not yet
stored and production samples.

Preparation Before Inspection
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In-progress Inspection
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Treatment upon Inspection
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Ensure documents and inspection
instruments related to products
are all in place
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Arrange inspection orders based
on the production processes,

delivery schedule, and production

progress
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Verify whether products are
consistent with those set
forth in orders
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Check items required for
inspection under the
standards
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Use proper equipment to
conduct various inspections
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Separate and isolate compliant
products and non-compliant
products
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Box finished products and
complete the warehousing
procedures with labels and
QC marks attached
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The Factory emphasizes the disposal of non-
compliant products, in which case, products
identified as non-compliant will be disposed in
accordance with the “Non-compliant Product
Control Procedures”. The Factory has also
developed the “Product Recall Procedures”.
In case of any product sold to the market but
identified as having safety hazards, the Factory
will recall and deal with the same according to the
established procedures, ensuring product quality
and public safety. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not identify any case related to
product recall.

The Factory has prepared the “Procedures to
Use, Manage, and Control Product Certification
Labels”, under which, all certified products
must be attached with the certification labels
prior to their shipments. Use of compulsory
certification marks shall be in compliance with the
requirements under the Management Measures
on Compulsory Product Certification Mark. Use
of compulsory certification marks is not permitted
for uncertified products, non-compliant products,
and certified products that are modified without
certification by any certification body, none of
which therefore is permitted for shipment.

The Group places a high value on smooth
communications channels with our customers to
fulfil customer demands. Our complaint channel
enables our customers to submit complaints
and suggestions regarding service or commaodity
quality. According to our “Customer Complaint
Handling Procedures”, upon receiving customer
complaints, our sales department will e-mail
the relevant complaints to the quality control
department, while the quality control manager
will review such customer complaints before
appointing our quality engineers to launch
investigation into the said customer complaints.
The quality engineers will analyze the causes
and determine which department shall be held
accountable before the follow-up procedures
take place. The sales department will respond to
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the customers in connection with the merits of
the complaint and corrective actions to be taken
or precautions to be implemented. In addition,
customer satisfaction in settlement results will
be surveyed until the relevant complaint is fully
resolved. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not identify any customer complaint.

As part of good corporate governance maintained
by the Group, security of customer data is also
the key to cultivating a long standing trusted
relationship with our customers. To avert
information risk, effectively secure information,
and enhance the responsiveness of processing
information, the Factory has formulated the
“Corporate Information Management Measures”,
pursuant to which, in-house information regarding
our operations will be managed under various
security levels. In addition, publication guidelines
and directories for confidential information will be
established to ensure information is published
and communicated in a correct and controllable
manner.

In connection with advertising, the Group has
appointed legal advisors to provide legal opinions
and perform their duty of oversight. In case that
any advertisement is found false or exaggerating,
we will immediately cease to circulate such
false advertisement and eliminate the negative
effects by issuing a clarification announcement
accordingly. In the future, the Group will establish
advertisement management policies to enhance
our management of product responsibility.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not

identify any non-compliance case related to
product responsibility.
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(i)

Intellectual Property Rights and Information
Security

The Group registered various trademarks for the
Group itself and its products in the PRC, Germany
and Hong Kong to foster its corporate image. The
Group relies on the relevant laws and regulations
to protect its brand names, trademarks and other
intellectual property rights.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group was not aware of any material infringement
(i) by the Group of any intellectual property rights
owned by any third parties; or (ii) by any third
party of any intellectual property rights owned
by the Group. Further, there were no pending
or threatened material claims made against the
Group, nor had there been any material claims
made by the Group against third parties, with
respect to the infringement of intellectual property
rights owned by the Group.

Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption is already one of the basic
principles for the international community to
define corporate social responsibility. The Chinese
government has been playing an active role in
carrying out anti-corruption campaigns in recent
years. The Group adopts a zero-tolerance policy
on acts of corruption in any form, including bribery
and extortion, fraud and money laundering, by
undertaking that it conducts its business in an
honest, ethical and good faith manner. The “Anti-
corruption and Anti-bribery Control Procedures”
of the Group clearly stipulates that our employees
are prohibited from providing special treatments
and seeking any form of benefits from our
customers, suppliers or any business associates.
The Factory encourages our employees and
external stakeholders to report corruption
incidents, in which case, whistle-blowers will
be properly rewarded with their identities kept
confidential, and they will be provided with
personal protection and job security.

(i)
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The Factory has specified the code of conduct
for our employees in its “Business Ethics and
Integrity Control Procedures” to demonstrate
the Group’s determination against employees
seeking personal gains by abusing their powers
or by taking advantage of their positions. All
employees at the Factory shall be required to
enter into the “Employee Undertaking”, and our
employee training also emphasizes the business
integrity policy and anti-corruption contents.
Any employee in violation of the business ethics
and integrity control procedures will be subject
to corporate penalties. To enhance cooperation
with suppliers on integrity, the Factory and our
suppliers have entered into the “Business Integrity
Cooperation Agreement” to clarify the rules to
prevent either side from committing bribery, as
well as establishing whistle-blowing procedures
for corruptive actions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
identify any non-compliance case or lawsuit
related to corruption.

Community investment

The Group acknowledges corporate social
responsibility and allocates resources to satisfy the
needs of the community. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group focused on environmental
protection as well as cultural and sport promotion.
The Group encouraged its employees to participate
charitable events. Going forward, the Group will
continue to focus on community needs and increase
its investment in community.
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B HEREA

The ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

FEHE - -BH-

—BEERBRENER

WE @)

Description

it

BEARABEXZMAERDIARE -«
ERERREESINB RS

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B #ERERBEEE
3-8 1]

Aspect Al: Emissions
A1JEE © BB
General Disclosure

— kR

KPI A1.1
(“comply or explain”)
R A IR IR AL
(ME<PeERE])

KPI A1.2
(“comply or explain”)
RS A IR A2
([E=rekfErE])

KPI A1.3
(“comply or explain”)
FAR A BIETEALS
([E~FekfERE])

Information on:

BRABERIOAERBHR - AKKRL

WHHES EENEEEVNES

FHY

(@ the policies; and
B R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and
nonhazardous waste.
BFYHBETAREAZENEHA
FERDERONER -

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

BEnE 2B M AR RR R B -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in
tonnes) and intensity.

BEnE 2R AR RR R B -

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FEEEEEMES (UETE) RER
J_g o

A.  ENVIRONMENT
B

A.1 Emissions

B

A.1 Emissions — (i) Greenhouse gas
emissions

PRI — (i) )R E R BEHE R

A.1 Emissions — (i) Hazardous waste
(Not applicable — Explained)
R — (i) BEEEEY (TER —
)
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEZE - EM@ - Description RE -  HEREARREEE
—REBRBRENES it 4-i 3l

Aspect Al: Emissions

AlEE : ¥R

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in  A.1  Emissions — (i) Non-hazardous

(“comply or explain”)
FR B BIEIEA1.4
([E=FekfERE])

KPI A1.5
(“comply or explain”)
BASEAERIEIRA15
(ME<pekfERE])

KPI A1.6
(“comply or explain”)
RSB RIEIRA16
(ME<PemRE])

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
A2fEH : BRER

General Disclosure

—PRRIRER

KPI A2.1
(“comply or explain”)
BASR AR BB TREA2.1
(lE=F ]

KPI A2.2
(“comply or explain”)
BASR AR IETRA2.2
(TE=Fei ]

tonnes) and intensity.
FrEEREEYES (UETE) RER
J_g )

Description of reduction initiatives and
results achieved.

R PR i R TS AR -

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HEEAEERESEDN L R
BEEV R B SR PSR ©

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BERERAER(BIERIR  KREAMR
MEL) BIBUER ©

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and
intensity.
BRENESNEE R SEEERE
HRERTE -

Water consumption in total and intensity
BEKEREE -
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waste
PEm—(ii) FEEEEY)

A.1 Emissions

HER

A.1 Emissions — (i) Hazardous waste
R — (i) B EREEY
Emissions — (i) Non-hazardous
waste

PE— (i) B ERE Y

A

A.2 Use of resources
BIRGE A
A.1 Emissions
PERL
A.1 Emissions — (v) Water consumption

PER—(v) K E#E
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EE -
—REBRBRENES

Description
it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B HERERBEEE
—3:0 1]

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
A2fEH : ERER
KPI'A2.3
(“comply or explain”)
RS IR A2.3
(TE=<FeirE])

KPI A2.4
(“comply or explain”)
R ERIEIRA2.4
(ME<FeiERE])

KPI A2.5
(“comply or explain”)
R EBIEEA2.5
(TE=Fei ]

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.
it g2 R 2 A R a5t & PTG AR o

Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
faSKEGE R KR EB B EREE -
AR AR T8I RPAAERR -

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and with
reference to per unit produced.
XA BEME R EE (BEETE)
RErESNAE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

ASEE - RERBEARER
General Disclosure
— R R

KPI A3.1
(“comply or explain”)
A8 A IR 1R A
(ME<reifRE])

Policies on minimising the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.
WMIREITABRE N BAEREKE
REEHBR -

Description of the significant impacts of

activities on the environment and natural

resources and the actions taken to

manage them.

B EBEHHRRERBEAEIRNE
TEREEBBAEMRERATE o
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A.1 Emissions

HER

A.1 Emissions — (v) Water consumption

B — () OB #E

Our activities do not create packaging
material in significant quantities
BANEBEHTEELERENEE
MR

A.2 Use of resources

BREH

A.2 Use of resources

BREH
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEHE - EM@E- Description RiE - HEREARKEEER
—RIXBERERERIER it 4-i 3l
Aspect B1: Employment
B1EE : EfE
General Disclosure Information on: 1. Employment and labour practices
— MR BRF M e  BEREN  IK - BEKSIER
BRE - FEHE k- RIEBKR
NEADRF B LR
(@ the policies; and
B R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
BFHBTARERAZENEHA
FERPERNER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by and gender, age 1. Employment and labour practices

(Recommended Disclosure)
S AE MR B
(B ER)

KPI B1.2

(Recommended Disclosure)
R ERIEREB1.2

(BB ER)

group and geographical region.
ZIER - Fiep kbR D HES
B -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.
RIER - Fiep kbR EI D HES
MK o
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— (i) Employment — Total employees
and turnover
BEKBEIER-—(VER—EE
B RR LR

1. Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment — Total employees
and turnover
BRRSEIER—()ERE —EE
BB RmAE
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Subject areas, aspects, Relevant section in the
general disclosures and KPIs ESG report/Declaration
TEHE - EM@E- Description RiE - HEREARKEEER
—REBRBRENES it 4-i 3l

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
B2EH : REHEZ2

General Disclosure Information on: 1. Employment and labour practices
— M EE FRREZE2 TIERERRERS & — (iii) Employee health and safety
RRERBE : BREKSETER —(i) EEREERHE
(@ the policies; and zZE
B R

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational
hazards.
BFHBETARERAZENEHA
FERDOERONER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related 1. Employment and labour practices
(Recommended Disclosure)  fatalities. — (i) Employee health and safety
RS AE MR 1R B2.1 ITERRT ABREE X - BIENSETER —(i)fEE&RER

(BEBEE) &

Aspect B3: Development and Training
B3EM : #EKEI

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ 1. Employment and labour practices

— MR knowledge and skills for discharging — (iv) Development and training
duties at work. Description of training ER/REESTER —(v) BRRE
activities. Bl

BRI EERTIEBRENAMEKL
BRERIBRSR o LI DA & -
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEZE - EM@ - Description RE -  HEREARREEE
—REBRBRENES it 4-i 3l

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

BAEBH : HTH%E

General Disclosure Information on: 1. Employment and labour practices

—RIWE

KPI B4.1
(Recommended Disclosure)
B AE W 1R B4
(BZEHE)

BRABIEE T skea il Th -

(@ the policies; and
126 33

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
BYHBETARERAZENEHA
ERBERNER -

Description of measures to review 1.

employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.

MR ERIEGEEARRET
MogH& T -

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

B5EMH : HHEHEERE
General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI B5.1

(Recommended Disclosure)
PR R IR 1R B5.1

(R FE)

KPI B5.2
(Recommended Disclosure)
BB AE IEIRB5.2
(EFEHFE)

72 fzmz

Policies on managing environmental and 2.

social risks of the supply chain.
EIRHEEARIR R G RARBUE

Geographical locations of major 2.

suppliers.

TERERMIELE -

Description of practices relating to 2.

engaging suppliers.

A RS A L rEm A 1E Bl -

BEFEIRB R AR ik 2020

— (i) Employment

BRESTER—()ERE

Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment

BELRSTER—()ERE

Operating practices —
chain management
REFHR—()HEEER

(i) Supply

Operating practices —
chain management
REFHR—(VHEEE R

(i) Supply

Operating practices —
chain management
REBER-—(HERERE

(i) Supply
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Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FEHE - -BH -
—REERBRERIER

Description
it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B HERERBEEE
—3:0 1]

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

B6EME : EmEE
General Disclosure
— M EE

KPI B6.1
(Recommended Disclosure)
4R 45 5 15 B6. 1
(BZEBEE)

KPI B6.2
(Recommended Disclosure)
R4 B XI5 12 B6.2
(BEBEE)

KPI B6.3
(Recommended Disclosure)
R4 B 515 B6.3
(BEBEE)

KPI B6.4
(Recommended Disclosure)
PS4 M IE1R B6.4
GEZHEBEE)

Information on:

BHAFMREERNRBENERELZ S

BE BREMLEBEEUALMRITEN

(@ the policies; and
B R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
BFHBETARERAZENEHA
FERDOERONER -

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
EEXCEXEMEHTEL 2 HEZ
FRIBRmARKNE DL

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.
BREBNEmMRIBHRFEE AR
eI 75 0% o

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

R BB FARENBERBENER -

Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.
B R B K 2 mn B AR T o

2.  Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility
REFEHR-—NEREE

2.  Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility
KEER—(\EREE

2. Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility
KEEHR—(\EREE

2.  Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility
KEER—-(\EREMT

2. Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility
KEER—(\EREMT
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Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

TEHE  EH- Description
—REBRBRENES it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B HERERBEEE
—3:0 1]

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
B7EE: RES

General Disclosure Information on:
—RIRER BB IERRES BhZR  BGGF RO R IR
(@ the policies; and
BE K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
HTHETABERTENHEH
ERRERNER o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases
(Recommended Disclosure)  regarding corrupt practices brought
RS B IZE BT .1 against the issuer or its employees
(BEER) during the reporting period and the

outcomes of the cases.
R EHRAABETAIEERLTE
BEMNESTFARGNEE RFAER -

Aspect B8: Community Investment
BSEHE : HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement
— R to understand the needs of the

communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.

Bl R BT BETAMELR
7 SR B R 35 7507 B BRI At (& ) & Y

BUR -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
(Recommended Disclosure)  education, environmental concerns,
B2 4E B 1E B8 labour needs, health, culture, sport).
(ZREWKE) BIEREE (HE  RE[ME - 5

BAFR - E XL BH) -

74 oseERaRAT EH 2020

2. Operating practices —
(iii) Anti-corruption
RERR— (i) RE)5

2. Operating practices —
(iii) Anti-corruption
RERR—(i)RE)5

3. Community investment
HERE

3.  Community investment

HERE



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors are pleased to present to the Shareholders the first
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in the business of offering
comprehensive assembling and production services of PCBA
in the PRC integrating research and design, selection and
procurement of raw materials, assembling of PCBAs, quality
control, testing, logistics and aftersales services. Details of the
principal activities of the Company and it’s subsidiaries are set out
in note 1 and note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year is set out in the
sections of Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Environmental, Social and Governance Report and the
paragraphs below. The Group complies with the requirements
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) for the
disclosure of information and corporate governance. The Group
also complies with the requirements of Employment Ordinance
and ordinances relating to occupational safety for the interest of
employees of the Group. No important event affecting the Group
has occurred since the end of the year.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Concentration of customers

The Group has a concentration of customers and any decrease
or loss of business from these major customers could adversely
and substantially affect our operations and financial conditions.

Fluctuations in the price of raw materials
Fluctuations in the price of raw materials may affect our cost
of sales and adversely affect our business operations and
profitability.
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BRSBTS R P FE 1 R P EE 18 o
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Fail to anticipate and respond to technology
changes

If our Group does not quickly respond to the rapidly changing
and rigorous needs of our customers or enhance the scope
of our existing EMS that can respond to advanced technology
changes or our customers’ needs, our competitive position,
profitability and business prospects may be adversely affected.

Trade protection measures and trade disputes
between the United States and the PRC

The uncertainties on the trade restriction policies resulting from
the trade disputes between the United States and the PRC may
cause difficulties for our customers to project their purchasing
plans and may cause them to reduce their orders from our
Group.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers
through various means and channels, including usage of
business intelligence to understand customer trends and needs
and regular analyse on customer feedback. The Group also
keep ourselves abreast of the development of latest technology
advancement in the industries.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 104 to 107.

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Closure of the Register of Members

For the purposes of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 27 May 2021 (Thursday), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 24 May 2021 (Monday) to 27 May
2021 (Thursday), both days inclusive. The latest time to lodge
transfer documents for registration will be at 4:30 p.m. on 21 May
2021 (Friday). During the above closure period, no transfer of
shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21 May 2021.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s article of association or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the Reporting Period.
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Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in the note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Management Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company or its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the Reporting Period, sales to single largest customer
of the Group and the five largest customers of the Group in
aggregate accounted for approximately 29.4% and 88.8% (2019:
approximately 36.6% and 81.5% of the total revenue of the year,
respectively. During the Reporting Period, purchases from the
single largest supplier of the Group and the five largest suppliers
of the Group in aggregate accounted for approximately 16.6%
and 48.7% (2019: approximately 11.2% and 33.9%) of the total
purchases of the year, respectively. None of the Directors of the
Company or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Hao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Bizhong

Mr. Xu Shizhen

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yuan Shuntang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund

Mr. Chen Zhong

Mr. Wu Tai Cheung

Mr. Xu, Mr. Yuan and Mr. Wong will retire in accordance with
article 108(a) of the Articles at the Company’s forthcoming AGM
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Every Director shall retire from office once every three years and
for this purpose, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest one-third but not less than one-third
shall retire from office by rotation. The Directors to retire in every
year will be those who have been longest in office since their
last election but as between persons who became Directors
on the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise
agree between themselves) be determined by lot. Subject to the
Articles, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at the
meeting at which he or she retires. For avoidance of doubt, each
Director shall retire at least once every three years.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 23
of this annual report.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director
has entered into a service agreement with the Company for an
initial term of two to three years commencing from the Listing
Date and will continue thereafter. All the service agreements may
be terminated by either party by giving to the other party not less
than three months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term one
year commencing from the Listing Date. All the appointment may
be terminated by either party by giving to the order party not less
than 3 months prior notice in writing.

Apart from the foregoing, no Directors proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
or compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

Directors’ Interests In Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which the company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a director of the company or his or her connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company (“Director” or “Directors”)
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time during the
Reporting Period.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions In Shares, Underlying
Shares And Debentures

As at 31 December 2020, interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) held by the Directors and chief executive of the
Company which have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for are as follows:

() Interests in our Company

EERESTRAERKRG - 18
ROKEEINEERAR

R-TE-_TE+-_A=+—H ARAESE
MESITERABRARR RETAEEERE (F
E REBESFRHAEEGIEXVE) 9% ~ HEIK
DREEETHEECREES RHPEEHE
XVEBEE 7 K8 Sh A& AN A 7] K Bt A2 B A e 2
AR (BIEBRIEFES MAEIEGE BIEXH
BAERGERENEZRAR) RELALR
AR IR 38 5 I HR B 160 38 352 {517 & Ay = 52 fift
HERIBEZESTRBITME AR R KB
mRERSSAR T ¢

() RAEDTHER

Number of Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares" shareholding (%)
EEnH ERMEE BRoOHEO BB E DL (%)
Mr. Li Interest in a controlled corporation® 99,881,250 (L) 39.95
3 RE LB REZ
Mr. Yuan Interest in a controlled corporation® 46,950,000 (L) 18.78
RAEAE NE LB REZR O
Mr. Zhang Interest in a controlled corporation® 27,543,750 (L) 11.02
SRS RE LB R
Notes: B EE -

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  These Shares are held by Skyflying Company Limited (the “Skyflying”).
Skyflying is wholly owned by Mr. Li. Mr. Li is also the sole director of
Skyflying. Therefore, Mr. Li is deemed or taken to be interested in the
Shares held by Skyflying under the SFO.

(8)  These Shares are held by Central Wealth Limited (the “Central
Wealth”). Central Wealth is wholly owned by Mr. Yuan. Mr. Yuan is also
the sole director of Central Wealth. Therefore, Mr. Yuan is deemed or
taken to be interested in the Shares held by Central Wealth under the
SFO.

(4)  These Shares are held by Realtime Limited (the “Realtime”). Realtime
is wholly owned by Mr. Zhang. Mr. Zhang is also the sole director of
Realtime. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is deemed or taken to be interested in
the Shares held by Realtime under the SFO.

(1) FEILKRRZATRBRGOTR -

@  #% % B 1 B Skyflying Company Limited
(['Skyflying 1) # & ° Skyflying B 2= 5 4 & &
B o FHRAEINASkyflying Fo M —EE = o A It -
RIBEH REERD] - AR R EEHE
& Skyflying BT #5 i 10 H) #E 25 ©

(3) % % &1 M Central Wealth Limited ([ Central
Wealth |) # % ° Central Wealth = 55 4= 2 &
B o R AT A Central Wealth il —E = o
It BEBEFESRAEKRY  REEBEARE
{EH% A Central Wealth FT#5 i% {5 B #E2S ©

@) %% K1 H Realtime Limited ([ Realtime |) #
A c Realtme RREEREHR c RELEN R
Realtime )Mt —%E F - F L - RIBEBFHFRHBAE
&A1+ 5% 95 A4 45 4R & Bk & {E #E B Realtime FT 1
B&AR B #E 2 o
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(ii) Interests in the ordinary shares of associated
corporation

(i) REBZENEBRNER

Name of

associated Number of Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Nature of interests shares™”  shareholding (%)
EEsE HEEE SR EEME RGEEO R B 2L (%)
Mr. Li Skyflying Beneficial owner () 100
B EnfEEA
Mr. Yuan Central Wealth Beneficial owner 1L 100
REAE EnfEB A
Mr. Zhang Realtime Beneficial owner () 100
SRS EnER A
Note: MisE -

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the
relevant associated corporation.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates had
registered any interests or short positions in any shares and
underlying shares in, and debentures of, the Company or any
associated corporations as at the date of this report, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debenture

Saved as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the Reporting
Period and to the date of this report was the Group a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debt securities, and including
debentures, of the Group or any other body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Others’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as the Directors are aware, as at the date of this report,
the following corporations/persons (other than our Directors
and chief executives of the Company) had interests of 5% or
more in the issued Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO:

FTERRREMALRKRGRE
ERODHNERR AR

BERRM RAREEH  UTEE AL
(RRREERZSTHRABRIN RE#ELT
By BEEREES L EIRMIEXVEE2
Ko 373 BBV SCZR A AN A A Je Bt S BT 4 B =k e
AR RBRIERE 7 M EIERPIF 336 1R BEFE
BV ERL M A H) 5% 3 IA FHESS ¢

Number of
Shares held/

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest interested® Percentage (%)
BE EEER

IR & REEME HROHEEO B2 (%)

Skyflying Beneficial owner 99,881,250 39.95
E=EA A ordinary Shares
99,881,250 % & 8 X

Central Wealth Beneficial owner 46,950,000 18.78
E=mEA A ordinary Shares
46,950,000 fx & 38 iz

Ms. Zhang Juan Interest of spouse 46,950,000 18.78
SR 48 204 B {8 4 2 ordinary Shares
46,950,000 A% 38 i

Realtime Beneficial owner 27,543,750 11.02
E=EA A ordinary Shares
27,543,750 f% I @ %

Ms. Chen Juan Interest of spouse 27,543,750 11.02
FRig 22+ P (B 4 2 ordinary Shares
27,543,750 f% I 38 i%

Regan International Growth Fund SPC  Beneficial owner 24,214,000 9.69
EmEa A ordinary Shares
24,214,000 A% & 38 i

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued
share capital of the Company, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company, as at the date of this report which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

B EXFHBESN  RARE B BEAA
RIEENESTHRABMNIMNYA LTS RAF -
HEBTRAS AR AR E SRS
51 107 S XV B 2 ]2 3.5 BB A I X AR A B
BORBERRARREARL A RERES
K HA 155 336 (67817 B 0 B 2 M o e
R -
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Arrangement for Directors to Purchase
Shares or Debentures

Saved as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above and in the section “Share Option
Scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director of the Company or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were such rights
exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interest in a Competing Business

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates has
engaged in or has any interest in any business that competes or
may compete with the business of the Group, or has any other
conflict of interest with the Group during the Reporting Period
and up to the date of this report.

Mr. Li and Skyflying (together the “Controlling Shareholders”),
had entered into a non-competition deed dated 20 September
2019 (the “Non-competition Deed”) in favour of the Company
(for itself and on behalf of all members of the Group), pursuant
to which, each of the Controlling Shareholders would not, and
would procure his/its associates not to (other than through the
Group or in respect of each covenanter (together with his/its
associates), as a holder of not more than 5% of the issued shares
or stock of any class or debentures of any company listed on any
recognized stock exchange) directly or indirectly carry on, engage
or otherwise be interested (in each case whether as shareholder,
partner, agent or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or
otherwise) in any business which may be in competition with
the business carried on by the Group from time to time, except
where the Company’s approval is obtained.

84 mmsERERAT F£H 2020

EEREROIEEINZ

BREXTEZRERTHRABREKND K
T REEENEE SRR ] — R T X ER
REHE | —EAMEEIN RFR - NRAFME
MESFKBEFEENEBIRKE FLHE
EREMNAERBALRRR RO RE#EEER
IEITEZEREMN - AAF] - HERAFRE
fa] B J88 % B) IR BT SLAE AR & B - BUE A1 A
E=AREBARRAREMEAMEE RN
HEHES (BIEEERE) Ex -

EERNHEMHRRNER

R B REERRE A S EFREIM
BEEANBEAREREEARAEEE
BRFATERFOEBRAGREEHN
Ll - TR E AL B A AR b FEES -

ZF J & K Skyfying (AR 78 1R R R =F
—NENAZTERARE (RERE RARK
AEEMBEKBERR) RESEARI LT HFE
BUTHEFRE]) B SERRRTE
MG REEHEANE FRIFBBANRERR
BUREAGACEREBEA)ME  FA
THREBNEARAEZFRZA EMHEMD
A2 BT AT AT AR B A 4D B (B FE #) 5%)
EERFHAERAR HEEMAREAKETR
HRRNESBEFNEBIAEMTARE
THAHEAER (BERESERRR B A
REFEMTN - T IwREERT M - 2ZE
SEMERE) - ERSARQBRIEERI



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEERE @)

In order to ensure the Controlling Shareholders have complied
with the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling
Shareholders has provided to the Company a written confirmation
(i) in respect of his/its compliance with the Non-competition Deed
for the Reporting Period : (ii) no personal interests were ever
declared by any Controlling Shareholders who are also Directors
at the Directors’ meetings : and (jii) stating that they have not
entered into any business which may be in competition with the
business carried on by the Group from time to time. As there
was no change in terms of the undertaking since the Company’s
listing on the Stock Exchange, the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company are of the view that the Controlling
Shareholders have complied with the Non-competition Deed and
no matters are required to bring to the attention of the public.

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme was conditionally adopted on 20
September 2019 (the “Share Option Scheme”), which became
effective on the Listing Date. The Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
motivate the contributions that the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant options to any
employee (full-time or part-time), consultant or adviser of our
Group, Directors, shareholder of our Group, or any supplier,
customer, business partner or service provider of our Group
(together, the “Eligible Participants” or each “Eligible Participant”).

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option
Scheme, the maximum numbers of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the Listing Date (i.e. 25,000,000 shares)
unless approved by the shareholders of the Company. The 10%
limited may be renewed by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting from time to time provided always that the 10%
limited so renewed must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
at the date of approval of such renewal by the shareholders of
the Company.
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No option shall be granted to any Eligible Participants which, if
exercised in full would result in the total number of the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options already
granted or to be granted to such Eligible Participant under the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled, and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant exceeding 10% in aggregate of
the shares in issue as at the date of such grant.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Directors, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the date of adoption.

No share option has been granted under the Share Option
Scheme up to the date of this report.

Related Party Transactions

Details of material related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements. For the year ended
31 December 2020, none of these related party transactions
are connected transaction which are subject to the disclosure
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
such transactions.

Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which
are required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

Future Prospect and Development

With reference to the Prospects section of the Chairman’s
Statement, the Group will continue to diversify or expand our
customer base and keep pace with the latest technologies to
deliver PCBAs that can be applied to our customers’ innovative
electronic products and provide engineering solutions to our
customers. We will continue to strive a balance among the
interests of shareholders, employees and customers, and pursue
long-term and sustainable development for the Group.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 20 September
2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the purpose of to
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
removal of the external auditor, to review the financial statements
and related materials and provide advice in respect of the
financial reporting process, and to oversee the internal control
procedures and risk management of our Group. The Audit
Committee now comprises three members, all being independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund
(Chairman), Mr. Chen Zhong and Mr. Wu Tai Cheung.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, will retire
at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the Company
and be eligible to offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution will be submitted to the AGM to be held on 27 May
2021 to seek Shareholders’ approval on the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor until the
conclusion of the next AGM and to authorize the Board to fix
their remuneration.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 20
September 2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the
Code for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to the
Directors and senior management of our Group, to review and
evaluate their performance in order to make recommendations
on the remuneration package of each of the Directors and
senior management personnel as well as other employee benefit
arrangements. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wu Tai
Cheung (Chairman), Mr. Chen Zhong and Mr. Wong Chun Sek
Edmund.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 20
September 2019 with terms of reference in compliance with
the Code for the purpose of making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of Directors and the management of
the Board succession. The Nomination Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen
Zhong (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund and Mr. Wu Tai
Cheung.

Corporate Governance Practices

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

Interest of Compliance Adviser

In accordance with Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed Dakin Capital Limited to be the compliance
adviser. Dakin Capital Limited, being the sponsor of the Company
in relation to the Listing, has declared its independence pursuant
to Rule 3A.07 of the Listing Rules. Save as provided for in relation
to the Share Offer and/or disclosed in the Prospectus, neither
Dakin Capital Limited nor any of its associates and none of the
directors or employees of Dakin Capital Limited who have been
involved in providing advice to the Company as the sponsor, has
or may, as a result of the Share Offer, have any interest in any
securities of the Company or any other companies of the Group
(including options or rights to subscribe for such securities).
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the publicly available information and to the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, the Company
had maintained sufficient public float of not less than 25% of its
total issued shares as required under the Listing Rules during the
Reporting Period and to the date of this report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. All Directors of the Company have
confirmed that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they
have compiled with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the Reporting Period and to the date of the report.

By order of the Board
Li Hao
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
25 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the Shareholders of Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

i
=
=
(e

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 104 to 195, which comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Revenue recognition for the provision of manufacturing services

° Inventory provision

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition for the provision
of manufacturing services

Refer to Notes 2.21 and 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December
2020, revenue from the provision of
manufacturing services of approximately
RMB246,531,000 was recognised in the
Group’s consolidated income statement.

Revenue from the provision of
manufacturing services is recognised over
the period of the contract using the input
method with reference to the total actual
costs incurred and the total estimated
costs on completion for the services.

We focused on this area due to the
magnitude of revenue transactions
occurred. Hence significant audit
resources were allocated to audit this
area.

02 msimBRAaRAT F3F 2020

Our audit procedures performed on revenue recognition for the
provision of manufacturing services included:

e We understood, evaluated and validated the key controls in
respect of revenue recognition for the provision of manufacturing
services and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatements
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors;

e We performed retrospective review, on a sample basis, by
comparing previous estimates to actual outcome. We evaluated
the outcome of prior period assessment of revenue recognition to
assess the effectiveness of management estimation process;

e We assessed, on a sample basis, management’s identification of
performance obligations based on contractual agreements with
customers and other customary business practices, if any;

o We examined, on a sample basis, the sales contracts with
customers and identified the terms and conditions relating to the
timing of transfer of controls of services, to assess the Group’s
revenue recognition policies with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

o We checked, on a sample basis, the transaction price of the
revenue recognised during the year from the provision of
manufacturing services to the underlying sales invoices and sales
contracts;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

e We tested, on a sample basis, the actual costs incurred for the
provision of manufacturing services during the year by checking
to underlying supporting documents in relation to direct material
costs, direct labour costs and overhead costs incurred;

e \We compared, on a sample basis, the estimated costs of selected
sales contracts to the actual costs of similar sales contracts
completed and enquired management about any significant
variances identified;

e We recalculated, on a sample basis, revenue recognised from
the provision of manufacturing services during the year based on
transaction prices, the total actual costs incurred and the total
estimated costs on completion;

e \We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to revenue
recognition in the context of the applicable financial reporting
framework; and

e We also considered whether the judgements made in selecting
of significant assumptions and data in determination of revenue
recognition would give rise to indicators of possible management
bias.

Based upon the above procedures performed, we considered that the

recognition of revenue from the provision of manufacturing services was
supported by available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Inventory provision

Refer to Notes 2.13 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
net inventories of RMB25,145,000, carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable
value in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group operates in a market where
new product releases are regular.
There is a risk that inventories held will
become obsolete in light of technological
advancement and changing market
conditions. Management identifies
obsolete inventories as a result of
technology change, and then applied
allowances on those obsolete inventories
by considering the recoverable amount.

The Group’s management also reviews
the inventory age listing to identify slow
moving and obsolete inventories and
then estimates the amount of allowance
based on the projected excessive quantity
of those inventories considering the
production plan and expected future
market demand as a result of changes in
current market conditions and technology,
and the latest invoice prices.

We focus on this area due to the size of
inventories balances, and the judgment
involved in estimating recoverable
amount of the obsolete inventories in
management’s impairment assessment.

96 msimBRERAT £ 2020

Our audit procedures performed on evaluating the appropriateness of
the inventory provision included:

° We understood, evaluated and validated relevant controls over
management’s periodic reviews of inventory obsolescence and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors such as complexity, subjectively, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud;

e We performed retrospective review, on a sample basis, by
comparing previous estimates to actual outcome. We evaluated,
on a sample basis, the outcome of prior period assessment of
inventory provision to assess the effectiveness of management’s
estimation process;

e We tested, on sample basis, the accuracy of the aging analysis of
inventories;

e We assessed the reasonableness of the provisions by challenging
management’s projections on current trends and demands for the
remaining inventories, with reference to historical sales experience
and comparing the carrying values of inventories items, on a
sample basis, to actual prices for subsequent year-end sales;

e We discussed with management to understand the additional
factors that were considered relevant based on the current market
conditions that may require adjustments to the historical usage
pattern for the quantity of the selected products and obtained
evidence for these explanations;

e \We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to revenue
recognition in the context of the applicable financial reporting
framework; and

e We also considered whether the judgements made in selecting
of significant assumptions and data in determination of revenue
recognition would give rise to indicators of possible management
bias.

Based on the work performed, we considered that the inventory
provision provided was supportable by historical market trends,
customer demands, technology development as well as management’s
expectation for future sales and inventory management plans.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be commmunicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Cheng Lap Yam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

el

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 - F —FF+ - H=+—HIF&F

2020 2019
—EIEF —ZT-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T

Revenue g 246,531 284,588
Cost of sales $HE A AR (196,123) (190,560)
Gross profit EF 50,408 94,028
Other income H AUz A 7 4,497 3,683
Other losses, net H b 518558 8 (2,210) (1,058)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE ko SHA X 6 (2,477) (2,789)
Administrative expenses THER X 6 (36,223) (56,237)
Net impairment losses on financial @& E K& REERE

assets and contract assets e F5E (235) (995)
Operating profit e 5 Al 13,760 36,632
Finance income BE U A 925 364
Finance costs A& P AR (1,002) (1,601)
Finance costs, net Bl & B AN 5 (77) (1,237)
Profit before income tax B B 18 B4 A A 13,683 35,395
Income tax expense FisHiFA= (2,143) (7,685)
Profit for the year F R 11,540 27,710
Profit/(loss) for the year T3 75 L F AT,

attributable to: (B#E) :
Equity holders of the Company KAaE=FEA 11,736 27,710
Non-controlling interest FEE I (196) -

11,540 27,710

Basic and diluted per share BREAREE

(RMB cents) (ARES) 4.69 13.93

The above consolidated income statement should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeTEWmER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # =

—E-FFESASH—AUERE

2020 2019
RMPB’ 000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFIT
Profit for the year FREA 11,540 27,710
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hih2m (B8 W :
Item that will not be reclassified to profit BB S EERm AL
or loss
Currency translation differences EHBmE = (4,290) (940)
Item that may be reclassified to profit Al E T 7 AR E 1R 2 1Y
or loss IH H
Exchange differences on translation of RMEBINETERIE N 5
foreign operations 8 12
Total comprehensive income for FAREZEKZEHALE
the year 7,258 26,782
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for TH&FEEERNZTEWE
the year attributable to: (E518) 4 %8 .
Equity holders of the Company KRaE=FEA 7,454 26,782
Non-controlling interest AR (196) -
7,258 26,782

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

tiiszmaz

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

n‘/T\ = éﬁ? LE\;—":Z

As at 31 December 2020 R = ZE—=—F#+=-H=+—H

2020 2019
—E-ETHF T —NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T ARBFIT
Assets EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB K& 14 154,221 120,262
Intangible asset | EE 15 1,478 =
Investment in an associate R—EHE QAR 2&E 16 - =
Prepayments and deposits B RERIES 17 1,530 1,168
Deferred tax assets EEF A& EE 25 665 725
157,894 122,155
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 20 25,145 24,239
Contract assets aREE 21 55,188 38,545
Trade and bills receivables B 5 WG IE K e R % 21 15,290 26,610
Prepayments, deposits and ?Eﬁ RIE - e K E R
other receivables RIE 17 7,228 3,733
Financial assets at fair value BEATEGFABENS R
through profit or loss BE 18 5,001 =
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFIRITIER 22 14,557 -
Cash and cash equivalents BHe MBS EEY 22 104,004 139,172
226,413 232,299
Total assets BEEHE 384,307 354,454
Equity g
Equity attributable to equity AREEREEAEML
holders of the Company s
Share capital f& A 24 2,250 2,250
Share premium f& 10 @ B 24 98,676 98,676
Retained earnings RE &R 58,979 49,217
Reserves e 126,222 128,530
286,127 278,673
Non-controlling interest FERER 5,804 =
Total equity R 291,931 278,673
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
meEBEEREABR ®

As at 31 December 20200 R=ZE—-—FF+ - H=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Nz ARET T ARET T
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities FkRBEME
Bank and other borrowings HRIT R H A AR 28 8,048 1,600
Lease liabilities HERE 23 1,766 4,783
Deferred government grants i S DR AT 78 BN 29 10,001 10,519
. 19815 16,902
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B 5 A 26 18,482 16,192
Other payables and accruals FL MR FNIE K B R TR IE 27 36,108 25,161
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 4,725 3,848
Contract liabilities aRAR’E 27 1,487 462
Current income tax liabilities BNERFT SR B & 2,769 3,707
Deferred government grants iR RE B 478 B 29 3,101 2,905
Bank and other borrowings R1T R E A {E R 28 5,889 6,604
e e 72561 58,879
Total liabilites aEes® 92376 75781
Total equity and liabilities EERAEAE 384,307 354,454

The consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to 195 were 10421905 A MG A M B RERHEET SN =
approved by the Board of Director on 25 March 2021 and were Z-—F=A-+HBHETHERABZE -
signed on its behalf.

Li Hao Xu Shizhen
=% FttE
Director Director
EE EE

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in  _FiltéE s BE B (& FEEREYM T — G138 -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

o A HE 3L 4
mEEREHR
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 = F = FF + = H=+—HI FZF

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARBESEAER
Share-
based Non-
Share Share Other  payment Statutory Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earmnings Total interest  equity
BB

Bx RBER RtEE AHERE LIRS AERE RERN 45 RiRER RR4E
RMBO00 RMB'000 RMBI00D RMBOOO RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBOO0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBO000
ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARWTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR

(Note a)
(Kzta)
Balanceat1January 2020 R=E-ZF-A-R
itk (. 2%0 e M 7z A0 6o v amers - 278873
Profitoss) for the year Engtl /() - - - - - - 1% 1% (196) 11,540
Other comprehensiveloss ~ Eft2EBE - - - - - 68 - (42 - (428
Total comprehensive 20 (FR) /hHbE
(loss)/income - - - - - (428 11,736 7454 (19 7,268

Transactions with owners ~ REHANRH
Appropriation (Note b) B3 (ko) - - - - 194 - (197 - - -
Capital contribution fomnon- ~ FER KR LA L3

controling inferest onsetting ~ HB A AIADEE

Up a new subsidlary - - - - - - - - 6000 6000

Total transactions with owners EEEANZ L - - - - 1974 - (1974 - 6000 6,000

Balance at 31 December 2020 W=E=F%+=f
=t-ANER 2250 98676 111,235 75 19383 (5148) 58979 286127 5804 291,931
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

FEEREER @)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —&F —FF+ - H=+—HIFF/Z
Attributable to equity holders of the Gompany
ARAEREAAELE
Share-
hased
Share Share Other ~ payment  Statutory ~ Exchange  Retained Total
capital premium resenve reserve reserve reserve eamings equity
MR
kx ROEE  EnEk  GREE  ieEE  NERE  REER  #niE
RVB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETr AREfr ARETR
(Note a)
(Fiita)
Balanceat {Januay 2019 H-8-1%-A-ANWEH R L L N WL
Profit for the year g - - - - - - 21,710 27,710
Other comprehensive l0ss Efp2mE - - - - - 928) - 929)
Total comprehensive i WGt
o S N1 .3
Transactions with owners RERANR S
Issue of shares upon thelisting £ R E TR

(Note 24) (BisEos) 563 111938 = = = = - 112501
Share issuance costs (Note 24)  E{TRR ARk (Hizt4) - (11579) - - - - - (11579
Capitalisation Issue (Note 24) Bk 77 (st 4) 1687 (1,687) - - - - - -
Capitalinjection fromapre PO~ RE—ZBERAHEERRE

investor (Note 1.2(d) EEEE (E1.20) - - 8,820 - - - - 8,820
Fffect of reorganisation in respect  SEAEE I EREHETAR

of the acquisttion Shenzhen AR(TRYIGR]) T

Confidence Inteligence Electronic  EAHIS/2 (Fi51.2()

Co., Ltd (‘Shenzhen Gonfidence’)

INote 1.20) - - o) - - - - o)
Appropriation (Note b 3 (h3kp) - - - - 5,124 - (5,124) -
Totltensactions withowners REFARRE  2%0  we 280 A L L
Balance at 31 December 2019 R=E-A%£+=A=+-R

iife 2,250 98,676 111,235 752 17,409 (866) 49217 218,673
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
mEEREHR @

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —&F —FF+ - H=+—HIFF/Z

Notes:

(@)

Other reserve represents the combined share capital and capital reserve
of the companies comprising the Group, after elimination of inter-company
transactions and balances as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 in relation to
the reorganisation.

The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in the PRC to
provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to be appropriated from the
profit after income tax (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years)
as reported in their respective statutory financial statements, before profit
distributions to equity holders. All statutory reserves are created for specific
purposes. A PRC company is required to appropriate an amount of not less
than 10% of statutory profits after income tax to statutory surplus reserves,
prior to distribution of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company may
discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus
reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory surplus
reserves shall only be used to make up losses of the company, to expand the
company’s operations, or to increase the capital of the company. In addition,
a company may make further contribution to the discretional surplus reserve
using its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions of the board of
directors.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\/-.l—\ Eﬁ@/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # =

—E-FEt A=t AULEE

2020 2019
—E-ETHF —NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR% T ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities E&FERSHRE
Cash generated from operations LESIRE 31(a) 53,572 69,704
Income tax paid EH PR % (3,021) (7,021)
Interest received =R ES) 925 364
Net cash generated from operating &2 /EFEFTEIR S F5
activities 51,476 63,047
Cash flows from investing activities REZEREHE
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME  BE M&E
equipment (71,115) (35,880)
Purchase of intangible asset EEELEE (1,774) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, &  BEM&EZ
plant and equipment Fr{S %38 31(b) 480 =
Receipt of government grants for R S0 U E 7 B 98 B
purchase of equipment 29 2,770 9,416
Purchase of financial assets at fair BEERATEFAEZNS
value through profit or loss BL&E E 18 (13,952) =
Proceeds from disposal of financial ~ &R AFEFABRFHE
assets at fair value through profit B & EEFT1S 58
or loss 18 8,859 -
Net cash used in investing activites ~ & & /EBFTAIR & /F 8 (74,732) (26,464)
Cash flows from financing activities & EFERSHRE
Capital injection from a pre-IPO RE—ZBBEXAHEBEESH
investor KEENTE 1.2(d) - 8,820
Gross proceeds from issuance of TR T E AR AT S IR
ordinary shares upon listings k] 24 - 112,501
Consideration paid for the acquisition 5t 2 48 Uk i — I B A 7
of a subsidiary in respect of SR E
reorganisation 1.2() - (6,000)
Proceeds from bank and other 1T R H AL EFRFT1S 5IE
borrowings 31(c) 13,511 -
Repayments of bank and other EERIT R A A
borrowings 31(c) (7,652) (10,597)
Increase in pledged bank deposits B RER 1T FR3E N 22 (14,557) =
Payment of interests on bank and SATIRIT R E M ERFE
other borrowings 31(c) (570) (1,108)
Payment of principal element of TRHHEEEERESEH D
lease liabilities 23(c) (4,310) (8,047)
Payment of interest element of INEEAERNSHS
lease liabilities 23(c) (432) (493)
Payment of listing expenses Tt EmAX 24 - (11,575)
Capital contribution from non- FE 122 A% 4 2 h K S 3 B /B
controlling interest on setting NAElHEE
up a new subsidiary 6,000 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

MERERER @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &; =

FEF A=t —AULFE

2020 2019
—E-ETHF —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥T AR T T
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEES (FTA) FEEE
| el eeidies S A B0 B8,501
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRRESEBYCRD)
and cash equivalents 2 hn =R (31,266) 125,084
Cash and cash equivalents at FYReRRESEED
beginning of the year 139,172 14,979
Currency translation differences BmE =g (3,902) (891)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRIIR& RIS EEY
the year 22 104,004 139,172

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read — _Fili4R & 30 & 7 2 5% & EREE M BT 7 — GFRIAE o
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
N

BAFE R AR MY RE

1 General information and reorganisation

1.1 General information

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 7 December 2018 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law Cap. 22,
Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of electronic
manufacturing service. The ultimate holding company
of the Company is Skyflying Company Limited
(“Skyflying Company”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The ultimate controlling
party of the Group is Mr. Li Hao (“Mr. Li").

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing”) on 18 October 2019.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in unit of Renminbi (“‘RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise
stated.

1

—RENKREA
1.1 —RER

EREERZERBERAR ([ARFAD
R-E—NF+-A+tHBEMRAS
HEENE2ERANE(—NA—F
FEIGIEN - AR E RIEET) RHA=
HEdMKIABREERETA
A o B == R ik & Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands

RAARA—RREERAAT - XA
AIRENBRAR (5EIAEE])
TERERBEEFRERE - AQ
ANERERARAREBEX
HE((EBRXHSE]) MKz
#) A & Skyflying Company Limited
([ Skyflying Company |) ° 7 & [& #y
RIRERA T BZETAE ([FEE]) -

RRBRPR-_Z-AFTA+N
BEERBBARFIMERAF IR
EmEml e

Brm BRI ZFEE M BEREK
RARE TARE] 27 A
EANBEREOTL(ARET
7Tl) e

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020 11 3



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AN
I%T\l:l

1

B ERR MR (@)

General information and reorganisation
(Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation
In preparing for the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group underwent the reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) which mainly involved the following
steps:

(@)

On 7 December 2018, the Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. 5,728
shares, 2,692 shares and 1,580 shares of the
Company were allotted and issued at par to
Skyflying Company, Central Wealth Limited
(“Central Wealth”) and Realtime Limited
(“Realtime”) held by Mr. Li, Mr. Yuan Shuntang
(“Mr. Yuan”) and Mr. Zhang Bizhong (“Mr. Zhang”)
respectively on the same date.

On 24 December 2018, Mr. Li acquired,
approximately in aggregate, 2.28% equity interest
of Shenzhen Confidence from certain minority
shareholders of Shenzhen Confidence at total
cash consideration of RMB6,264,500.

On 29 December 2018, Mr. Li and Mr. Zhang
acquired approximately 1.51% and 6.18% equity
interest of Shenzhen Confidence from Xin Ju
Ding Fu Equity Investment Funds (Shenzhen)
Enterprise (Limited Partnership)* ({12 2 & & %
EEREES ORI REEREIK) (“Xin Ju
Ding Fu”), a limited partnership controlled by
Mr. Li at cash consideration of RMB1,765,100
and RMB7,248,100 respectively. On the same
date, Mr. Li further acquired approximately
6.74% equity interest of Shenzhen Confidence
from certain minority shareholders of Shenzhen
Confidence at total cash consideration of
RMB7,886,600.

For identification purposes only
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PIAERARERED  AEBED#
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ez %

(@)

R=ZZFE—N\F+=ZAtH &
RARHAESHSEMKL - B
BH  ANARIZEBERSERE
175,728 % ~ 2,692 % & 1,580
B% B% 1 F Skyflying Company
Central Wealth Limited ([ Central
Wealth |) % Realtime Limited
([Realtime]) * M#&ZE A A5 5
BHELEE RIEBELE ([RE
A1) MR MEESE ([REE])
A o

RZZE—N\FE+_A=+WAH -
ZhAERBRIERE T LB
RUERIEE S H£42.28%
R ReRELREAEARK
6,264,500 7T °

RZE—NFE+_A=+hH8
ZEAERKREEDRIARENR
B ARM1,765,1007T & A R #&
7,248 100 T E R R BRI
BEES OFRY) E(BRANK)
(B8] —HBaEtias
FINBEREZEE) WERIE
ZRH41.51% 2 6.18% AZ #E o 1A
B =hEE—FaFRIE
BETLEBRRUWBERIER
26.74% M - He R EHLE
B AR 7,886,6007T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AN
I%T\l:l

1

B ERR MR (@)

General information and reorganisation
(Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

(d)

On 29 December 2018, Million Way Limited
(“Million Way”), a pre-IPO investor held by Mr.
Yuen Hoi Po (“Mr. Yuen”), subscribed for 7%
of equity interest of Shenzhen Confidence at
RMB8,819,400. The considerations were fully
settled on 11 February 2019.

On 2 January 2019, New Trive Limited (“New
Trive (BVI)”) was incorporated in the BVI and held
by the Company.

On 7 January 2019, New Trive (HK) Limited (“New
Trive (HK)”) was incorporated in Hong Kong and
held by New Trive (BVI).

On 8 March 2019, Xinzhi (Shenzhen) Electronic
Co., Ltd.* (58 CRYI) EF B R 2 Al) (“Xinzhi
(Shenzhen)”) was incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and held by New
Trive (HK).

On 14 February 2019, the Company allotted
and issued 753 shares for cash consideration
of RMB7 to Bright Shine Investment Holdings
Limited (“Bright Shine”), which is controlled by Mr.
Yuen.

On 12 March 2019, Xinzhi (Shenzhen) acquired
the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Confidence
from Mr. Li, Mr. Yuan, Mr. Zhang and Million Way,
at total consideration of RMB6,000,000.

For identification purposes only

1

—RERREA @)

1.2 E4H @)

*

©)

(EXA 9

RZZBE-N\FE+A=+NB"
BERARBEENREEXER
RAR (KB BREREL
(TREBREEDHA) UKRE
AR #8,819,400 TR RINE
B7T%BBE - BEKEER=-F
—NE-A+—BEEES -

RZZE—NF—HF=H " New
Trive Limited ([ New Trive (BVI)])
38 B 2 BF B EE AT AR S I B
ZAN/NCIES SR

R=ZZT—hAFE—AtH ##HK
H(EB)ERRR([FHE(F
7)) BB B New
Trive BVI) 5 -

R-_ZBE-hF=ANB EF8
(FIDEFARRA (E8 OR
YN R EARLME (T
B 1) sE MRS R FT8EE (F
BIFEE -

RZE-—NAFE-_A+HMAE K
ARAEEREERERA A
(FEfE] ARBELEZT)
fid 2% & 317753 Rx Rk D - IR &
REBARETIT -

R-ZE—NE=A+=H" =
BORI) BEZRE REE
REERZXZBWBZRIGER
MEDRE BREAARK
6,000,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIERRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

TEEMHRBE

A ERHEBEZT RV HRERER
ANETESAREBE KIFESHHRA
BRIRFA2JINABAFE —BEERIKA
A EHR o

21 RBEXE

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) Amended standards adopted by the
Group
The Group has adopted the following amended
standards for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 1

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

Definition of Material

Conceptual Framework for ~ Revised Conceptual
Financial Reporting 2018 Framework for Financial
Reporting
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEETHERHE@
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEE (@)
(b) New and amended standards issued but (b) BEMEARSE [ AR R AR

not yet adopted by the Group BT E] K& (E R £ R
The following new and amended standards have HE-_T_ZTF+-H=*+—
been published that are not mandatory for 31 B & BE - o3 R&
December 2020 reporting periods and have not 1EET4ERIE A8 5 {8 FE 58 I ZR AR -
been early adopted by the Group. RNEBE INRIBATERAN ©

Effective for

accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
=
ZEBRE
B EEER
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
BERMBREERF 165 (BFTR) Covid-1918FTH &R & “T-TF A A—H
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 1 January 2021
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
(Amendments)
BRMBREENEIN BAGE FEEERE-F R —T-_—F—H—H
RERIEI95 - BEBEMBIMESER
BT BEVBRELAE4RR
BREMBHREENFE 165 (BTAR)
HKAS 16 (Amendments) Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds 1 January 2022
before Intended Use
BB ERIE 165 (BEFTA) ME BERERE-RERERENN —T-_F—-H—H
P15 5RIE
HKAS 37 (Amendments) Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a 1 January 2022
Contract
BB ERIZE 375 (BFTA) BEAKN—EZKE KRR —T_F—H—H
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BN BmEENEIW (BETA) B ERRE M —E-—%—F—H
Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
FEYGEIEE ZE-N\EER-T-TFREBNFELSE —T-_F—F—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEETHERHE@
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 B E%E (@)

(b) New and amended standards issued but (b) B EMBARSEE M AREN

not yet adopted by the Group (Continued) BT E] R A&IERT 2R (&)

Effective for

accounting

periods

beginning

on or after

RT3 B8R

ZBBRE

S HELEN

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2023

Non-current

BB ERE 15 (BT A) MBS ERBEESE —T-=%#—Hf—H

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

BRMBRELERETR RBREX —T-=F—H—H

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sales or Contributions of Assets Effective date to

(Amendments) between an Investor and its be determined

Associate or Joint Venture
ERMBRERNFEI0RREBE REFHRABREATANSELEZHI EBABEE
£ 52855 (BRI &) BEEHNESHRA
The Group will adopt the above new or revised REB SR EEREHERA L
standards and amendments to existing standards RIS S 5T 4RI 3R 5 2= Rl
as and when they become effective. Management BEIR - EIBEE#EITY LT
has performed preliminary assessment and HEEHRAZEER KRS
does not anticipate any significant impact on BB IERE LR Z BRI A%
the Group’s financial position and results of e EAREEN T B R E
operations upon adopting these standards and BREEEKERNEALE -

amendments to existing HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEETHERHE@

policies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

2.2 B A F
221 826 ABR

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a) Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

B B I B 7 AN 5% B O R 4 Il B
MER(BRRABER) -EXR
SEER2EZERBNEBM
ESXARZEANELDR A
BRNEEBEHERNENT
825 DA - B AN A
ZERB-MBAFBENEE
BEASEE ALELEE AR
I B IR AR L AR AR IR AR
BARK-

CINE) =¥

AE B KRB WIEER X
BH AR - WBHBA A
MERKERASEEE
BREE -FELRAERE
THRAEEARFE-
FrEEREEREHRRR
BLEMELEMEER
BENAFE -REBHE
§F P USR8 O B 38 B B E A
RAENARBERRRAR
NFREREER BN L
FEFE AKEREME
PIRERE - AP EK
12 IF 122 IO HE 25 A T
TEAEBFEENERS
BRI LL B - FER R BB
77 BT IR A 2

WEEHE B AR AR E £ R XX
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEETHERHE@

policies (Continued)
2.2 Kt 2 Al (4
22147 & ANBR (8
(@) K& 0f (&)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Business combination (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKFRS 9 in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries now comprising the
Group have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(b) Changes in ownership interests in

©)

subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposal to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2

2.3

122 eme

Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the Consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally but not
necessarily accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the investee after
the date of acquisition. The Group’s investment in an
associate includes goodwill identified on acquisition,
net of any accumulated impairment loss. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate and
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition

2 FESHBRHBE @

2.3 BE QT ()
AEBRGEEBEARWERER

profit or loss is recognised in the profit or loss, and RIBZEAER  HEGWEEEM

its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other

PHBENESHREMEE SN
BRWBERNEAEDHHRER

comprehensive income. The cumulative post- BN REAEETHE EASEHE
acquisition movements are adjusted against the H—EBsEARNEBESNNBA
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s HRBE R 75’9%&&(@%@:@/&1@

share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interests in the associate, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not

EIEM R B YGR) B - AERER
SHRE—TEE RIFCELZE
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recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf

of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
an associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount as
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profit or loss.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in an associate. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
A full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction
involves a business whereas a partial gain or loss is
recognised when a transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business, even if those assets are held
by a subsidiary. Accounting policies of an associate
have been changed where necessary to ensure
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consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in an
associate are recognised in the profit or loss. If the
ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss

where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM”). The CODM,
who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segment, has
been identified as the directors who make strategic
decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

124 =

2.5.1 Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The Company’s functional
currency is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”).

2.5.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are generally recognised in
consolidated income statement.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement
on a net basis within “Other losses, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities held at fair
value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEETHERHE@

policies (Continued)

2.5 IMNERE (®|)
253 £ E QA

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
2.5.3 Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

° income and expenses for each income
statement and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign operations are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated
income statement, as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs, net of their residual value, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 3to 5 years
Plant and machinery 3to 10 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of estimated
useful lives or
remaining lease terms

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposal are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Right-of-use assets included the rights to use certain
properties, plant and machinery under leases which
are measured at cost. The initial costs of right-of-use

assets include the following:
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e the amount of the initial measurement of lease o HHEABEVMIT=EMFIA "
liability,
e any lease payments made at or before the o  RAZHEISK 2 BT{E L R EA

commencement date,

o any initial direct costs, and

o restoration costs.

If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying assets
to the Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost
of the right-of-use assets reflect that the Group will
exercise a purchase option, the Group depreciates the
right-of-use asset from the commencement date of
the lease to the end of the useful life of the underlying
assets. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
over the shorter of the assets’ useful lives and their

lease terms on a straight-line basis.

2.7 Intangible asset
Software

Computer software licenses for own use are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. Computer software is
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment, if any. These costs are amortised over

their estimated useful lives of 3 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8

2.9

128 =

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset'’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at
FVTPL, and

° those to be measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will be recorded in profit or loss. The
Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

The Group reclassified debt investments when

and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEETHERHE@

policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

29 ERMEE @)
202 HERNETE

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in the
consolidated income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments to be:

e  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement and presented in ‘Other
losses, net’ together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated income statement.

° FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in consolidated income
statement and presented net within ‘other
losses, net’ in the period in which it arises.

RN T HERE - NEERQF
BEm(HEmEELIFRAFE
AR WESREEEKE
ENXHGRAFESREE -
BAVFEFABRSNEREE
RPRARER A WER I ©

ETRanEStERAER
BT REE - M ABRARDITAE
TANTREEEEEZE °

EETA
BERTAMBEAITERTAE
BEEBEEMNEREAREE
HEeREREME AEEE
HEKRTASDBEARMEFEE
5 :

o B FHERDALD
Heng mMREREE
REERNMENKNEE
BRBHKAFE -ZFS
BMEENN BB ANER
MEERFIABEWA - &
IEEREENE SN
BEREERGEKRAERA
MR LERIIEBZR
[EfEEFRE] 25 R
BEEBRGSRBERAE
REFBEBES -

o RAFEFARZ: TF
BRBEAASIEAFE
AR EEKENEE
PR R EF ABmEE -
HRER AR FEFABRERE
AENBEBIAMELEN
Wansk &8 - BN E £
ARG e kA RERL RN
HERFEANZS

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020 1 29



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9

2.10

2.11

130 =z

Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.3 Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and reward
of ownership.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
cost are subject to HKFRS 9’s expected credit loss
model. The Group assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1.2
sets out the details on how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For contract assets, trade and bills receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition. The provision
matrix is determined based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the contract
assets, trade and bills receivables with similar credit
risk characteristics and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For other receivables, the Group measures the
impairment as either 12-month expected credit losses
or life-time expected credit losses, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in
credit risk of the other receivables has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses.

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from
customers for services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade, bills and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted-average method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of three months or less.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.15

2.16

217

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade, bills and
other payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in interest expense
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the balance
sheet date.

All borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
finance costs.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

219.1Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)
2192 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEETHERHE@

policies (Continued)
220 EERF
NI ERR M

2.20 Employee benefits
2.20.1 Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated balance sheet.

2202 Other long-term employee benefit

obligations

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet if the entity
does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months after the
reporting period, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur.

2203 Defined contribution plans

The Group pays contributions to state-managed
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

2204 Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Group’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amount for the service rendered in the ordinary course
of the Group’s activity.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the promised
services to the customers and the payment by the
customers exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for
the time value of money.

When either party to a contract has performed, the
Group presents the contract in the consolidated
balance sheet as a contract asset or a contract liability,
depending on the relationship between the Group’s
performance and the customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred
to a customer. Incremental costs incurred to obtain a
contract, if recoverable, are capitalised and presented
as assets and subsequently amortised when the
related revenue is recognised.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group
has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers the promised
services to the customer, the Group presents the
contract as a contract liability when the payment is
received or a receivable is recorded (whichever is
earlier). A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to
transfer the promised services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)
Electronic manufacturing services

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have
been met for the Group’s activity as described below:

Rendering of electronic manufacturing service (“EMS”)
is recognised when or as the control of the services is

transferred to the customer.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the services
may transfer over time or at a point in time. Control
of the services is transferred over time if the Group’s

performance:

() provides all of the benefits received and (i)
consumed simultaneously by the customer; or

(i) creates and enhances an asset that the customer (ii)

controls as the Group performs; or

(i)  does not create an asset with an alternative use (iii)
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to

date.

If control of the services transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
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recognised at a point in time when the customer

obtains control of the asset.

Revenue from EMS contracts are recognised over time
using the input method with reference to the costs

incurred for the service.

2.22 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis using the effective interest method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.23 Leases

The Group leases various properties and plant and
machinery. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of one to five years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain various
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets
(included in properties, plant and equipment) and
the corresponding liabilities at the date of which the
respective leased asset is available for use by the
Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate;

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the entity’s incremental borrowing rate.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
less than 12 months. Low-value assets comprise
machinery with value below RMB5,000.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the years in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
equipment are included in current liabilities and non-
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful lives of the related assets.

2.26 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.
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3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

3.1.1Market risk
(@) Foreign exchange risk

The majority of assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB, United States
dollars (“USD”) and HK$, and there are no
significant assets and liabilities denominated
in other currencies. The Group is subject to
foreign exchange rate risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities which are denominated
in a currency other than RMB, which is the
functional currency of the major operating
companies within the Group. The Group
currently does not hedge its foreign currency
exposure.

At 31 December 2020, if USD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
RMB with all other variables held constant,
profit before income tax for the year then
ended would have been approximately
RMB416,000 higher/lower (31 December
2019: RMB51,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange difference on
the translation of USD denominated contract
assets, trade and bills receivables, cash and
cash equivalents and bank borrowing.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

@)

©®)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, if HKD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
RMB with all other variables held constant,
profit before income tax for the year then
ended would have been approximately
RMB45,000 higher/lower (31 December
2019: RMB483,000 lower/higher), mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference
on the translation of HKD denominated cash
and cash equivalents and other payables.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
attributable to its cash at banks and
bank and other borrowings with floating
interest rates. Details of the Group’s cash
at banks and bank and other borrowings
have been disclosed in Notes 22 and 28
to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Other than cash at banks and bank and
other borrowings, the Group does not
have significant interest-bearing assets or
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2020, if interest rates
on cash at banks and bank and other
borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all variables held constant,
profit before income tax for the years then
ended would have been approximately
RMB1,045,000 higher/lower (31 December
2019: RMB1,310,000 higher/lower).
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1Market risk (Continued)
(c) Price risk

The Group’s exposure to price risk arises

142 =

from investments held by the Group and
classified in the consolidated balance sheet
at FVTPL.

At 31 December 2020, if the fair values of
the investments classified as financial assets
at FVTPL had been 10% higher/lower, with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s
profit before income tax would have been
RMB500,000 higher/lower (31 December
2019: Nil).

3.1.2Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
contract assets, trade and bills receivables,
other financial assets at amortised cost, pledged
bank deposits and cash at banks. The carrying
amounts of each financial asset represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets.

(@) Risk management

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that credit terms are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history and the
Group’s performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were deposited with high quality financial
institutions. Therefore, the Group does not
expect any significant losses arising from
non-performance by these counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERRERE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEREZ @)
3.1.2Credlit risk (Continued) 3125 8RRk (&)
(@) Risk management (Continued) (@) [EfEEEE (&)

©)

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, 89% and 82% of the Group’s revenue
was derived from its top five customers
respectively. As at 31 December 2020 and
2019, 84% and 72% of the total contract
assets and 69% and 75% of the total trade
and bills receivables were due from the
Group’s top five customers respectively.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents
are limited because deposits are in banks
with sound credit ratings and management
does not expect any loss from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
models:

° Contract assets, trade and bills
receivables

° Other financial assets carried at
amortised cost
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERRERE @
3.1 MEEKEEZE @)
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(b) A ERE (E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Contract assets, trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all contract assets, trade and
bills receivables. The Group measures the
expected credit losses on a combination of
both individual and collective basis.

To measure the expected credit losses,
contract assets, trade and bills receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past
due. The contract assets relate to unbilled
services and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for
the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss
rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.

Measurement of expected credit loss on
individual basis

Contract assets, trade and bills receivables
with known insolvencies are assessed
individually for impairment allowances and
are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a prepayment plan with
the Group, and a failure to make contractual
payments. As at 31 December 2020, the
balance of loss allowance in respect of
these individually assessed receivables
was RMB135,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB995,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

% E e E = ()
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEREZ @)
3.1.2Credlit risk (Continued) 3125 8RRk (&)
(b) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (b) A ERE (E)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated
by grouping the remaining receivables
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, taking into account the nature of
the customer and its ageing category, and
applying the expected credit loss rates to
the respective gross carrying amounts of the
receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are estimated
on the basis of historical credit losses
experienced, adjusted to reflect the effects of
existing market conditions as well as forward
looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivable.

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of
loss allowance in respect of these collectively
assessed receivables was approximately
RMB136,000 (31 December 2019: Nil).

Impairment losses on contract assets,
trade and bills receivables are presented as
“net impairment losses on financial assets
and contract assets” in the consolidated
income statement. When a receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the
same line item.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERRERE @
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets carried at amortised
cost

The Group’s other financial assets carried
at amortised cost include deposit and other
receivables in the consolidated balance
sheet. The impairment loss of other financial
assets carried at amortised cost is measured
based on the 12-month expected credit
loss. The 12-month expected credit loss is
the portion of lifetime expected credit loss
that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since origination, the allowance
will be based on the lifetime expected credit
loss.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
management considered the credit risk of
deposits and other receivables to be low
as counterparties have a strong capacity to
meet their contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term. The Group has assessed
that the expected credit losses for these
deposits and other receivables were
immaterial under 12-month expected losses
method. Therefore, the loss allowance
provision for these balances was close to
zero and no provision was recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERRERE @

3.1 MBERER @
313MBE = AR

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.3Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer
term.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
held cash and cash equivalents amounting
to approximately RMB104,004,000 and
RMB139,172,000 respectively, that are expected
to be readily available to generate cash inflows for
managing liquidity risk.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of
sources including orderly realisation of receivables
that the Group considers appropriate and long
term financing including long-term borrowings
and lease liabilities are also considered by the
Group in its capital structuring. The Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient
bank balances, committed credit lines available
and interest bearing borrowings which enable the
Group to continue its business for the foreseeable
future.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group had no undrawn banking facilities and
the Group’s total drawn banking facilities
amounted to approximately RMB13,937,000 and
RMB5,073,000 respectively.

The table below analyses the non-derivative
financial liabilities of the Group into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HKERKRERE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEREZ @)
3.1.3Liquidity risk (Continued) 313MBNE & Az (48)
The amounts disclosed in the table were the FANBENESEAREHARAR
contractual undiscounted cash flows and the ReMERAEEERERE
earliest date the Group can be required to pay. NH&ERH-

Between1 Between 2

Less than and and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
DM E 1826 2E5%F @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARWTR ARETR AR®TR

At 31 December 2020 R-ZBE-Z=F
+=—A=+—H
Trade payables B Z R IE 18,482 - - 18,482
Other payables and accruals £t & < 018 &
Bt E R 22,164 - - 22,164
Bank and other borrowings ~ $R17 K H A (& 5k
— principal portion — Ao 5,889 8,048 - 13,937
— interest portion —HMEE D 113 55 - 168
Lease liabilities HEBE
— principal portion —AE D 4,725 1,621 145 6,491
— interest portion —HMEE D 223 45 12 280
51,596 9,769 157 61,522
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
DR1E 15224 REFEE aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETRT
At 31 December 2019 R=-Z—N#F
+=—A=+—H
Trade payables B RN IR 16,192 - - 16,192
Other payables and accruals £ 1t F& {5 7k 38 K2
JEETE R 11,538 - - 11,538
Bank and other borrowings R 17 & H Ath (& 7k
— principal portion —AR& o 6,604 1,600 - 8,204
— interest portion —HMBEE D 404 34 = 438
Lease liabilities HERE
— principal portion —AR&EHD 3,848 3,882 901 8,631
— interest portion —HMBEE D 370 152 20 542
38,956 5,668 921 45,545
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERRERE @
3.2 Capital management 32 EXREH

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total
debt to total capital ratio. Total debt and total capital
represent total borrowings and total equity, as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet. The total debt to
total capital ratios at 31 December 2020 and 2019
were as follows:

AEHREEEANABRERELE
LiireRi g St F g i)

LA % P 3R % R [B] g+ [ sk B L b
MEEREE MR - AR RED
EARRBARBEESKA -

REFRFHFABELARE  AEEH
SREBEAMRRIKNOBRE S [
BERR BB Al & B E LARE AT

AEEZRAREHREANLXRE
EER - MABRBEARDRIEER
REERBERAITHAREERR
BE - N _FT_TER_FT-NF
T-A=+-BAWMBRABEHRER
R

2020 2019
—Z2-%F —FT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Total borrowings (bank and other B GRIT REAMIEK
borrowings and lease liabilities) M&ﬁ AfE) 20,428 16,835
Total equity BRE T 291,931 278,673
Total debt to total capital ratio REEHBEERLEE 7% 6%

The increase in total debt to total capital ratio from 6%
as at 31 December 2019 to 7% as at 31 December
2020 was mainly due to additional drawdown of bank
borrowing for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

B 7 [ B B X (@)
3.3 A {EMET

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments carried at fair value are analysed
by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

e  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including financial assets at FVTPL, trade, bills and
other receivables, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents;
and the Group’s financial liabilities, including trade
payables, other payables and accruals, bank and
other borrowings and lease liabilities, approximate their
fair values due to their short maturities. The carrying
amounts of non-current deposits, bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities approximate their fair
values which are estimated based on the discounted
cash flows.

The nominal values less any estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with
a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
consolidated balance sheet across the three levels (31
December 2019: Nil).

3 BXEEKREE@E

3.3 AFEE (&)
TRAZHEBRRIGAEAEAE
RARRTEAENSRMTANE

HE(ZE-AF+-_A=1+—8:
&) -

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020

R-B-BF+-A=1+-HHNAFEE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E£14% F28K F 3K et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTR ARETRT ARET:R
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEGFAERZD
SEEE
— Unlisted investment fund —JEFEMIREES - - 5,000 5,000
— Listed trading securities —FmEEZES 1 - - 1
1 - 5,000 5,001
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 FANE 2RIP2EWEERE (=
during the year (31 December 2019:Nil). Z—NF+ZA=+—H: &) -
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TEREVINEE-_ZT_ZTFF+=A
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December =+ BLEFEFIHEMIT AN
2020: 1t
Unlisted
investment
fund
kEHES
RMB’000
ARETx
Balance at 1 January MR—HB— BR&EER -
Additions INE 5,000
Balance at 31 December RT=—A=+—HBH#&& 5,000

Unlisted investment fund was stated at fair value which
is estimated using other prices observed in recent
transactions when the market price is not readily
available. If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

4.1 Net realisable value of inventories
The Group’s inventories comprise solely raw materials
of which management primarily intends to utilise for
EMS contracts. These raw materials are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

The Group utilises these raw materials for the
assembling and production of printed circuit board
assembly (“PCBA”), and their net realisable value is
the estimated service contract price less estimated
costs to completion and selling expenses. The
estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of provision of services
using raw materials of similar nature. Write-downs of
inventories are recognised where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
realised. The identification of write-downs requires the
use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-
downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. Management reassesses
these estimates at end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

4.2 Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Significant judgement is required
in determining provision for income taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred income tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be
utilised. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and tax expense in
the periods in which such estimate is changed.

4.3 Impairment of receivables and contract

assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of
receivables and contract assets based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s historical default rates, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. The identification
of impairment of receivables and contract assets
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where
the expectations are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the carrying
value of receivables and contract assets and loss for
the impairment of receivables and contract assets
recognised in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Revenue and segment information

The Company is an investment holding company and the
Group is principally engaged in the EMS.

The CODM has been identified as the directors of the
Company. The directors review the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. The directors have determined the operating
segment based on these reports.

The directors consider the Group’s operation from a
business perspective and determine that the Group has one
reportable operating segment being the EMS.

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segment based on a measure of revenue and gross profit.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, all
of the Group’s revenues are from contracts with customers
and are recognised over time. Please refer to Note 2.21 for
details of the accounting policies on revenue recognition.

(a) Segment revenue by customers’
geographical location
The Group is domiciled in the PRC. The Group’s
revenue by geographical location, which is determined
by the location of customers, is as follows:

W= Ko EpE R

ARARA—REEZR
THEEMS -

nE AKEE

TELERARECHERARAES -
EERMAKENAIRE AT A RIR
ROBER BEFCREZFHRERTE

s
S EL o

%%ﬁé?ﬁ%ﬁf%)ﬂxgm i
REAEEHER — B 2mMEE ﬁ—EB(ED
EMS) °

EERBREEREMNNFEFGHREED
EBEVRIRA o

HE-_ZT_TFR-_T—NAF+=A
S+t BLUEEFEE AEBFRE KRR
BERFFI A  WHER R T ARR -
ERREBRANEGABRERFE H2H
MfsE2.21 o

(@) ZBEFMHEBNEBE 2N DS
Y &=
AEBEETFRBEFEMAL - A&EEIE
HEVE (EREFAUEERE)E S
Uz T

2020 2019

—E-EH —ZT—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBET T ARBFIT

The PRC MR 246,036 284,266
The United States of America (the “USA”)  EFIER A& BB ([EE ) 183 322
Others B 312 -
246,531 284,588
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

5 Revenue and segment information 5 WakoBER @
(Continued)
(b) Details of contract liabilities (b) EREEFHE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —EF-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Contract liabilities (Note 27) aRAE KEE27) 1,487 462

Notes: BiaE -

()  Contract liabilities represent advanced payments received from () EREBEEREAETFTEFPORBER
the customers for services that have not been transferred to the = WCER B T8 UK IE o AR BT A TR UGRIE
customers. The contract liabilities fluctuated during the years REETERE  BE_T_TF K=
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 due to fluctuation in sales T NF+ZA=+—HILEFEHER
orders with advanced payments. BEAMMES -

(i) During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, all i) BEZ_ZFR-_ZT-NF+A
brought-forward contract liabilities at the beginning of the =+—HIEFE FMBERVBEEIR
financial year were fully recognised as revenue. HEMERARBEBEERA Y -

(c) Major customers c) XBEXF
Revenue from customers individually contributing over KB B Bl G 7N & B 48 0 25 38 10% &Y
10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follow: PR ERTEDT
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARET T

Customer A EEA 72,533 104,143

Customer B ®FB 59,490 54,973

Customer C =FC 54,358 43,910

Total 5t 186,381 203,026

The five largest customers accounted for approximately AREBEFMHBE-_ZE_ZF+_A

89% of revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 =+ —HLEFENKRZEL8I% (=

(2019: 82%). —NF : 82%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIERRMEE @)

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

(d) Unsatisfied performance obligations

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all performance
obligations not yet satisfied by the Group were from
contracts with original expected duration of less than
one year. Therefore, as permitted by the relevant
practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied performance
obligations were not disclosed.

() Non-current assets by geographical
location

All of the Group’s non-current assets were located in
the PRC.

156 EmesmrERAT 45 2020

5 WakoBER @

d) HREITZENRE

(e)

RZZEZTFR=_ZT—-NF+=A
=+—H AXEBEFREHRABEITZ
& 492 7539 2R 1A |R T8 BR 5 B I [
DR —FHEH - Bt - HOEH
B iEREER 15K AEERER
ZETFTERF  WABBESRE TS
MARBITZRAOEBHZFHE o

REVESINERBE
E
AEBHFAIRE AR RE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

BUHEEDTNAX
FAHERE  HERS BN TR
AXUREMEERAREERERE

6 Expenses by nature 6

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses and net impairment

losses on financial assets and contract assets are analysed FRENREIZ AT
as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T ARET T
Cost of raw materials and consumables {55 AR R A 4 K2 JE FE qm A AN
used 84,889 75,826
Subcontracting charges PBEEMR 15,231 7,300
Employee benefit expenses and manpower & & 48 5 5z & A 1 &R IR
service expenses, including directors’ BHEX  BIEEEHE
emoluments (Notes 9 and 37) (Bf5E9 X 37) 66,116 79,487
Rental expenses of short-term leases in LWTRENEHEEHRESH
respect of: X :
— machineries (Note 23(c)) — 28 (fi=E23(c)) 19,655 22,662
- offices, warehouses, production plant —-WMAE -BEE EE
and staff quarters (Note 23(c)) BE;EETIES
(Pt3E23(c) 1,770 806
Utilities KEE 4,094 4,361
Depreciation (Note 14) ITE (FFsE14) 24,858 19,944
Amortisation (Note 15) B (PFsE15) 296 =
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ERR Bl
— Audit services (excluding listing —BF R (T BHE
expenses) EmH%) 1,779 1,231
Listing expenses ERAX - 18,063
Professional fees EXER 4,520 8,439
Provision for inventories (Note 20) FE#E (FfizE20) 1,176 1,811
Net impairment losses on financial assets S REERA REE
and contract assets VEREYEi=b= 235 995
Other tax and surcharges H Ath B 18 K fff 0 & 1,815 2,186
Transportation R EEH 587 697
Travelling expenses 7= I B 669 1,115
Others HAith 7,368 5,658
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution &R A « 55 & 5
expenses, administrative expenses and A TR AR
net impairment losses on financial assets & &E M & R& EREE B
and contract assets F R 235,058 250,581
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIERRMEE @)

7 Other income 7 HiA
2020 2019
i —F-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Government grants B 1 B 4,497 3,496
Equipment rental income RERS KA - 187
4,497 3,683
8 Other losses, net 8 HihEHEFEE
2020 2019
—E-ETHF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBFT
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BERRED
equipment (Note 31(b)) &8 (FIEE31(0) (2,665) (608)
Exchange differences PE X =58 (34) (450)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HEEATFEGFTABERN
FVTPL (Note 18) TREENYE (MF18) 489 -
(2,210) (1,058)

Employee benefit expenses and

9 EEBEAAIRADERRE

manpower service expenses, including X (BREEEMS)
directors’ emoluments
2020 2019
e —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Wages and salaries TERF® 60,099 66,381
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 3B K & Ak 28 — 57 E (G2l
(Note a) (MFsEa) 1,502 4,474
Other staff welfares Hih 8T 1,215 1,958
Total employee benefit expenses EERAFZBE
(including directors’ remunerations) (BIEEEHH) 62,816 72,813
Manpower service expenses (Note b) ANERREHRZ (izEb) 3,300 6,674
66,116 79,487
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

a8t

2y =18

BT @)

9 Employee benefit expenses and
manpower service expenses, including
directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Pensions costs — defined contribution plans

The PRC

As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC,
the subsidiary operating in the PRC contributes to state-sponsored
retirement plans for its employees. For the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019, depending on the provinces of the employees’
registered residences and their current region of work, the subsidiary
contributed certain percentages of the basic salaries of its employees
and had no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or
postretirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Human Resources and
Social Security Bureau of Shenzhen Municipality has announced that
all micro, small and medium size enterprises in Shenzhen were exempt
from making employer contributions to pension, unemployment and
work-related injury insurance schemes from the period between
February and December 2020.

Manpower service expenses

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
entered into certain manpower service arrangements with several
external manpower service organisations in the PRC. Under these
arrangements, certain of the Group’s manpower requirements were
fulfilled by these organisations at agreed service fees whereas the
human resources provided were directly employed by the relevant
service organisations. The individuals providing services to the Group
did not have any employment relationship with the Group.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
include three directors for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
Note 37(a). The emoluments payable to the remaining two individuals
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

9 EERAHEZIRANERRE
R (BREEEMWNE) @

MisE :

(@)

RIKE A —FREH-FKETE

B

REBABAABRRRERRE  RARBEZEED
MiEBArRZAAEESRBEREAEART B
HER - BHE—T-_TFR_FT-NF+=A
=+—BLEFE BTEENEZPEEHOR
HEAIIE®HE  MBARAFLEEEEAR
HeETE D LMHER B EE—SETR
ZEHFIMNVBAR S RRKEBEFELER X
o ZEERE PR E B ERMTERKE
BMEIHERSET -

BE-Z-_ZF+-A=+—RHLFE &I
MANBRIMEREREMH  R_T_TF
—RE+=-AHE  RYIMAE R N HE B
EREAEEZS  KERIERRBRTEELE
FHEK

ANERRBEHX
HE-_T-_ZTFR=_FT—NF+=-A=+—H
IFFE  AEEESRPBEINDA I ERERS
BTN ET ANBERRSZH - REBER
B ZERBERBEREERRE T ASEE
FAFFK - mATRER A &R B HERE RS
WEEEED 2ERAASEREREHOAL
S 4% B AR £ B R A (T (] (R (R o

AEERT AL
BE-_ZT-_ZFR-_FT—HNF+=-A=+—H
ILEE AEBREGRaFMALTEE=2E
= Hi & RMREK 370 M2 - &
EZE-TFER-ZT-NEFE+ZA=1+—Hit
EE ENRTMBEATHMSHT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

9 EERNFAXIRADERRS

9 Employee benefit expenses and

manpower service expenses, including Y (BREEMS) @
directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) BiisE - (48)
(c)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued) © HREBE=RTMALGE)
2020 2019
—E-EF “ENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF ARETT
Wages and salaries TER¥FS 1,366 1,139
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIKE KA —RERKEE 20 33
1,386 1,172
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MeeEmT
Number of individuals
AE
2020 2019
gt X —TNEF
Emolument band MesEE
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 77 Z 1,000,000 7% T 2 2
2 2

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

BE-_ZT-_ZFR-_FT-—NF+=-A=+—H
LHEE ASEHENENESAEHZR
A L RE MM S EAMBESREMBEAER
By 1) S Sk (E R BE R E o

10 BB R4 FE

10 Finance costs, net

2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETIT
Finance income =N
Interestincome on cashatbanks || EMAEMA 925 364
Finance costs il & BL A
Interest expenses on RT3 S EHFEFEZ
— Bank and other borrowings —iR1T R HE A S (570) (1,108)
— Leases (Note 23(b)) — & (MIE23(0)) (432) (493)
o 002)  (1,601)
Finance costs, net B & AR AN EE (77) (1,237)
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11 Income tax expense
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
Shenzhen Confidence, the Group’s major subsidiary in the
PRC, has qualified for high and new technology enterprises
status and is therefore subject to a preferential income tax

rate of 15%.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group had no

assessable profit in Hong Kong.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

11 FBEHRAX

HEBEM SRS -

BHE-_ZT-_ZFR=_ZT—NLF+=A
=+ —HALEE AEEBEFBENEES
BRI RIEEE ERERR TN
A - A =HEEMSHEA15% o

BE_T_ZFFER_F-NAFE+=A
“t-BLEFE BRAREYESRS
FERBUB A - A WIRAR A M5 REKAE

2020 2019
e —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Current income tax B PR 155
- PRC Corporate income tax —HR B EEREH
(“CIT”) (T 2FEH) 2,167 8,363
— Over-provision in prior year — B FEBERE (84) @1)
2,083 8,342
Deferred income tax (Note 25) IEFE {88 (fI5E25) 60 (657)
Income tax expense 8w 2,143 7,685
2020 2019
—EEF —ZT-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T
Profit before income tax B AT 1S B B g A 13,683 35,395
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to & &1 /& 2 &) A8 A 5
profits of the respective subsidiaries HEFTERFIE 1,966 5,277
Tax effect of: MG 2
Income not taxable REBA (76) (24)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose A 1% A 2 1,583 4,084
Tax losses for which no deferred income I #ERERIEEFT 1S5 & E HY
tax asset was recognised TRIEEE 163 -
Over-provision in prior year BEFEHRERE (84) 21)
Super deductions from research and T2 A a0k (BT &E)
development expenditures (Note) (1,409) (1,631)
Income tax expense FriS iz 2,143 7,685
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4= ANH

g =|

11

12

162 eme

B ERR MR (@)

Income tax expense (Continued)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 14.4%
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: 14.9%). The change is caused by a change in the
profitability mix of the Group’s subsidiaries in the respective
countries.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxation profits is probable.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has unrecognised tax
losses of a PRC subsidiary of approximately RMB651,000
(81 December 2019: Nil) to offset against future taxable
income. The unrecognised tax loss will expire in five years.

Note: According to the relevant laws and regulations promulgated by the
State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, enterprises engaging
in research and development activities are entitled to claim 150% to
175% of their research and development expenses incurred as tax
deductible expenses when determining their assessable profits for that
year.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used for such
purpose has been retrospectively adjusted for the effects
of the issue of shares in connection with the capitalisation
issue which took place on 20 September 2019 as set out in
Note 24.

11

12

8B X @

HE_ZT_TZF+_A=+—HIEE
MMNEFHERKREEAE14.4% (ZZ— AN
FE+ZA=+—H:14.9%) - & H
RASENE R AR R/ EFE
BT ©

FEFTSMEEMEE 2 HIBEIEM
fﬁwu ‘E»Uéﬂj@ﬁﬁ*jzﬁgn%%ﬂ/ﬁﬁﬁj
B HBAMIBNE AR RN
$¢+_H_+ B K'EIE’J*FT?
Blfff B ARHRERTEBEN AR
¥ 651,000t (ZE—NFE+=-_A=+—
B &) - LSRR ERTUA o R

RREBEBERAFREE -

Mz REBETFBEBEREHEBOMARERERER 1§
EUEE R A 1D A E T EARB R A6
ARG FTE £ M A M 150% E175% 1E &
AR -

BREF

BREABFIZARAERIHE AR
HEARUBE-Z-_2ER_T—NF
+- A=+ BLEFEMNERTEER

MEFHEEE - BIEZ BN ERK
MEFHBER—_FT-NFAA-_TH
BEAREBRTER IR #ET (RHE24)

MR EFHENHE -

2020 2019
—E-EZH — N
Profit for the year attributable to equity RAFERFEAEGEER
holders of the Company (RMB’000) wA (ARETFIT) 11,736 27,710
Weighted average number of ordinary B BT E R AR INFE 5 8
shares in issue (thousands of shares) (FR%) 250,000 198,868
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREERT
(RMB cents) (ANREES) 4.69 13.93
There were no differences between the basic and diluted HREBZE_Z_TFR_T-NLFT=
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive A=+—H Jtifhjlﬂ?‘ﬁﬁﬁ\\éﬁ
ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended 31 BELTER NERERARESRFIL
December 2020 and 2019. mER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

13 Subsidiaries

13 B 2 7
AEER-E-_TER-_FT—AE+=

The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020

and 2019 are set out below.

A=+—HNETEMBRARTHIIMT -

Percentage of effective
interest held/controlled
by the Group
EEEE/BHH
ERERE AL
Place of Principal activities
incorporation and and place of Particular of
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity ~ operation paid up capital 2020 2019
SR A L i B R FEEHR
WEARERE EEERER Kem BHRRAFE —ZT-2F —T-NF
Direct Interests:
B
New Trive Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding USD1 100% 100%
company in BVI
New Trive Limited RERLEE REBELEE 1% 100% 100%
BRAH WHEREER
Hero Tag Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding USD1 100% -
company in BV
Hero Tag Limited HBERTHES REBRLHS e 100% -
BRAR REREBER
Indlrect Interests:
R -
New Trive (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$10,000 100% 100%
liability company in Hong Kong
HMoiE (B BER AR B BRAF REBRERE 10,000/ 7T 100% 100%
sl
Xinzhi (Shenzhen) Electronic The PRC, limited Investment holding RMB100,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd.* (52 (&) liability company in the PRC
EFERAA)
EERIEFBERDA RE ARAR RPBERERE AR #100,0007T 100% 100%
sl
Shenzhen Confidence The PRGC, limited Electronic RMB115,238,710 100% 100%
Intelligence Electronic liability company manufacturing
Co., Ltd.* (FYIERE 4 services in the
EFERRAA) PRC
ANEBEEETAERA mE BRAR RPEREET ARE 100% 100%
BB R 115,238,710 7T
Confidence Intelligence Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$3,000,000 100% 100%
(Hongkong) Limited liability company in Hong Kong
ERE® (FR)ARA B8 BRRA REBRERE 3,000,000 7T 100% 100%
sl
* For identification purposes only * EHEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIERRMEE @)

13 Subsidiaries (Continued)

13 B2 8 (@)

Percentage of effective
interest held/controlled
by the Group
AEEIE /BN
ERERAIL
Place of Principal activities
incorporation and and place of Particular of
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity ~ operation paid up capital 2020 2019
a1l A 32 3t B K% TEFEPR
) NG EEREESR LEh BERRRAFE —ZT-TF _—T-NF
Confidence Intelligence, Inc. The United States Dormant USD10,000 100% 100%
of America (the
“USA”), limited
liability company
Confidence Inteligence, Inc. XHNBARE EEXH 10,000% 7T 100% 100%
(1%=E8]) :
BRAA
Hero Tag (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$1 100% =
liability company in Hong Kong
Hero Tag (HK) Limited B BRAF REBRERE 18T 100% -
sl
Wanhai Big Data Technology The PRG, limited Dormant Nil 100% =
(Shanghai) Limited* liability company
(BEREERK (L)
AR AT])
BEBREBNE(LE)ER mE: BRAA EERK z 100% -
NS
Chonggaing Xinken Technology The PRC, limited Electronic RMB20,000,000 70% -
Company Limited* liability company manufacturing
(EEEBRHBERAR) services in the
PRC
ERERMRBRAT mE: BRAA RPEREET ARE 70% -
SLE R 20,000,0007T

For identification purposes only

(a) Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December
2020 is RMB5,804,000 (2019: Nil). The non-controlling
interests in respect of these companies are not

material.

164 e=e
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(@) EXRFERES
R-B_FF+_A=+t—Hr¥k
Rt 2 AR R S A R % 5,804,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

14 Property, plant and equipment 14 Y% - BERRE
Right-of-use Furniture Office Plant and Motor  Leasehold
assefs  andfixtures  equipment  machinery vehicles  improvements Total

ERERE HHRKE  RARR  HRRESE nE RENRRE it
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RWBOD  RWBOO  RWBO
ARBTT  ARETR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR

At1 January 2019 W=8-n%-f-A

Cost A 18,792 765 1220 136,204 1714 2548 161,243
Accumulated depreciafion Zithe (6,390) 02) (539) (£9,697) 110) (829) (58,389)
Net book amount EETE 12402 543 682 86,507 1,004 1720 102,858

Yearended 31 December 2019~ HZ-F-AEt=A=1-A

LLEE

Qpening net hook amount BNEESE 12,402 543 682 86,507 1,004 1720 102,858
Addtons g 1515 260 1555 34626 - - 37,956
Depreciation il (3,610) e (493) (14727) (339) (359) (19,944)
Disposals i3 - - - (608) - - (608)
Transfer (Note a) EE (RE) 510) - - 2510 - - -
Closing net book amount BREDFE 7,797 586 1,744 108,308 666 1,161 120262
At 31 December 2019 W-E-AETZA=1-R

Cost s 16,637 1025 2775 173,566 1714 2548 198,265
Accumulated depreciafion 2ihE (8540) (439) (1,081) (65,259) (1,049 (1,387) (18009
Net book amount REAE 7,797 586 1,744 108308 666 1,161 120262
Yearended 31 December 2020  EZ-Z-EF+-f=1-H

LEE

Opening net book amount BNEEEE 7,797 586 1,744 108,308 666 1,161 120,262
Addtons HE 2170 13 1,076 53,498 - 5,083 61,062
Depreciation il (3,804) g (991) (17,52 (302 (1,969) (24,859)
Disposals it - - - (3,145) - - 3145)
Closing net book amount BREEAR 6,163 444 1,829 141,139 34 4,8 154,201
At 31 December 2020 RZBZBE+ZA=1-A

Cost WA 18,807 1,160 3,851 212,081 1,714 7631 246,004
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (12,644) (716) (2,022) (711,792) (1,350) (3,349) (91,879
Net book amount REFE 6,163 444 1829 141,139 34 4,28 154,201
Note: B oE -

(8)  The Group has exercised the purchase options and transferred certain @ AEERESHAERBITEESRERMBET

assets from right-of-use assets to plant and machinery at the end of BERFRELEEEREME RS -

the lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIERRMEE @)

14 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
depreciation expenses have been charged in cost of
sales, selling and distribution expenses and administrative
expenses as below:

14 Y% - BERRE @

BE_Z_ZEFER_FT—-—NF+=A
—+t—BLEFE HERIBFTAEE
A~ SEERDHEAST RITEASZOT ¢

2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Cost of sales $HE KA 21,008 16,024
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX 23 108
Administrative expenses TR 3,827 3,812
24,858 19,944
15 Intangible asset 5 BMEEE
Software
B4
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2020 RZE-TF—H—H
Cost (BN -
Accumulated amortisation RET#H =
Net book amount R FE —
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z _TF+_A=+—HIFE
Opening net book amount B BREDFE =
Additions NE 1,774
Amortisation charge BiEAY (296)
Closing net book amount BRERMF(E 1,478
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZEF+=-_A=+—H
Cost AR 1,774
Accumulated amortisation RET#H (296)
Net book amount BRI F B 1,478
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

16 Investment in an associate 16 A—BEHE AT Z2RE
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR T T
Unlisted entity (Note a) KREMEEE (fiska) - -
Notes: ffeE -
(@)  Particulars of the associate as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as @ HBMERRAR-ZE_TFR-_T—NF+=A
follows: =+ —HAZFBET
Place of
Name incorporation % of ownership interest Principal activity
=B = 3t B HEEREER LA FTEEK
2020 2019

o 53 —T—hEF

Renxiao Technology (Shenzhen) The PRC 8% 8% Production, research and development
Company Limited* (A BEEH% and sales of intelligent hardware and
GRIN) B A ) (‘Renxiac”) cloud platform products

ABERE ORI AR DA ([ABED FE 8% 8% 4E RARERHEEHEBEHERETA

Ed
& For identification purposes only * EHER
Renxiao is a private company and there is no quoted market price ABEBARR  HEROIETIHRE -

available for its shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group acquired 8% HE-TZ—X"F+-A=+—HLLFE ' £&
equity interest in Renxiao at a consideration of RMB1,000,000. BlIR R (B AR 1,000,000 7T 4k A Bz 8% AXHE -
Management has assessed the level of influence that the Group BE_ZT_TFER-_FT-NF+ZA=+—H
exercises on Renxiao during the years ended 31 December 2020 and IHFE EEEETHASEHABETFENY
2019, and determined that it has significant influence thereon through ZRE URE ERAEFTSREREREL
a board representation and other arrangements made. Consequently, HEMZhmE It BEEATE - Bt » Z&E
this investment has been classified as an investment in an associate. BEPBEAR—HBMERRZEKE -
Management assessed that the investment costs of Renxiao would BEE AN ARMIREKAEEEWE - 3
not be recoverable and recognised full impairment for the balance. BRAERDERE °

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020 1 67



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

16 Investment in an associate (Continued) 16 R—EBEQXTA 2RE @

Notes: (Continued) Bz - (48)

(b)  Set out below is the summarised financial information of Renxiao ) TXHIANEFERAEREARZEZNEE
extracted from its financial statements for the years ended 31 HOOBEEEEE T _TFR-_F—NF
December 2020 and 2019 which are accounted for using the equity +ZA=+—BULEFEZHBHREK) :
method:

2020 2019
—ECoEF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFTT
Summarised income statements RERBRK

Administrative expenses TERRX (5) (4)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year — “F AET1E [ 2 £ 18 42 %8 (5) (4)
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT

Summarised balance sheet REEEEER
Current assets REBEE 474 479
Non-current assets FEMEBEE - -
Shareholder’s equity %R = 474 479
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

17 Prepayments, deposits and other 17 EARE R R HEMERR

receivables 18

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARET T

Current portion BEAEB &

Prepayments to suppliers TE T FE P FIR 2,758 2,010

Rental and other deposits (Note a) e kEaize (Hizta) 1,224 1,718

Value added tax (“VAT”) receivable FEWEER (HEEH]) 3,240 =

Other receivables (Note a) H b e Uz (FisEa) 6 5

7,228 3,733

Non-current portion JE BN ER B

Prepayments of acquisition of property, BEWE BERZREBEZE

plant and equipment NE e 1,314 413
Rental deposits (Note a) HEZRS (fizEa) 216 755
1,530 1,168

Note: Bt 5E -

(@  Asat 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of deposits @ RIE_EER-_ZE-—AFE+-_A=+—8"
and other receivables approximated their fair values. These balances e R EMEWZIERNRRELEE AN FEERS -
were unsecured and interest free. ZERERRERRAR RS -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits ANEETEZIE R R pE Uk s

and other receivables were denominated in the following B BE I I T 51| 55 M =1

currencies:

2020 2019

—E-ERF —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTR  ARBTE

RMB NG 8,590 4,646
HKS$ BT 168 255
8,758 4,901
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIERRMEE @)

18 Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

18 BRAFEHFAESNERMEE

AEEZE A FEFABSNESREER
FETREES R ETRFEFNKE -
ZEERMEERIIZAFE; ARG
EFBmT

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL represent investment
in an unlisted investment fund and listed trading securities.
These financial assets are mandatorily measured at FVTPL
and with following details.

Unlisted Listed
investment trading
fund securities Total
kLT £
REES REEH et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT ARETRT
Balance at 1 January R—A—BW&EeR = = =
Additions NE 5,000 8,952 18,952
Gain on disposal (Note 8) & Was (FP5ES) = 489 489
Disposal HE - (8,859) (8,859)
Exchange realignment bE 5 & - (581) (581)
Balance at 31 December R+-A=+—HW&EsH 5,000 1 5,001
2020 2019
—Z2-%F —FT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR®T T
Current asset REBEE
Unlisted investment fund (Note (a)) FELEMREES (Hik@) 5,000 -
Listed trading securities EmREES 1 =
5,001 -
Note: B 2
(@  Unlisted investment fund (@) I FHIREES

On 1 March 2021, the Company has entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent investor to dispose of the
unlisted investment fund at a consideration of RMB5,000,000.

R-T-—F=A—A ' ARRRBIIEEE
I B B - A EAR5,000,0007T T
EZIELTREES -

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are
recorded in “other losses, net” in the consolidated income
statement.

BRAFEFABSNEREEN QA FE
RGeS RN EMEBRFE] T
AR e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

19 Financial instruments by category

19 REREINEMTA

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFABRZH
BREE 5,001 =
Financial assets at amortised cost R#HR AT R SREEE
Trade and bills receivables (Note 21) B 5 FEWGIE & R R 1R
(MgzE21) 15,290 26,610
Deposits and other receivables & KA FE I GRIA
(Note 17) (fgsE17) 1,446 2,478
Pledged bank deposits (Note 22) BEPIRITER (FI5E22) 14,557 =
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) RekREEEY (K:E22) 104,004 139,172
140,298 168,260
Financial liabilities =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEK AR SRIABE
Trade payables (Note 26) B 5 e E (K 5E26) 18,482 16,192
Other payables and accruals H bR IE KRR E A
(Note 27) (fFsE27) 22,164 11,538
Bank and other borrowings (Note 28) #8717 & H {2 5k (Fff 5 28) 13,937 8,204
Lease liabilities (Note 23) HE&E (FsE23) 6,491 8,631
61,074 44,565
20 Inventories 20 #E&
2020 2019
—E-ZTHF —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBFIT
Raw materials JR A4 % 25,145 24,239

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in “cost of sales” during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 amounted to approximately RMB85,355,000
and RMB76,554,000 respectively, which included
provision for inventories amounting to approximately
RMB1,176,000 during the year ended 31 December 2020
and approximately RMB1,811,000 during the year ended
31 December 2019.

BHE_Z_ZFER_ZT—NFE+=A
—+—HLEFE EIFNOBEARK
85,355,000 ¢ & A K ¥ 76,554,000 7T #)
FEERAERBAST WA ATHERA] -
HeEEgE-—E-_E4+-_A=+—8
IEFEEHARYEA 176,000 TREE-F
—hWFF+_A=Z+—HLEFEHARK
1,811,000 2 7 E 5 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

21 Contract assets, trade and bills 21 EEEE -EZRKURERE
receivables WE
2020 2019
i —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREET T
Contract assets EREE 55,294 38,545
Less: provision for impairment of contract & : & [F & &R E B
assets (106) -
Contractassets,net  AFRAEF®E 55188 38,545 _
Trade receivables B 5 W FIE 15,310 27,605
Bills receivables e E T 145 =
Less: provision for impairment of trade B B S WGRIE R E R
receivables (165) (995)
Trade and bills receivables, net B 5 W FIAR
N N S 15290 26,610
70,478 65,155

Contract assets represent the Group’s rights to EREEEASEREE EXERAS
consideration for work completed but unbilled for its FARIFWERRENES - aREEN#E
services. The contract assets are transferred to trade A AEGRESF(—REFE—Z=(EAH)
receivables when the rights become unconditional which EREEHRIWRIE - —_ T _TF+=
generally takes one to three months. The balances of A=+ HAZE6REEEHBRERTER
contract assets as at 31 December 2020 represented the AIE ERERAZNRFG S HE -

amount of services that were completed but unbilled before
the year-end.

Movements in the Group’s provision for impairment of REBWEREEREREESHOT -
contract assets is as follow:

2020 2019

= —ENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETx ARET T

As at 1 January Rn—HA— - -
Provision for impairment of contract T RHE /E FTRMAER

assets on collective basis EERERE 106 —

As at 31 December W+=ZR=+—8H 106 =
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21 Contract assets, trade and bills

receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts
of contract assets, trade and bills receivables approximated
their fair values.

The Group’s sales were generally on credit terms primarily
from 30 to 90 days.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of
trade and bills receivables, net of impairment, based on
invoice date, was as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

]

EZRWRERE

S TER-ZZT—-NLF+H
=+—H AREE -BES5BKRAREK
BREENEmEREAFERE -

AEEHENEERN -—RIENFII0E
90H -°

RZE_ZEFER_ZFT—ILF+ A
=t H EZEZERFENREKREE (B
HBRRE) ZEZEHNERESTIT ¢

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBET T ARBTFIT

1 to 3 months 1Z231@A 14,348 25,679
Over 3 months 838 3 & A 1,107 1,926
15,455 27,605

Less: Provision for impairment of trade B S FR R E e

receivables (165) (995)
15,290 26,610

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, trade receivables of
approximately RMB187,000 and RMB13,863,000, were
past due respectively.

Movements of the provision for impairment of trade and bills
receivable were as follows:

RZZE_ZTFR_ZFT—-NLF+ A
=+—8 554 AR 187,000 7T & A
R # 13,863,000 TR E 5 EWGRIAE B Ef -

24 42 8 ) R 53 8 M0 0E T M T £
BESDNT :

2020 2019

—Z2-%F —FT-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBET T

As at 1 January n—A—H 995 =
Provision for impairment of trade AR BEEFTIRNE 5 B

receivables on an individual basis SIER B R 99 995
Provision for impairment of trade and BRI EEFTIRNE 5 B

bills receivables on a collective basis FIE R EWE BRI E RS 30 =
Written-off of provision for impairment of il 5 2 5 & U 5B R (B B s

trade receivables (959) -

As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 165 995
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

21

Contract assets, trade and bills
receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract assets, trade
and bills receivables were denominated in the following
currencies:

21 SREE ESRURERE

W EE &)

AEBAREE B 5 RUWHIENEW
SENEEEATIEEE

2020 2019

e —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AREFT

RMB AR 69,624 64,893
usD ETT 854 262
70,478 65,155

RZEBEZZTFRER_FT—NLF+=A
= t+—HEEEERR A EXFTlE
WHERARAEEMNERERE - NEEW
EFHEMEERIERER -

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 was the carrying value of the receivables
and contract assets mentioned above. The Group did not
hold any collateral as security.

22 Cash and cash equivalents 22 BERREEEY
2020 2019
—E-FF —F-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AERET T
Cash at banks RITIRE 118,433 139,154
Cash on hand FHERE 128 18
Less: pledged bank deposits B BIRERITE K (14,557) =
Cash and cash equivalents BERREEEY 104,004 139,172
Maximum exposure to credit risk e 1z B R 118,433 139,154

As at 31 December 2020, bank deposits amounted to RZE_ZTF+_HA=+—8 ' R17F
approximately RMB14,557,000 were pledged for bank A R ¥ 14,557,000 7t A 1E & 4 4R 17
borrowings, details of which are set out in Note 28. B FIEENMIFE28 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

22 Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) 22 RBERBAESEEY @
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the RekB2EEWRE e ans
purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows: xMms)ATEE :
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 104,004 139,172
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash AEEReEREEBMREEMRT
equivalents and pledged bank deposits were denominated GRMEREN T EEE -

in the following currencies:

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFT
RMB AR 55,083 60,595
usD ETT 13,516 3,110
HK$ B TT 49,962 75,467
118,561 139,172
Cash at banks earned interest at floating rates based on RTRERESHRTERIRIZZE
daily bank deposits rate. As at 31 December 2020 and BRI S R_T-_TERKR T NFE
2019, the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents +—-_HA=+—H BHeRBELZEEDE
approximated their fair values. HEREEEE N FERE °
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, cash and cash R—ZE_EFR_ZE—-—NF+=A
equivalents of the Group amounting to approximately =+—H AEENBEERERBESEEBY
RMB62,110,000 and RMB72,395,000, respectively, were DRI A ANR62,110,000 T B A R
deposited with the banks in the PRC where the remittance 72,395,000 7T * fFRH BIE AR ERTT - M
of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and & & & 1 A B A B BT 28 1 Y SN EE
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the BB B RERBEE o

Government of the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

23 Leases 23 HE

m)g%éﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following

FEEERABERANEHEEENERE

amounts relating to leases: W
2020 2019
—E-FF —F-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F ARBTT

Right-of-use assets* EREEE"

Properties LIS 5,455 7,006
Plant and machinery R 55 K 23 708 791
6,163 7,797

*

The balances were included in Note 14 “Property, plant and

BB AR 14 % BERRE]

equipment”. A o

2020 2019
—E-FF —F-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBET T

Lease liabilities HEAE
Non-current portion JEBNERER 7 1,766 4,783
Current portion BNHEAZR 75 4,725 3,848
6,491 8,631

BE_ZTZ_ZFER_FT—-—NF+=A
=+t BHLFE FTRAEEEAESH
DRI# A ANRBE2170,0007T & A R

Additions to the right-of-use assets amounted to
approximately RMB2,170,000 and RMB1,515,000
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019

respectively. 1,515,000 7T °
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying RZZEZZEFRZFT-NLF+=A
amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities were =t+—H AEEHEaEZEAEMN
denominated in RMB. AREEEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

23 Leases (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b)

(c)

income statement
The consolidated income statement shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

23 A& @)

REESRERBEINSHE

RAERGERANAREENSRNT

2020 2019
—E-FF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T

Depreciation charge of FRAEEENEEH

right-of-use assets

Properties LS 3,721 3,208
Plant and machinery R 55 K i 23 83 402
3,804 3,610
Finance costs on leases (Note 10) FHE®E KA (M7 10) 432 493

Amounts recognised in the consolidated (c)
statement of cash flows

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,

the total cash outflows for leases were analysed as

below:

REEEESREXREINS
BE—_Z - ZFR-_F—NF+=
A=+—BLtFE HEZHEER
HARZE ST ¢

2020 2019
e —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTT

Cash flows from operating activities R EH K& FE 2B EHRE

Payments for short-term leases in STRYIEE < EHEE

respect of:
— machineries* (Note 6) — =5~ (M15E6) 19,655 22,662
— offices, warehouses, production —WAE - BE - AE
plant and staff quarters* IHmARETIES"
(Note 6) (FzE6) 1,770 806
Cash flows from financing activities REBEFE 2B EHRE
Payment of principal element of lease X M E & &2 A& 25D
liabilities 4,310 3,047
Payment of interest element of lease X A E & & 2 F| B 25D
liabilities (Note 10) (Mf5E10) 432 493
26,167 27,008
* Payments for short-term leases were not shown separately, but HHAENRTSEB27 - HERAM

included in the line of “profit before income tax” in respect of the
net cash generated from operations which were presented in
Note 31(a) using the indirect method.

R ABH 3 31(0) BT 25118 AT
BB [ T3 BLAT M R — 1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

24 Share capital and share premium 24 BAR KRG RE
Number
of shares Nominal value
v 4= HE
HK$
BT
Share capital &N
Authorised: ERE ¢
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-—hF—HA—H 39,000,000 390,000
Increase in authorised shares (Note a) & hiAE R 7 (BizEa) 99,961,000,000 999,610,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each n= nE+=ZRA=+—8"

—EF—H—BRK

T —
as at 31 December 2019, =
E_ZTF+-_A=+—H
A%

1 January 2020 and -
31 December 2020 =

H{E0.01 B TAE /A% 100,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Number Nominal Share
of shares value premium
K EE HE % 17 % (8
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHBE:
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-NF—H—H 10,000 100 -
Issue of ordinary shares on R=_F— jL¢ —A+mA
14 February 2019 (Note 1.2(h)) BATEBAR (FIRE1.2(h) 753 8 -
Capitalisation issue (Note b) B 31T (FisEb) 187,489,247 1,874,892 (1,874,892)
Issuances of Shares upon the R EMEEITRG
Listing (Note ©) (ffsEc) 62,500,000 625,000 124,375,000
Share issuance costs (Note c) B D BT (FsEc) - - (12,859,946)
At 31 December 2019, 1 January R_-Z—hF+ A
2020 and 31 December 2020 =+—8 " :%:%i
—HA—BRZZE_FF
+=—A=+—8H 250,000,000 2,500,000 109,640,162
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

24

25

Share capital and share premium
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) On 20 September 2019, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased to HK$1,000,000,000 comprising 100,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each.

(b) Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholders on
20 September 2019, conditional upon the share premium account
of the Company being credited as a result of the issuance of shares
by the Company for listing, 187,489,247 shares were allotted and
issued to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company as at 20 September 2019 in
proportion to their then existing shareholdings in the Company through
the capitalisation of HK$1,874,892 (approximately RMB1,687,000)
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company.

() On 18 October 2019, pursuant to the initial public offering of the
Company’s shares, the Company issued a total of 62,500,000
shares at a price of HK$2.00 per share for a total proceeds (before
related fees and expenses) of HK$125,000,000 (approximately
RMB112,501,000). Total share issuance costs amounting to
HK$12,859,946 (approximately RMB11,575,000) were accounted for
as a deduction from share premium.

Deferred income tax 25

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets
and liabilities relate to the same tax authority.

The analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

fiai -

24 BAR KRG EE @

RZZE-AFNA=+B KRAEDEEREE
% 1,000,000,000% 7T * H1 100,000,000,000 /&
FAREEO0.01 B TTAIA D B °

REBER=-Z—NAFANA=-+HRBNE
HRFBE FAARABRMDEEREARAR
ETmMBBITROBERE  BZRBAAA
A% 17 % 1B AR /O 3 AR 581,874,892 L (WA R
#1,687,0007C) BFER - IR =T —NFh
BA=Z+RABIADRAIKRREEMARE - &H
FEERRAD AR B IR L FI B % R EAT
187,489,247 XA 17 -

RZZ—NAF+A+NB  BEARFRGE
RARBE  NAFIRER2.008 THERLE
H 2% 762,500,000 A% A% 19 LA 1 BLFT 15 5K I8 48
8 125,000,000 7 7T (£ A R ¥ 112,501,000 7T.)
(MR EEERRFAXAD) - RGO BITERA
12,859,946 /& 7t (4 A R# 11,575,0007T) A B&
| AR E ENRRIE ©

EFEFTS B
BEEHEAERBEEGTAERHH
17 M U 16 B0 8 B B & 2 SR BN A B IR
EEAEY BECHAAERAHMS
R —BL 5 4 BB 75 AT AR o

BERERIEEE (AR OSFTMT

2020 2019

—E-FF —E-hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Deferred tax assets RIEFRIAEE E 2,733 2,834
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE (2,068) (2,109)
Deferred income tax assets, net RIEFTIS R EEFE 665 725
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

25 Deferred income tax (Continued) 25 IEEFTBH (@)
The gross movement on the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) BERBEE(BFE) WEEZSHMNT
is as follows:
2020 2019
— —\' — ﬂi —=E— j-L E'E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
At the beginning of year F4 725 68
Credited to the consolidated income RERE W EmERETA
statement (Note 11) (Ft5E11) (60) 657
At the end of year FR 665 725
The movement in deferred tax (liabilities)/assets during the EERE (AR BEREBE-_ZT=F
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, without taking FRZE-NFTZA=+T—HLEFE
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same BB B CRESET RS HERM A RDEE =
tax jurisdiction, is as follows: EER) T

Rights-of-use  (Accelerated)/
assets  decelerated

Deferred tax (liabilities)/ Contracts and lease tax  Govemnment

assets assets liabilities  depreciation grants Others Total
BTHE (8E)/ EREEE (MB)/HE

BE AEEE RHEEEE RBRE B Aft #it

RMBO0O  RMBOOD  RMBO0  RMBOOD  RMBO00  RMBI000
ARBTL  ARMTR  AREBTn  ARETRL  ARBTn  ARETR

At 1 January 2019 R=Z-n%-A-H (1,126) (110) (228) 974 568 68
(Charged)lcredtedtothe AKX (k) /

consolidated income A

statement (683) 28 10 1,039 263 657
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=+-H (1,809) (82) (218) 2,013 821 725
(Charged)icreditedtothe  REAKER (1K) /

consolidated income A

statement (66) M) 178 (48) (53) (60)
At31Decomber2020  R-E-E£+-B=+-A (1,875 (153) “0) 1,065 768 665
The Group had undistributed earnings of approximately AEER-_ZE_ZEF+_HA=1+—HHN
RMB91,463,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RAOBRER A A/ AR 91,463,0007T (=
RMB73,693,000), which, if paid out as dividends, would be T—NF: AR#73,693,0007T) @ W0#
subject to tax in the hands of the recipient. An assessable ZARBERREIRE - A8 MR T &
temporary difference exists, but no deferred tax liability has W I8 o % & WEFE R R E %E
been recognised as the parent entity is able to control the 1B BB A B fe 12 Hll 5% 5 B B B A
timing of distributions of dividends from the PRC subsidiary & AR B HY H# FEJ B BB AT B 5 2K Z: 2
and is not expected to distribute these profits in the HEEZE RN R EERECHIEAE -

foreseeable future.

180 emeszrERAT 445 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

26 Trade payables 26 E5S @ﬁ?\”l

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of RZEZZFRZF-—NLFET+ZH
trade payables, based on invoice date, was as follows: = —1— EI B ENRIBEREZHR®
BREC DT :
2020 2019
— 7 — ﬂi 7j-|-v£'5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Tx ARET T
Within 1 month KERERA 16,664 13,446
1 to 2 months 1ZE2MEA 784 1,366
2 to 3 months 2E3EA 749 669
Over 3 months 31E A A E 285 711
18,482 16,192

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables were AEBEZESENRENEREBENLTIE

denominated in the following currencies: BEETE -
2020 2019
—E-TF —T—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
RMB AR 17,862 14,851
usD ETT 620 1,341
18,482 16,192
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts RZEZZEFRZFTE—NF+=A
of trade payables approximated their fair values. —t+—H BZRNREFAERERQ
FEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

27 Contract liabilities, other payables and 27 cRIEE HttENARERE
accruals T EH
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Payable for operating expenses A 5 <2 5 Bl O B N R IE 3,094 3,892
Payable for acquisition of property, BRABEME  BE X
plant and equipment R e AR 10,476 54
VAT and other tax payables B R N H A FE A B 18 5,358 6,007
Other payables e FOIE 170 811
Accruals EEtE A 17,010 14,397
Contract liabilities (Note 5(b)) aREE (HEE5b) 1,487 462
37,595 25,623
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts RZEZZEFRZZFT—NFE+ZA
of other payables, accruals and contract liabilities =+—H HESKRE EBFERRK
approximated their fair values. ARAENEREREAFEMRSE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract liabilities, REEEREE - HMh e I8 R EE
other payables and accruals were denominated in the BERMEmENA N EEEE :
following currencies:
2020 2019
—EEF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
RVMB AR 30,585 23,292
usD ETT 1,548 147
HK$ BT 5,462 2,184
37,595 25,623
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

r
:%/T\/\

B RS ERRMIEE (@)

28 Bank and other borrowings

28 1T R H M fE K

2020 2019
—_ —\' —_ ﬂi :%—j‘Lf‘E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AREET T
Non-current portion FE BN EA B
Bankborrowings —secured  SRTEH-AER 8048 1,600
Current portion B 8 &8 2
Bank borrowings — secured IRTT B3 — A 1 5,889 3,473
Other borrowings — secured Hinfas—HHEA - 3,131
e e 5889 6,604
Total bank and other borrowings RIT R HMERERE 13,937 8,204
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the weighted average RZEBEZZEFRER_FT—NLF+=A
interest rate per annum of the Group’s bank and other =+—H ANEBERTREAMEG KA
borrowings was 5.86 % and 11.45% respectively. T FFE D F A5.86% K% 11.45% °
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts RZEBEZZTFR_FT—NLF+=A
of bank and other borrowings approximated their fair values. =+—H8 - RI7 R HE M E AR EE A
HAFERE -

As at 31 December 2020, the above bank borrowings
were secured by bank deposits of RMB14,557,000,
property, plant and equipment with carrying amounts of
RMB26,130,000 and a corporate guarantee provided by the
Company.

As at 31 December 2019, the above bank and other
borrowings were secured by property, plant and equipment

RZZE_TF+_A=+—H kiR
TTEFRARITERA R 14,557,000 7T
IR E A A R # 26,130,000 7T &) ¥ %
WEREE RBARTIRERN QR E
RYEHEIR o

RZTE—NAF+ZA=+—8H" Lil
RORHEMERUEEER/RARRE

with carrying amounts of RMB21,837,000 and a corporate 21,837,000 TCHI¥ % ~ W= K&t K H
guarantee provided by the Company. AARREH A GERERR
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s bank and RZE_EFR_FE—NF+=
other borrowings were repayable according to repayment =+—H ' AEBEMIR ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ & ?’X
schedule as follows: BB RGTEI A AR i A E IR -
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
Within 1 year or on demand —FRFIRERK 5,889 6,604
Between 1 and 2 years —EWF 8,048 1,600
13,937 8,204
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

28 RITREMER @
REEMBTREMIER

28 Bank and other borrowings (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other

EVEREEIA T

borrowings were denominated in following currencies: HEREE :
2020 2019
—E-ZF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARET T
RVMB AR¥ 1,600 8,204
usD ETT 12,337 -
13,937 8,204
29 Deferred government grants 29 EE N IFEBY
2020 2019
—E-TF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AREET T
At 1 January W—BA—H 13,424 6,496
Received during the year F N E WER 2,770 9,416
Released to the consolidated income BAGE W= R
statement (3,092) (2,488)
At 31 December R+t=A=+—H 13,102 13,424
Non-current portion FERNHAEL 10,001 10,519
Current portion BN ERER 2 3,101 2,905
13,102 13,424
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, REBEEZZE_TFR_ZT-NF+_H
government grants have been received for the purchase =+—H Ltif; MEEE T RERER

of certain equipment. There are no unfulfiled conditions or
contingencies attached to these grants.

RIFEARIAR ©

30 Dividend 30 ®RE
No dividends had been paid or declared by the Company ARAAREE=

during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
AR e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

31 Notes to the consolidated statement of

31 GERERERNT

cash flows
(a) Cash generated from operations () REEEXEMNRE
2020 2019
—E-ZTHF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Profit before income tax R BT 5 %4 A 22 7 13,683 35,395
Adjustments for: LA T B IBIEH FAZ
Finance income BE WA (925) (364)
Finance costs BhE A AR 1,002 1,601
Depreciation e 24,858 19,944
Amortisation % 296 -
Provision for inventories FERE 1,176 1,811
Net impairment losses on financial TREENEREERE
assets and contract assets E5i8F 58 235 995
Provision for impairment of TEfT SRIE R B
prepayment 644 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BERREDN
and equipment E518 2,665 608
Government grants BT 7 B (3,092) (2,488)
Gains on financial assets at FVTPL R AFEF AEBRZN S 7
BEWE (489) =
40,053 57,502
Changes in working capital: BEEGEF)
— Contract assets, trade and bills —&REE - ES5EBK
receivables EPS Y AE S (5,560) (7,262)
— Prepayments, deposits and other ~ —FEfTFIE - &4 M HA
receivables J& WK I8 (3,610) 8,736
— Inventories —-FE (2,082) 4,503
— Trade payables — B S EI5E 2,290 6,062
- Contract liabilities, other payables  —& R & & « EfbfE{T 5k
and accruals HRERE A 22,481 163
Net cash generated from operations ~ #& & E £ HIR & /F 58 53,572 69,704
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e BTSRRI @)

31 Notes to the consolidated statementof 31 ZREREFRE R T @)
cash flows (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash (b) REZEBEEREXRTP  HE
flows, proceeds from disposal of /R Jﬁ?%&ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬂ%ﬂ
property, plant and equipment comprised: HEE

2020 2019

—E-FF —ET-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBET T ARBT T

Net book amount disposed & R ERTEFE 3,145 608
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWHE  BERE&EZ

and equipment (Note 8) &8 (M13E8) (2,665) (608)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE RKREZ

plant and equipment Fr {5 3k I8 480 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

31 Notes to the consolidated statementof 31 Z&8BEE&RERM T @)
cash flows (Continued)

(c) The reconciliations of liabilities arising c) MEETHELENEBHIER
from financing activities were as follows: /(1 N
Bank and
other Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITR
H b & K HEAE g

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBETIT ARETT ARBTT

As at 1 January 2019 R-E—hE-— 18,801 10,163 28,964
Cash flows BeRE
— Repayments of bank and other ~ —{E:& $R17 R E &K

borrowings (10,597) - (10,597)
— Payment of principal element of —XNHEEBBEHARS

lease liabilities # o - (3,047) (3,047)
— Interest paid —BRFE (1,108) (493) (1,601)
Other non-cash movements HIER &
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEBEEN - 1,515 1,515
— Interest expenses —FMBHAX 1,108 493 1,601
As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZE-hE+=A

=t+—H 8,204 8,631 16,835

As at 1 January 2020 N-—ZE-_Z=F—H—H 8,204 8,631 16,835
Cash flows ReRE
— Proceeds from bank and other —~ — 4R 17 & H Mt Z T 15

borrowings FRIE 13,511 - 13,511
— Repayments of bank and other —{&i& R 1T R E b5

borrowings (7,652) - (7,652)
— Payment of principal element of — X NHEEEEHNARE

lease liabilities 7o - (4,310) (4,310)
— Interest paid —BENFE (570) (432 (1,002)
Other non-cash movements H IR o &
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEaEEN - 2,170 2,170
— Exchange difference —[EHER (126) - (126)
— Interest expenses —FBRZ 570 432 1,002
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZEF+=A

Eqr=1[¢ 13,937 6,491 20,428
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

32 Contingent liabilities 32 ZAEE
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have RZZEZZTEFR_FT-NLF+ A
any material contingent liabilities. =+—H FAEETEEFREALAERE -
33 Capital commitments 33 EAREE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but REREFTHEREENERHAZAT :

not yet incurred is as follows:

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Contracted but not provided for: EETAE E AR B
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B k&G 16,742 2,215
34 Assets pledged as securities 34 SEFIEREITFRNEE
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as securities for B EASR 17 K H Ath & 5% &9 B 3K 37 1E & 3K 17
current bank and other borrowings are: mMEENREEBELT
2020 2019
i —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREET T
Non-current portion IEFREN I 5
Charge at floating rate 12 0F BT F YK
Property, plant and equipment (Note 28)  #1% ~ /= Kk fE (HizE28) 26,130 21,837
Total non-current assets pledged as BIERIEARIT R E AL fE K
_securities for bank and other borrowings B MFRBEERE 26180 | 21,837
Current portion B B
Charge at floating rate 12 0F BT F U A
Pledged bank deposits (Note 22) BHEIRIRITE R (H5E22) 14,557 =

Total current assets pledged as securities 2 IR VE AR 1T M E b fE X
for bank and other borrowings BHMNRBEERE 14,557 =

Total assets pledged as securities for bank 2 K4 £ &R 1T & E & 5K
and other borrowings BH@HNEERE 40,687 21,837
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

g =

e EERRNE @

35 Related party transactions

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to
control, jointly control or exert significant influence over the
other party in holding power over the investee; exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and the ability to use its power over the investee
to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or joint control. Related parties may be individuals or
other entities.

Major related parties that had transactions with the Group
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 were

as follows:

Related parties

35 BEHLEXRS

B T RBREES - KEEHIRER
W&ﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ
FENN -7  BER2ERKREHRN
ABMESKAERZEANELR: AR
HBWREREHRERBEINESD  UEE
RELECHNESHE - BROZHRINAR
2 SREE SRR AR BT - BE
BT A AR EAREMEE -

BHE_ZT_ZFr_Z—HhLhF+=_A
=+ HLEFE HASEFERSH
FE@B LW

Relationship with the Company

B B D R R R
Li Hao Director and shareholder
& EEHRKR
Yuan Shuntang Director and shareholder
=IEE EERRR
Xu Shizhen Director (Note)
P E = (fsh)

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Li acquired the entire
equity interest of Shenzhen Confidence from Xu Shizhen pursuant to

the Reorganisation as set out in Note 1.2.

M RBE—FT-AFT_A=1t—HLFE R
BHRE12MBNER FRERFEEZRE
RINEBE 2 B ARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIERRMEE @)

35 Related party transactions (Continued)

(a) Parent entity
Details of the ultimate holding company of the
Company and the ultimate controlling party are set out
in Note 1.1.

(b) Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note 13.

(c) Key management compensation
Compensation paid or payable to key management for
employee services is shown below:

35 BEE AR S m)
(@ BLRER
ARTMBERER DT RS RIER
FEEEE A1

(b) MELA
RHIE R AR BN HIFE13 o

(c) EEEEEZHM
BEEBRBENIENEEZEEE
HF PRI

2020 2019

—BoEHF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Wages and salaries TERF® 4,659 3,163
Pension costs — defined contribution R4 A A — R & R GHE]

plan 36 73

4,695 3,236
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

36 Balance sheet and reserve movement of KRAREEEEXRNFEEH
the Company
Balance sheet of the Company as at NN E’\\‘:jg:gE%ZH
31 December 2020 =+—HWEEE®E
2020 2019
—EEF —ET—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB'OOO
B 5 ARET T ARETIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries L IENGI oL 152,807 155,404
Totalnon-currentassets ¥ nBREAE 00000 152,807 165,404
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TETRUE -~ e RHEA
receivables e U R TE 122 203
Financial assets at FVTPL BT ER ABRZS
TRBEE 1 =
Due from a subsidiary JE UL B B A B R IE 34,156 36,279
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREEEY 55,397 65,391
Totalcurrentassets ~~~~~ #BXE#E 00000000 89,676 101,878
Total assets EEH#AE 242,483 257,277
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity KRG EREEA
holders of the Company LR =
Share capital &% A 2,250 2,250
Share premium Bt (8 98,676 98,676
Capital reserve =N @) 155,404 155,404
Exchange reserve 4SNBE 5% 5 (@) (7,826) (940)
Accumulated losses Z5HEB1E (@) (29,362) (22,468)
Totalequity ~ #=#&&® 219142 ¢ 232,922
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals JESTFKIA 1,234 2,184
Amounts due to subsidiaries ANPGRS 22,107 22,171
Total liabilies ~~~~~~ #f#&® 23841 24,385
Total equity and liabilities EakBEAE 242,483 257,277
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the KAFIEERABERERNR_T=-_—F=H
Board of Directors on 25 March 2021 and was signed on its “t+HHESEEeHETHUNTALR
behalf. REE o
Li Hao Xu Shizhen
Z=5 it E
Director Director
o BEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

36 Balance sheet and reserve movementof 36 KA QAR EEEBREBHEEE

the Company (Continued) (1)
Balance sheet of the Company as at EARR=-_B=-FF+=A
31 December 2020 (Continued) =+—HWEEAER @
(@) Reserve movement of the Company (@ ARNAIHFEE
Capital
Exchange reserve Accumulated
Reserve (Note) losses Total
EXRRE
INE B (BR=E) At B8 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 R=T—h&E—HF—H - - - =
Loss for the year FREIE - - (22,468) (22,468)
Currency transaction differences ~ S # & =58 (940) - - (940)
eleleppdiodiotes  emlalal e S Poded—"" ey
Transaction with owners HEFANRS
Contribution surplus (Note) SN E A (FEE) - 155,404 - 155,404
D N T s S
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-hE+=-A=+—8 (940) 155,404 (22,468) 131,996
At 1 January 2020 R=Z==f-g—A (940) 155,404 (22,468) 131,996
Loss for the year FREIBE - - (6,894) (6,894)
Currency transaction differences ~ E# & =% (6,886) - - (6,886)
eielfanpde gt emiatad N S ey i)
At 31 December 2020 R=—Z-=f+=-A=+—-8 (7,826) 155,404 (29,362) 118,216
Note: The capital reserve of the Company represents the aggregated sk AR B R & AN 4 B AR IR T SR 1.2 FT R
net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company MEAARRRKENRBARMNEEE
pursuant to the Reorganisation as set out in Note 1.2. YRE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

37 Benefits and interests of directors

37 EENNZ N HES

(@) EEME
BEES=MFHNESNOT -

(a) Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of each director is set out below:

Employer’s
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary  and benefits ~ to pension

Name of Director Fees Salary bonus inkind scheme Total
BER EIXHEfe
£33 e e MiERL ENAE  GENER @it

RMBO0O  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBO00  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARMTR  ARBTL  ARETRL  ARBTR  ARETR

For the year ended BE-B-EE4C

31 December 2020 A=T-HLEE
Executive directors: #1ES:
- LiHao = 107 724 - - 5 836
- Zhang Bizhong A 107 562 500 - 5 1,174
- Xu Shizhen —FTHE 107 518 240 - 5 870
Non-executive director: FiHTES:
- Yuan Shuntang -RIBE 107 - - 107
Independent non-executive  BUFHITES !

directors:
~Wong Chun Sek Eomund ~~ — #1518 107 - - 107
- Wu Tai Cheung —KE 107 - - 107
- Chen Zhong -RA 107 - - 107

749 1,804 740 3,308

For the year ended HEZ-E-NEtC

31 December 2019 A=t-HLEE
Executive directors: HITES:
- LiHao ~-F 2 655 — 691
- Zhang Bizhong —RUE 2 561 - 596
- Xu Shizhen —iHtE 2 512 140 687
Non-executive director: FHTES:
- Yuan Shuntang -RIBE 2 - - 2
Independent non-executive  BUFHITES |

directors:
~Wong Chun SekEdmund ~ —& 1578 2 - - 2
—~Wu Tai Cheung —HAH 2 - - 2
~ Chen Zhong -BA 2 - - 2

154 1,728 140 2,062
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIERRMEE @)

37 Benefits and interests of directors
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund, Mr. Wu Tai Cheung and
Mr. Chen Zhong were appointed as independent non-
executive directors of the Company on 20 September

2019.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
none of the directors of the Company (i) received or
paid any remuneration in respect of accepting office; (i)
received or paid emoluments in respect of services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiaries undertaking; or (i) waived

or has agreed to waive any emolument.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the

directors; nor are any payable.

(c) Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no consideration was provided to third parties for

making available directors’ services.
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37 EENNZRER @)

(@

(b)

(c)

BEEME @)

=HERELEE PHAFLEERREL
ER_ZE-NFNA-ZTHEZT
ANNRBILIFRTES -

HE_Z-_TFR_T—NF+=
A=T—BLEE #BMEXRAE
= (i) Bt # 4 Bek oz LAt B =K 2 AT A ) B
[ (1) s N/NIET =% =M = /N
XEBEHNEERBKEESHS
2k (i) ZEX B R ENEE MBS -

EERABARKLER

HE_Z_TFR-_ZFT—NF+=
A=+—RALFE TEGERIE
EERBHOBE BIKEF [
HEMEESEZREE L FE
5 IR RS U o

MERMEZEREMEIE=
FRERE
HE_Z_ZTFR-_ZFT—NF+=
A=+—BLEE BERERHE
EEREMEE=FRERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

37 Benefits and interests of directors
(Continued)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans

()

and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, there were no loans, quasi- loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

37 EENNZRER @)

d) FEUESE HEHRESE

()

HEEREEEGHEENE

BAZSRANER EEX

HE_Z_ZTFR-_ZFT—NF+=
A=+ RALFE YEEENE
E HERESTZEHMNEERER
EHENEEASTANER £
EREREMRZLHE -

BEERXS  ZHIEHH
OEDN S
BREAMBREZBERESZIN K
RABMEBEIUARREENETE
BEYHEREEEABEMNF RS
FAEMERFELENEERXK
BERNEARS  RHERAH -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
iR

Results ¥iE

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=T-HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEZEE —“T-NF —ZE-N\F —Z—+tF —ET—RF
Revenue Yrzs 246,531 284,588 236,210 208,634 174,140
Cost of sales HEKAR (196,123)  (190,560)  (161,946)  (144,773) (111,527
Gross profit ER 50,408 94,028 74,264 63,861 62,613
Profit before income tax BR BT {55 A& A 13,683 35,395 47,229 36,940 41,025
Profit for the year attributable to ARrEREE AENL
equity holders of the Company FR @A 11,736 27,710 40,814 32,011 35,362
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=A=1+—-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“E-EE —Z-NE —E-)\f —T—+F —T—KF
Non-current assets ERBEE 157,894 122,155 105,740 94,834 80,896
Current assets REEE 226,413 232,299 115,726 91,851 57,509
Total assets BEARE 384,307 354,454 221,466 186,685 138,405
Total equity BERiBE 291,931 278,673 148,145 116,600 89,446
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 19,815 16,902 20,940 12,775 17,120
Current liabilities mEaE 72,561 58,879 52,381 57,310 31,839
Total liabilities BERE 92,376 75,781 73,321 70,085 48,959
Total equity and liabilities BankAEER 384,307 354,454 221,466 186,685 138,405
Notes: BsE -

(@  The financial figures for the year ended/as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 (@) #HE-ZE-_ZFR-_T—NF+-_A=+—HILF

were extracted from the consolidated financial statements in this annual E/R-E_TFER-_FT-AF+-_A=1+—HBH
report. B RS BUE Th sk B AN FE RS IS HRE ©

(o)  The financial figures for each of the three years ended 31 December 2018/as (b)) BHEZZ—N\F+_A=+—HLE=-"FEAFESF
at the respective year-end were extracted from the Prospectus. BERNMBEIE KB HBRETR -

The summary above does not form part of the audited | EVW IR BEZIGA M BHRE —ZH ©
consolidated financial statements.
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